
NEW I S S U E  
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY 

RATINGS: Fitclr Ratings: AAA 
Standard 6. Poor's: AAA 

I n  the opinion of Wohlforth, Jolmson, Brecht, Cartledge 6. Broolring, PC., Bond Counsel, based on a n  analysis of existing 
statutes, regulations, rulings, a n d  court decisions, a n d  assun~ing, among other things, compliance by the Corporation u i th  its 
couenonts relating lo certain requiromcnts contained in  the Internal Reuenue Code of1986, os amended, intcrrst on the 2005 Bonds 
(i) is not includable in  gross income of Holders thereof for federal income t a r  purposes a n d  (ii) is not treated as a specific preference 
item to be included in  calculating the altevnatiue nrinimum tax on indiuiduals a n d  corporations, but such into.& i s  included in  
calculating the "adjusted current earnings" of certain corporations forpurposes ofcomputing the alternative minimum tax. Interest 
on the 2005 Bonds is aenzpt from taxation by t l z  Slate ofAlaslia except for inheritonce and  estate taxes a n d  taxes on transfers by o r  
in  contemplotion of death. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any otlrer tax conseqt~ences relating to the ownership o r  
disposition of: o r  the accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2005Bonds. See "TAXEXEMPTION" Irerein. 

$88,305,000 
ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

State Projects Revenue Bonds 
2005 Series A 

Dated: Dntc of Delivery Due: See Inside Cover 

The Alaska Student Lonn Corporation State Projects Revenue Bonds. 2005 Series A (the "2005 Bonds") will be issucd as fully 
registered bonds in denominations of $5.000 or integral multiples thereof. Thc 2005 Bonds will be rcgistcrcd in the name of Ccdc 8: 
Co.. as nominee of The Deoositarv Trust Comonnv. New York. New York YDTC"). DTC will net as securities deoositorv for the 2005 

Princioal and interest arc ~nvable  directlv to DTC bv U.S. Bank Nationnl Associntion. Senttle. WnshinEton. as trustee (the "Trustee"). . . 
Princlpul i i  puyhlc on the dates scr furth on tllc inside cowr of this Onicinl Smtc,ncrlt I u t ~ ~ r ~ s t  on thc LOO5 Ronds i i  pnynhlc on July 1, 
2005, and semi-nnnuallg on ciluh Jlnunr). 1 nnd July 1 thcrcdrcr Cpon rcccipr of payrncrm o l  prineipnl nnd inrcrcsr, W C  will in turn 
rcmit .uch pr~nctprrl und intvrc3r to DT(: pnrticipmti for iubiuquenr dt:burzcmcnt ro rhc purchasers of hcnckial intcrcstj in rhc 200.3 
Bands, as dcscribcd herein. 

The procccds of the 2005 Bonds, together with other nvailnble funds of the Corporation, will be used (i) by the Stnte of Alaskn for 
project crpcnditures; (ii) to satisfy the Capital Reserve Requirement; nnd (iii) to pay costs of issuance of the 2005 Bonds. (See "SOURCES 
AND USES TABLE" herein). 

The 2005 Bonds will be issucd under an Indenture dated ns of March 1,2005, by and bctwccn the Corporation nnd the Trustec (the 
"Master Indenture"), as supplemented by n First Supplemental Indcnture dated as of March 1,2005, by and betwccn the Corporation and 
the Trustee (the "First Supplemental Indenture." nnd together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"). The 2005 Bonds will bc 
speeinl, limited obligations of thc Corporntion secured solely by a pledge of (i) all Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts nnd Pledged Loan Notes 
credited to the Pledged Loan f i n d  under the Indenture, which include n portfolio of lonns contributed by the Corporntion to be delivered 
simultaneously with the issunnce of the 2005 Bonds, (ii) all payments on such Pledged Loans, and the right to receive the same, and (iii) 
all other property credited to the funds and accounts established under the Indcnturc (including cash cantributcd by the Corporation) 
subject to the terms and provisions of thc Indenture governing the npplicntion thereof, including the Corporation's right to withdrnw, frco 
nnd clear of the lien ereatcd by the Indcnture, Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts, Pledged Lonn Notes, cash, and other property credited to 
the Indenture. Sec "PLAN OF FINANCING herein. 

THE 2005 BONDS ARE SPECIAL, L m I T E D  OBLIGATIONS O F  T H E  CORPORATION AND ARE PAYABLE SOLELY 
FROM THE REVENUES. ASSETS AND FUNDS PLEDGED THEREFOR UNDER THE INDENTURE. IN  ADDITION. THE - - ~ - ~ ~  -~ 

~~ ~ 

2005 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS 011 OTIIER LIABILITY O F  THE STATE OF ALASKA OR O F  
ANY I'OLI'I'ICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOI; EXCEPT'I'IIE C O R P O ~ I ' I O N .  OR A PLEDGE O F  THE FAll'll M U  CREDIT 
OF'I'HE CORPORATION. THE SI'ATE O F  ALiSKA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION T1IEREOF. ISSUAVCE O F  Tl iE  
2005 BONDS DOES NOT DIRECTLY. INDIRECTLY. OR CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE STATE O R  A POLITICAL 
SUBDMSION O F  THE STATE TO APPLY MONEY FROM. OR LEVY OR PLEDGE. ANY FORM OF TAXATION TO THE 
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No dealel; broker, salesman, or other person has been authorized by the Corporation or the Underwriter 
to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, 
and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been 
authorized by the Corporation or the Underwriter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell 
or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor is there authorized to be any sale of the 2005 Bonds by any person in 
any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation, or sale. This Official 
Statement is not to be construed as a contract with purchasers or registered owners of the 2005 Bonds. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibility to investors under federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

The information set forth in this Official Statement has been provided by the Corporation and other 
official sources, all of which are believed by the Corporation to be reliable. The information and expressions of 
opinion in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale made hereunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has 
been no change in the affairs of the Corporation or that the other information or opinions are correct as of any 
time subsequent to the date of this Official Statement. Such information and expressions of opinion are made 
for the purpose of providing information to prospective investors and are not to be used for any other purpose 
or relied on by any other party. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING OF THE 2005 BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER MAY 
OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF 
THE 2005 BONDS OFFERED HEREBY AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL 
IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUE AND, I F  
DISCONTINUED, THEN RECOMMENCED AT ANY TIME. 

UPON ISSUANCE, THE 2005 BONDS WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND WILL NOT BE LISTED ON ANY STOCK OR OTHER SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE. NEITHERTHE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHERFEDERAL, 
STATE, OR OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY OR AGENCY HAVE PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR 
DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR APPROVED THE 2005 BONDS 
FOR SALE. THE INDENTURE WILL NOT BE QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 
1939, AS AMENDED. 

Other than with respect to information concerning Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("FSA") contained 
under the caption "INSURANCE ON THE 2005 BONDS" and Appendix VII- "FORM OF MUNICIPAL BOND 
INSURANCE POLICY" herein, none of the information in this Official Statement has been supplied or verified 
by FSA and FSA makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to (i) the accuracy or completeness 
of such information; (ii) the validity of the 2005 Bonds; or (iii) the tax exempt status of the interest on the 2005 
Bonds. 

This Official Statement is submitted by the Corporation in connection with the sale of the 2005 Bonds 
referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT 

(This Summary Statement is subject in all respccu to the more 
complete information contained elsewhere in this Oflicial Statement.) 

No person is authorized to detacli this Sumnlary Statement from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it 
withoul this entire Official Statement. 

Definitions 

Capitalized terms not otherwise delined in this Summary Statement have the meanings set forth in the 
delinitional subsection of Appendices 11 and 111 of this Official Statement entitled "THE INDENTURE and "FIRST 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE," respectively. 

The Corporation 

The Alaska Student Loan Corporation (the "Corporation") is a public corporation and governmental 
instrumentality within the Department oi~ducation and EX& Development of  the ~ t a t e o f  Alaska (th&"~tate"), but 
having a legal existence independent of and separate from the State. The Corporation was created by State law in 1987. 

Authority 

The 2005 Bonds will be issued and secured pursuant to the Alaska Statutes 14.42.100 through 14.42.990, as 
amended (the "Act") and a resolution of the Corporation adopted February 24. 2005, and are issued pursuant to the 
Indenture by and between the Corporation and US. Bank National Association, Seattle. Washington (the "Trustee"), 
dated March I, 2005 (the "Master Indenture") and the First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2005, by and 
between the Corporation and the Trustee (the "First Supplemental Indenture," and together with the Master Indenture. 
the "Indenture"). 

Purpose of the 2005 Bonds 

issuance costs. 

Form of the 2005 Bonds 

The 2005 Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered 
in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York. New York 
("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository of the 2005 Bonds. Purchases of beneficial ownership interests in the 
2005 Bonds will be initially made in book-entry form only, in principal amountsof%5,000and integral multiples thereof. 
Purchasers will not receive certificates represenling such beneficial interests in the 2005 Bonds purchased. So long as 
DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the registered owner (the "Holder") of all the 2005 Bonds, upon receipt of payments 
of principal and interest, DTC will in turn remit such principal and interest to DTC participants for subsequent 
disbursement to the purchasers of benelicial interests in the 2005 Bonds. See "APPENDIX VI--INFORMATION 
REGARDING THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY--Book Entry System" herein. 

Class and Bond Characteristics 

The Master Indenture provides that the Corporation may designate Classes of Bonds in any Supplemental 
Indenture. Unless otherwise designated, any Bond is presumed to he ofthe highest Class and such highest Class will 
he referred to as Class I. The 2005 Bonds arc designated Class I Bonds. The Corporation reserves the right to issue 



additional Bonds undertheMasterI11denture with Classdesignation thesame as, ordilTerent from, thedesignations given 
to the 2005 Bonds. 

Interest Payments 

Interest on the 2005 Bonds will be payable semi-annually on January I and July I of each year, with the first 
interest payment date being July 1, 2005. 

Bond Insurance 

Payment of the regularly scheduled principal of and interest on the 2005 Bonds when due, will be insured by 
a municipal bond insurance policy (the "Policy") to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the 2005 Bonds by 
Financial Security Assurancelnc. ("FSA). See "APPENDIXIII- FIRSTSUPPLEMEWALINDENTURE- ARTICLE 
VI -RIGHTS OFTHE BOND INSURER." 

Security for the 2005 Bonds 

The 2005 Bonds will he special, limited obligations of the Corporation payable solely from the Trust 
Estate (as such term is defined herein). The 2005 Bonds will be secured on an equal and ratable basis under the 
Indenture by a pledge of all right. title, and interest of the Corporation in (i) Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts, and 
Pledged Loan Notes including all extensions and renewals of the terms thereof, if any, together with all right, title, and 
interest of the Corporation thercin, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the present and 
continuing right to claim, collect, and receive any of the moneys, income, revenues, issues, profits, and other amounts - .  
payable or receivable thereunder, to bring actions and proceedings thereunder or for the enforcement thereof, and to do 
any and all things which the Corporation is or may become entitled to do under the Pledged Loan Notes; (ii) all Funds 
and Accounts and moneys and securities held by the Trustee including, hut not limited to, undisbursed proceeds of the 
2005 Bonds, amounts held under the Indenture, and any and all other real or personal property of every name and nature 
by delivery or by writing of any nature conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred as and for additional 
security under the Indenture, lo the extent soconveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred by thecorporation 
or by anyone on its behalf, or with its written consent, to the Trustee; and (iii) any and all proceeds of the foregoing, 
subject, in all cases, to the terms and provisions of the Indenture governing the use and application of all such properly 
and rights in property. See "SECURITY FOR THE 2005 Bonds" herein. 

Upon compliance with certain requirements specified in the Indenture, the Corporation may modify a d o r  
withdmw, free and clear of the lien created by the Indenture, Pledged Loans, cash, and other property credited to the 
Indenlure. See "SECURITY FOR THE 2005 Bonds--Funds and Accounts Under the Indenture'' herein. 

Capital Reserve Fund 

The Indenture establishes aCapital Reserve Fund that secures the 2005 Bonds. The Capital Reserve Fund will 
contain amounts deposited therein from proceeds of the 2005 Bonds, amounts transferred from the Revenue Fund and 
other Funds and Accounts established under the Indenture and other available sources. The Indenture requires that 
amounts held in the Capiral Reserve Fund be maintained at the "Capital Reserve Fund Requirement." Under the terms 
of the Indenture, all or any portion of the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement may be satisfied by the deposit with the 
Trustee of Eligible Capital Rescrve Assets. See "APPENDIX 111 - FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE - 
ARTICLE I - Definitions." 

Thecapital ReserveFund Requirement means, at any time, Eligiblecapital Reserve Assets in an amountequal 
to the least ofthe following: (i) 10% of the stated principal of Bonds then Outslanding; (ii) 125% of the average annual - 
principal and interest requirements on all Bonds then Outstanding; or (iii) the maximum annual principal and interest 
requirements on all Bonds thcn Outstanding. The Capital Reserve Fund Requirement is expected to be approximately 
$8$30,500 million upon issuance of the 2005 Bonds. 

ii 



T a s  Status 

The 2005 Bonds will be accompanied by an opinion of Wohlforth, Johnson, Brecht, Cartledge & Brooking. 
P.C., Bond Counsel, to the effect that, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings, and coun decisions, interest on the 
2005 Bonds (i) is not includable in gross income of Holders thereof for fcderal income tax purposes and (ii) is not treated 
as ;t specific preference item to be included in calculating the alternative minimum tax on individuals and corporations, 
but such interest is included in calculating the "adjusted current carnings" of certain corporations for purposes of 
computing the alternative minimum tax. Interest on the 2005 Bonds is exempt from taxation by the State of Alaska 
except for inheritance and estatc taxes and m e s o n  transfers by or in contemplation ofdeath. See "TAX EXEMITION" 
herein. 

Moral Obligation 

The statute creating the Corporation requires that the Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the Corporation 
certify in writing to the Governor and the Stale Lcgislalure, by January 15 of each year, i f  any amount is required to 
restore the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement. The State Legislature may, hut is not 
obligated to, appropriate to theCotporation the amountcenified by the Chairperson; however, this legislaliveoption does 
not create a debt or liability of the State. The Corporation is required to deposit the amounts so appropriated in the 
Capital Reserve Fund. 

The 2005 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their respective scheduled maturities. 

iii 



OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Relating to 

Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
$88,305,000 

State Projects Revenue Bonds 
2005 Series A 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, including thecover pageand Appendices, sets forth information concerningthe Alaska 

terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in "APPENDIX 
I1 -THE INDENTURE or in "APPENDIX 111 - FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE." 

The 2005 Bonds will be issued and secured under the Indenture, dated as of March I.  2005 (the "Master 
Indenture") by and betwecn the Corporation and US.  Bank National Association, Seattle, Washington. as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), as supplemented by a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of March I .  2005, by and between the 
Corporation and the Trustee (the "First Supplemental Indenture.'' and together with the Master Indenture, the 
"Indenture"). The Trustee is also the Paying Agent and Registrar for the 2005 Bonds. 

The Corporation will issue the 2005 Bonds and use the proceeds, together with other available funds ofthe 
Corporation, to (i) pay for State of Alaqka project expenditures, (ii) satisfy the Capital Reserve Requirement, and (iii) 
to pay costs of issuance of the 2005 Bonds. 

The 2005 Bonds are special, limited obligations ofthe Corporation and are payable solely from the revenues, 
assets and funds pledged therefor under the Indenture. The 2005 Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness or other 
liability of the State of Alaska or of any political subdivision, thereof, except the Corporation, or a pledge of the faith 
and credit of theCorporation, the Stateof Alaska, or any political subdivision thereof. Issuance of the 2005 Bonds does 
not directly, indirectly, or contingently obligate the Stateor apolitical subdivision of thestate to apply money from, or 
levy or pledge, any form of taxation to the payment of the 2005 Bonds. The Corporation has no taxing power. See 
"SECURITY FOR THE 2005 BONDS." 

DESCRIPTION O F  THE 2005 BONDS 

'lhc lulloning Ir :I \uliinlary o i  cur1.1i11 pro% i\ion\ o i  I ~ L .  21105 R O I I ~ S .  For : ~ d d ~ t ~ o ~ i ; ~ l  Jc!.t~Icd infurn~:~~~on 
rclatinv to ihc ?uOj Bunds. bzc ":\PPENDIX I1 -THE INDENTURE" or ',\PPENDIY Ill - FIRST SUPPLEhlENI'AL 

General 

The 2005 Bonds will be dated, will mature, and will bear interest perannum as set forth on the insidecover page 
of this Official Statement. The 2005 Bonds will bear interest from their dated date until maturity or date of redemption. 
Interest on the 2005 Bonds will he calculated on the basis of a three l~undred sixty (360) day year consisting of twelve 
thirty (30) day months. Interest on the 2005 Bonds will be payable semiannually on January I and July I of each year, 
will1 the first Interest Payment Date being July 1,2005. The 2005 Bonds will be initially registered in the lia~ne of Cede 
& Co.. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York. New York ("DTC") and held in DTC's book-entry 
system (thc "Book-Entry System"). Individual purchases of interest in the2005 Bonds will be made in book-entry only 
form i n  the principal amount of $5.000 or my integral multiple thereof within a maturity. So long as the 2005 Bonds 
are licld in the Book-Entry System, DTC (or a successor securities depository) or its nominee will be the rcgistcrcd 



owner of thc 2005 Bonds for all purposes of the Indenture, the 2005 Bonds, and this Official Statement, and payincnts 
01' principal of and interest on the 2005 Bonds will be made solely through the facilities of DTC. See. "APPENDIX VI-- 
INFORMATION REGARDING THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY--Book-Entry System'' herein. 

Delivery of Bond Certificates 

In the event the Corporation, in its sole discretion, determines that the actual purchaser of each 2005 Bond 
should obtain bond certificates, the Corporation may, at its own expense, cxecute and deliver the 2005 Bonds in the form 
of fully registered certilicates, which would he available for distribution to such purchasers or their nominees. In such 
event, principal, redemption price (if my), and interest with respect to the 2005 Bonds will be payable to Bondholders 
in accordance with terms of the Indenture. 

Redemption Provisions 

The 2005 Bonds are not subject lo rcdemption prior lo their respective scheduled maturities. 

Additional Bonds 

The Corporation may issue additional Series of Bonds under the Master Indenture from time to time, payable 
on a lien b;~sis senior to, on a parity with or subordinate lo a Class or Clxscs of Outstanding Bonds. The issuance of 
Additional Bonds is subject to, among otherthings, consentoftheInsurer, and receiptofRating Confirmation (including 
conlirmation of shadow rating) prior to issuance 

The Trustee 

The Corporation has appointed U.S. Bank National Association, Seattle, Washington, as Trustee for the 2005 
Bonds. TheTrusteeis to c m y  out such duties as arcassigned to it under theIndenture. Inentering into and negotiating 
the terms ofthe Indenture, the Tmstce is not acting in any fiduciary capacity. the Trustee acts solely for itself and in its 
own interests rather than on behalf of the Bondholders or prospective Bondholders. After issuance of the 2005 Bonds, 
IheTrustecacts pursuant to the specific terms of the Indenture. In doing so. theTrustee is a fiduciary only for the limited 
purposes of carrying out those responsibilities explicitly dcscribed in the Indenture. The Trustee does not at any time 
assume any other duties or become or agree to act as a general fiduciary with respect to the Bondholders. Except for 
the contcnts oftliis paragraph. the Trustee has not reviewed or participated in the prepamtion of this Official Statement 
and assumes no responsibility for the nature, contents, accuracy, or completeness of the inlbrmation set forth in this 
Oflicial Statement or lor the recitals contained in the Indenture or the 2005 Bonds, or for the validity, sufficiency, or 
Icgal effect of any such documents. The Trustee has no oversight responsibility, and is not accountable, for the use or 
application by the Corporation of any of the 2005 Bonds authenticated or delivcred pursuant to the Indenture or the use 
or application of the proceeds of such 2005 Bonds by the Corporation exccpt lor amounts in the Reserve Fund. The 
Trustee has not evaluated the risks, benefits, or propriety of any investment i n  the 2005 Bonds and makes no 
representation and has reached no conclusion, regarding the value or condition of any assets pledged or assigned as 
security for the 2005 Bonds, or the investment quality of the 2005 Bonds, about all of which the Trustee expresses no 
opinion and expressly disclaims the expertise lo evaluate. 

PLAN OF FINANCING 

Gcncral 

The primaly purpose of the Issuance of the 2005 Bonds is to provide monies to the State of Alaska for capital 
projcct expenditures. 2005 Bond proceeds will also be used to make a Capital Reserve Fund deposit and pay costs of 
issuance of the 2005 Bonds. 

In connection with the issuance of the 2005 Bonds, the Corporation will deposit certain non-federal education 
loans (in an approximate principal amount of $90 million) into the Pledged Loan Fund. The Corporation will also 



transfer certain cash and investment to the Capital Reserve Fund which, together with a ponion of the 2005 Bond 
proceeds, will satisfy the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement. See, "SOURCES AND USES TABLE herein. 

Assumptions Considered in Structuring the 2005 Bonds 

In structuring the 2005 Bonds, the Corporation examined the existing education loan ponfolio to be credited 
to the Pledged Loan Fund under the Indenture. The Corporation then made certain assumptions regarding such loans 
which IheCorporation believes to be reasonable based upon its cxperienceand which arenot controverted by actual facts 
known to the Corporation. The niaterial assumptions made by the Corporation arc summarized below. For additional 
information on Plcdged Loans, see "SECURITY FOR THE 2005 Bonds -The Pledged Loans" herein. 

Characteristics of Pledged Loans. Thecharacteristics of the Pledged Loans described in the following charts 
pertain only to those Pledged Loans as of December 31,2004, and has been prepared by the Corporation: 

Borrower Pavmcnt Status 

School 
Grace 
Deferment 
Repayment 
TOTAL 

Interest Rate Cateeorv 

8% 
8.60% 
8.90% 
9% 
TOTAL 

Characteristics of 
Pledeed Loans 

Characteristics of 
Pledeed Loans 

Percentaee 
17.7% 

The characteristics of Pledged Loans held under the Indenture will change over time. No assurance can be 
given that such changes will not be signillcant or that they will not be adverse. See "SECURITY FOR THE 2005 
BONDS - The Plcdged Loans." 



Loan Delinquencies and Defaults 

The Pledged Loans are deemed to be i n  default wlien payments becomeonehundred eighty (1 80) days past due. 
The current default rate for all Pledged Loans is 9.3% as of December 3 1,2004. The Corporation has assumed a default 
rate of 14% for management cash flow purposes. 

The following table summarizes the delinquency Fates for the Pledged Loans i n  repayment. 

Acing Category Actual 
Current $37,659,290 

Percentaee 
59.1% 

30-59 days 8,322,988 13.0 
60-89 days 4,08 1,526 6.4 
90-1 19 days 2,162,610 3.4 
120-170 davs 3.624.576 5.7 

Program Expenses. It has been assumed that annual program expenses of the Corporation for Pledgcd 
Loans held under the Indenture, which include the Corporation's administrative cxpcnses, the cost of servicing the 
Pledged Loans, and the fees and expenscs of the Trustee will be approximately one and one-quarter of one perccnt 
(1.25%) of the aggregate principal amount of Pledged Loans. 

Borrower Benefits. It has been assumed that the Corporation will provide an interest rcbatc on the 
outstanding principal balance on Pledged Loans that will range from three-tenths of one percent (.3%) to seven-tenths 
of one pcrcent (.7%) for all loans that carry an interest rate higher than eight and three-tenths of one percent (8.3%). 

It has also been assumed that the Corpmtion will offer a qumer of one percent (.25%) interest rate reduction 
on Pledged Loans being repaid using the Corporalion's Serial Easy Pay Plan ( "SEPP) or any successor program. The 
SEPP allows borrowers to repay Pledged Loans using an electronic recurring payment option. 

INSURANCE ON THE 2005 BONDS 

Set forth below is a briefsummary ofcertain information concerning Financial Security AssuranceInc. (rclkrred 
to herein as "FSA or "Insurer") and the terms of the municipal bond insurance policy (defined below as the "Municipal 
Bond Insurance Policy"). Information with respect lo FSA has been supplied by FSA and no representation is made 
herein as to the accuracy or adequacy of such infornlation or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such 
information subsequent to the date hereof. PUKSUANTTOTHETERMS OFTHEINDENTURE, FORSO LONG ASTHEPOLICY 
SHALLRE IN EFFECT WITH RESPECTTOTHE2005 BONDS, THE INSURER SHALL BECONSIDEREDTO RETHEO\VNER OFTHE 
2005 BONDS FOR PURPOSES OF VOTING OR GIVING CONSENTS UNDEIITHE INDENTURE. For a more complete description 
of the rights of the Bond Insurer see "APPENDIX I11 -FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE." 

Bond Insurance Policy 

Concurrently with the issuanceoftheBonds, Financial Security AssuranceInc. ("Financial Security") will issue 
its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy guarantees the schcdulcd payment of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds when due as set forth io the tbmi of the Policy included as an exhibit to this 
OlTicial Statement. 

The Policy is not covered by any insurance security or guaranty fund established under New York, California, 
Connecticut or Florida insurance law. 



Financial Sccurity Assurance Inc. 

Financial Security is a New York domiciled linancial guaranty insurance company and a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("Holdings"). Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of Dexia, 
S.A., a publicly held Belgian corporation, and of Dexia Credit Local, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexia, S.A. 
Dexia, S.A.. through its bank subsidiaries, is primarily eiigtaged in the business of public finance, banking and asset 
miinagernent in France, Belgium and other European countries. No shareholder of Holdings or Financial Security is 
liable for the obligations of Financial Security. 

At September 30, 2001 Financial Security's total policyholders' surplus and contingency reserves were 
approximately $2,255.933,000and its total unearned premium rcserve was approximately $1.561,771,000 in accordance 
with statutory accounting practices. At September 30, 2004. Financial Security's total shareholder's equity was 
approximately $2,612,989,000 and its total net unearned premium reserve was approximately $1,286,985,000 in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The financial statements included as exhibits to the annual and quarterly reports filed by Holdings with the 
Securities and ExchangeComrnission are hereby incorporated herein by reference. Also incorporated herein by reference 
are any such financial statements so liled from the dnte of this Official Statement until the termination of the offering 
of the Bonds. Copies of materials incorporated by reference w~ll  be provided upon request to Financial Security 
Assurance Inc.: 350 Park Avenue. New York, Ncw York 10022, Attention: Communications Department (telephone 
(21 2) 826-01 00). 

The Policy does not protect investors against changes in market value of the Bonds, which market value may 
be impaired as a result of changes in prevailing interest rates, changes in applicable ratings or other causes. Financial 
Security makes no representation regarding the Bonds or the advisability of investing in the Bonds. Financial Security 
makes no representation regarding the Ofticial Statement, nor has it participated in the preparation thereof, except that 
Financial Security has provided to the Issuer the information presented under this caption for inclusion in the Official 
Statement. 

SECURITY FOR THE 2005 BONDS 

Gcncral 

The 2005 Bonds will be special, limited obligations of the Corporation secured solely from the payment of a 
pledge 01; or lien on, the Trust Estate for the 2005 Bonds provided by the Indenture on an equal and ratable basis. 

Property ofthe Corporation not expressly subject to the lien ofthe Indenture, including property withdrawn by 
the Corporation liom the Indenture free and clear of the lien created by thelndenture, may be applied by the Corporation 
to any lawful purpose it shall elect, and none of the Holders of 2005 Bonds or the Trustee shall have any right or 
authority to question or restrict such application. The Corporation may modify and/or withdraw, free and clear ofthe 
lien created by the Indenture, Pledged Loans, cash and other property creditcd to the Indenture upon compliance with 
certain requirements specified in the Indenture. 

THE 2005 BONDS ARE SPECIAL,LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OFTHE CORPORATION AND ARE PAYABLE 
S0I.EI.Y FROM THE Kli\'I:SCES, ASSETS 1 S D  I:L'NDS I'LEDGBD THEHEL~OR USDER THE IKDEN'I'L'KE. IN 
ADDIl'ION.'I'H~?O05 BONDS DO NOTCOKSTITUTE AS ISDEUTEDSESS OR OTHEK LIAUILITY OFTHE STATE 
O1~,\I.~\Sti,\OR01~.\SYPOI.ITI(~AI.SUUDIVISION'l'HI~:K601~,I~~XCI~:l'l"fHl~~COKI'OKATIOS,OR Al'I.I(UGEOF 
'I'HI: 141'1 l i  AKD CHI~:VI'I'OFTHE CORPORATIOU.I'Hli STATI: 01: .\I...lSK..\ OK ANY I'OI.ITICAL SUI1DIVISlON 
THEHIIOI;. ISSU.\SCE 01' 'THC: 20115 l1ONDS DOES XOT DIRECTLY. INDIRECTLY, OK CONT1NCENTI.Y 
OIII.I(~,\TE I'HK SI'XI'E OK .\ 1'OI.l'I'IChl. SUBDIVISION OF THE ST:\TE TO APP1.Y .\IOSIIY I:RO\I, OR LEVY 
OR PLEDGE,ANY FORM OFTAXATIONTO THE PAYMENTOFTHE2005BONDS. THE CORPORATION HAS NO 
TAXING POWER. 
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The 2005 Bonds are secured on an equal and ratable basis under the Indenture by a pledgeof all right, title, and 
interest of the Corporation in, to, and under (i) the Pledged Loans. Pledged Receipts, and Pledged Loan Notes including 
all extensions and renewals 01-the terms thereof, if any, together with all right, title, and interest of the Corporation 
therein, including, but without li~nitingthegenerality ofthe ibregoing, thepresentandcontinuingrighttoclaim,collcct, 
and receive any of the moneys, income, revenues, issues, profits, and other amounts payable or receivable thereunder, 
to bring actions and proceedings thereunder or for the enforcement thereof, and to do any and all things which the 
Corporation is or may become entitled to do under the Pledged Loan Notes: (ii) all Funds and Accounts and moneys. 
investments, and securities held by the Trustee including, but not limited to, undisbursed proceeds of the 2005 Bonds, 
and any and all other real or personal property of every name and nature by delivery or by writing of any nature 
conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred as and for additional security under tlie Indenture, to the extent 
so conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred by the Corporation or by anyone in its behalf, or with its 
written consent, lo the T ~ s t e e ;  and ( i i i )  any and all proceeds of the foregoing, subject, in all cases, to the terms and 
provisions of the Indenture governing the use and application of all such property and rights in propeny, including the 
Corporation's right to withdraw, free and clear of the lien created by the Indenture, Pledged Loans, cash, and other 
property held under or credited to the Indenture. The foregoing security is collectively referred to as the "Trust Estate." 

Payments of principal and interest on the 2005 Bonds is further secured by the Capital Reserve Fund. See 
"SECURITY FOR THE 2005 BONDS -Capital Reserve Fund" herein. 

Funds and Accounts Under the Indenture 

The Indenture creates the State Projects Account as a special account within the Education Loan Trust Fund. 
The Indenture creates within the Stale Projects Account, the following trust funds: the State Projects Fund, the Revenue 
Fund, the Capital Reserve Fund, and the Pledged Loans Fund. 

State Projects Fund. A State Projects Fund is established under the Indenture. Amounts held in the State 
Projects Fund will only be used to pay (i) costs of the State Projects. (ii) Costs of Issuanceof the Bonds, (iii) the principal 
of or Redemption Price, if my, and interest on the Bonds, or (iv) for such other purpose its the Corporation may direct 
in writing. 

RevenueFund. PledgedReceipts, together with all other funds received undertheIndenmre and not otherwise 
directed under the Indenture, will he credited lo the Revenue Fund, except that Pledged Receipts which are investment 
earnings ofthe Capital Reserve Fund will be credited to the Cap~rnl Reserve Fund. Funds credited to the Revenue Fund 
will be transferred at any time i n  the order and amounts prescribed below: 

( I )  to the Corporation, the amount certilied in writing by the Corporation as necessary to make any rebate 
payments or Yield Reduction Payments required to comply with the indenture; 

(2) to the Interest Account, the amount necessary lo increase the amount in such Account so that it at least 
equals unpaid interest on the Outstanding Bonds of the highest class coming due within the next Business Day (or to 
honor any reimbursement or payment obligation under any Credit Enhancement or Interest Rate Exchange Agreement 
corresponding to the payment of such interest): 

(3) to the Principal Account, the amount necessary to increase the amount in such Account so that it at least 
equals the unpaid Principal Installment on the Outstanding Bonds of the highest class coming due within the next 
Business Day (or lo honor any reimbursement or payment obligation under any Credit Enhancement or Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreement corresponding to the payment of such principal): 

(4) to the Interest Account lirst and Principal Account second to make the payments described i n  (2) and (3) 
above, By Class in Descending Order of Priority with respect to any Outstanding Bonds other than Class I Bonds; 

(5) to the Capital Reserve Fund, the amount, if any, necessary lo cause the amount in such fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement; 



(6) to the Corporation, as directed in writing, for the payment of Program Expenses, or the establishment of 
reserves therefor, the amount needed and required to pay a portion of the reasonable and necessary Program Expenses; 
nrovided that the amount so oaid to the Cornontion or set aside in reserve during anv Fiscal Year for the navlnent of 

b ,  . , 
Program Expenses may not exceed 1.25% of the average principal amount of Pledged Loans outstanding during the 
preceding Fiscal Year or such greater or lesser amount as may be set forth in a Supplemental Indenture and supported 
with a Rating Conformation; 

(7) any remaining amounts shall be held in the Revenue Fund and applied as provided in the foregoing 
paragraphs or othenvise as provided i n  the Indenture. 

Interest Account and Principal Account. Theindcn~urecreates within theRevenueFund thelnterest Account 
and Principal Account. 

TheTrustee will pay out of the Interest Account to the Paying Agent for theBonds (i) on or before each Interest 
Payment Date, the amounts required for the payment of interest due on the Outstanding Bonds on such date and (ii) on 
or before the redemption date ordateof purchase, the amounts required for the payment of accrued interest on theBonds 
redeemed or purchased for retirement, unless the payment of such accrued interest is otherwise provided for. 

TheTrustee will pay out ofthe Principal Account to the Paying Agent fortheBonds on or before each Principal 
installment Date the amount, i f  any, required for the payment of principal due on such date, and such amount will be 
applied by the Paying Agent to such payment. 

Capital Reserve Fund. The Act provides that, for the purpose of securing one or more issues of bonds of the 
Corporation, the Boxd may establish oneor nlorespecial funds, called "Capital Reserve Funds." and may pay into those 
capital reserve funds the proceeds of the sale of bonds and other money made available to the Corporation for the 
purposes of the capital reserve funds. The Capital Reserve Fund established under the Indenture is such a "capital 
reserve fund." A capital reserve fund may be established only if the Board determines that the establislnnent of the fund 
would enhance the marketability of the bonds. The Board has so found with respect to the 2005 Bonds. 

Money in the Capital Reserve Fund may be used as required only for the (i) payment of the principal of, and 
interest on, the Bonds or of the Sinking Fund Installments with respect to the Bonds; (ii) purchase or redemption of 
Bonds; or (iii) payment of a redemption premium required to be paid when Bonds are redeemed before maturity. 
However, money in the Capital Reserve Fund may not be withdrawn if the withdrawal would reduce the amount therein 
to less than the "Capital Reserve Fund Requirement," except for the purpose of making payment, when due, of principal 
of or interest or redemption premiums on Bonds. 

All incomeeamedorgains realized as a result of i~lvestmentsofamountson deposit in thecapital ReserveFund 
will remain therein unless the Trustee determines there is an excess of the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement and 
transfers such excess to the Revenue Fund. 

Upon reden~ption of Bonds of a particular Series with amounts other than those on deposit in the Capital 
Reserve Fund, theTrustee will calculate theamount by which theamount ondeposit in thecapital Reserve Fundexceeds 
the Capilal Reserve Fund Requirement immediately following the redemption of Bonds and such excess will on the 
redemption date be transferred into the Revenue Fund. 

Thecapital ReserveFund Requirement for theBonds, including the 2005 Bonds, is an amount equal tothe least 
of the following (i) 10% of the stated principal of Bonds then Outstanding; (ii) 125% of the average annual principal and 
interest requirements on all Bonds then Outstanding; or (iii) the maxinlum annual principal and interest requirements 
on all Bonds then Outstanding. The Capital Reserve Fund Requirement is expected to be approximately $8,830,500 
million upon issuance of the 2005 Bonds. 

The Indenture permits the Corporation to fund the Capital Reserve Fund with Eligible Capital Reserve Asscts, 
which include, among other things, leuers of credit, surety bonds, and investment agreements. 



The Act requires that the Chair of the Board cenily in writing to the Governor and the State Legislature, by 
January I5 of each year, if any amount is required to restore a Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund 
Requirenient. The State Legislature may, but is not obligated to, appropriate to the Corporation the amount cenified by 
the Chair. Tlie Corporation is required to deposit the amounts appropriated during a fiscal year in the proper capital 
reserve fund. Tliis feature of the Act does not create a debt or liability of the State. 

Pledged Loans Fund. (A) Upon payment or redemption of all the Outstanding 2005 Bonds and payment in 
full to FSA ofall amounts due under the Insurance Agreement. the balance, ifany, remaining in thePlcdgcd Loans Fund 
will be transferred to tlie Corporation free and clear of tlie lien and pledge of the Indenture. At any time, the Corporation 
may direct the Trustee to withdraw Pledged Loans or other property from llic Pledged Loan Fund, and the Trustee shall 
withdraw such Pledged Loans or other property and deliver them to the Corporation lice and clear of tlle lien and pledge 
of the Indenture, provided that: 

(i) the Trustee and FSA receives a Rating Confirmation taking into consideration such withdrawal of 
Pledged Loans or other property; 

(ii) the Trustee and FSA receives from the Corporation a Certificate that no Event of Default and no 
payment default with respect to the 2005 Bonds exists or remains uncured, and no Event of Default 
or payment default with respect to the 2005 Bonds as to which the Trustee lias knowledge shall exist 
and remain uncured (unless the withdrawal shall cure tlie Event of Default or payment default); 

(iii) thecapital Reserve Fund will be funded toat least thecapital Reserve Requirement after giving effect 
to the withdrawal; and 

(iv) the Corporation cenilies to the Trustee and FSA lliat all conditions precedent to the withdrawal of 
Pledged Loam and other property pursuant the Indenture will have been satisfied. 

(B) TheCorporation may at any timesell, assign, transfer orotherwise disposeof a Pledged Loan ataprice 
(i) at l e s t  equal to the principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) (a) when the amounts on deposit in the Funds 
created by the Indenture are at least equal to the principal amount of the Outstanding 2005 Bonds or (b) to pay current 
debt service on the 2005 Bonds; or (ii) lower than the principal amount tliereof (plus accrued interest) i f  tile Corporation 
delivers to the Trustee a Rating Confirmation taking into consideration such sale, assignment, transfer, or other 
disposition of such Pledged Loan at such lower price. The Corporation will sell Pledged Loans if necessary to prevent 
the occurrence of an Event of Default. The Corporation will also sell Pledged Loans if necessary to prevent a default 
in the payment of the principal of or interest on any ofthe2005 Bonds when due, unless suchsale would causean Event 
of Default to occur. 

Creation of Additional Funds, Accounts and Subaccounts. TheTrustee will establish within any Fund such 
Accounts, in addition to the Accounts establislied under the terms of the Indenture, for the purposes of sucll~~und as the 
Corporation may direct in writing and will in like manner establish within any Account such additional subaccounts for 
the purposes of such Account as the Corporation so delemines 

The Pledged Loans 

The Pledged Loans consist of alternative loans originated from July I, I987 through June 30,2002. Borrower 
eligibility criteria varied depending on the year of origination. 

Loans made July 1, 1987 tlirougli June 30, 1995, do not bear interest while a student is in academic good 
standing and is enrolled or in deferment as described below. Thesc loans do, however, accrue interest during a twelve- 
month grace period following termination of eligible enrollment, although such interest is not due and payable during 
such period. 



Loans made on or after July I, I995 through June 30, 1996 do not bear interest while a student is in academic 
good standing and enrolled or in deferment as described below. These loans accrue interest during a six-month grace 
period following termination of full-time enrollment, although it is not due and payable during such period. The 
Corporation capitalizes unpaid accrued interest on these loans at the end of the grace period. 

Loans made on or after July 1. 1996 through June 30,2002 do not bear interest while a student-borrower is in 
academic good standing and continuously enrolled at least half-time. These loans accrue interest during deferment as 
described below and during a six-month grace period following termination of half-time enrollment. The Corporation 
capitalizes unpaid accrued interest at the end of the grace and deferment periods for these loans. 

The Corporation credits the lirst loan payments in the repayment period lo accrued interest. During this time, 
interest continues lo accrue on the loans but not on the accrued interest. 

Repayment ofthe principal of, and interest on, a loan begins no later thanone year afterthe borrower's eligible 
enrollment terminates for loans made on or before June 30, 1995, and six months after such termination for loans made 
after June 30, 1995 through June 30,2002. Full-time Pledged Loans awarded on or before June 30, 1996, providcd for 
repayment of the total amount owed in periodic installments over ten years from the commencement of repayment, 
except as provided below with respect to deferments, and full-time Pledged Loans awarded alier June 30. 1996, provide 
for repayment of the total amount owed in periodic installments over I5 years from the commencement of repayment. 
except as provided below with respect to deferments. IftheCommission and the borrower agree to adifferent repayment 
schedule. the borrower is required to repay the loan i n  accordance with such agreement. A borrower may make payments 
earlier than required. 

Pledged Loans may be eligible for various loan deferments. Periodic installments of principal and interest are 
deferred on all loans (except as provided in the next paragraph) during the deferment periods described in the next 
sentence and, for loans made prior to July 1, 1996, interest also does not accrue during such periods. These deferment 
periods apply while a student-borrower is: ( I )  returned to enrolled student status at an accredited institution; (2) serving 
an initial period of up to six years of aclive duty as a member of the armed forces or public health services of the United 
States; (3) serving up to three years as a full-time volunteer under the Peace Corps Act; (4) serving up to three years a 
full-time volunteer under the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973; ( 5 )  seeking and unable to find employment in 
the United States (but only for a one-lime period of up to twelve months); and (6) any period during which borrower is 
fifty percent (50%) or moredisabled ascenificd by acompetcnt medical authority. For Pledged Loans madeon or before 
June 30. 1996. there is a six-month grace period following any of the deferment periods. However, interest accrues 
during that six-month grace period following deferment on loans made July 1, 1987 through June 30, 1995. For Pledged 
Loans made after June 30. 1996, the Program provides for a loan defemient for up to two years if the borrower serves 
as a full-time volunteer under the National and Community Service Trust Act of 1993 (Americorps). Periodic 
installments of principal and interest are deferred and interest will accrue during that deferment period on all loans. 
There is no grace period following this deferment. 

For loans made on or after Julv 1. 1996. oeriodic installments o f ~ r i n c i ~ a l  and interest are deferred during the - 
pcrioJsdes<rihcd in  t l ~ i  prc;cJi~ig p:~r:y:~ph: hoacwr. intcrc,t ~lccrucs Juring thu,c pcr~ods iinJ ( I )  IIIC d ~ i c r ~ ~ i c ~ ~ t  pcnuJ 
i, li~iii~cd 10 111rec p r s  ,luring t11c hurru<<cr's ;tcti!c duty ;I, :t n ~ ~ n i h x  o i  111c ;irnieJ iorccb o i t l ~ c  Unilcd St:~tc\ (r.itlicr 
III:III 4 ,  >~:LI\ , ;  xnd (2, :i hxruncr 111u\t he 100i.> diwhlcd :I% ccnilicJ l ~ y  :I compc~ent mcJi~.;tl :tuIl~ority (r.i!licr ~ I I : I I I  50rt 
or more diiahlcJ). Tl~crc i, no p r c  period tollowing IIle JAcrnm:nt period, on l,,:in$ n idc  ; m r  Junc 3U. 19.96. 

Inc:i%c~~il~:~rJ.~l~ip,~I~cC~n~~ni~~io~~ m;ry uhtcnd rqxllynlcnl u i a  lum iur:111 dditia1id p~'riudoiupto live y~.ar\. 
Add~tiv~i:rlly, l l ~ u  C o ~ ~ ~ m i s ~ ~ i n  m:iv providl: 111s h.,rrd!rer aith ;I lo,~n iorbc.lr;lnx or i ~ l l e r n ~ I ~ \ c  re1)~ynlent sehcdul~! to 
provide short- or long-term payment relief. 

Half-Time Education Loans. In I991 an amcndmcnt to the Act allowed theCommission to award loans to half- 
time students beginningJuly I, 1991. Eligibility requirements IbrhalGtime Pledged Loans are similar to that of full-time 
Pledged Loans, except that the student: ( I )  must beor intend to be enrolled at an eligible in-State institution, or enrolls 
in an out-of-state institution hut is pllysically present in the Svate when :atending t l x  program; (2) must be or intend to 



be enrolled as at least a half-time student (a minimum of six undergraduate or graduate hours or a minimum of fifteen 
hours per weekor a minimum of twelve weeks for vocational students) during the period for which the loan is requested. 
Deferment rights are similar to full-time Pledged Loans. 

SOURCES AND USES TABLE 

In connection with the issuance of the 2005 Bonds, the following tabledelails the application of the 2005 Bond 
proceeds and the transfer by the Corporation of education loans and cash. 

SOURCES 

Principal Amount of the 2005 Bonds 
Corporation Contribution (education loans)"' 
Corporation Contribution (cash) 
Premiumfl)iscount 

Total 

USES 

Deposit to Stae  Projects Fund 
Deposit to the Capital Reserve Fund 
Deposit to Pledged Loans Fund 
Underwriter's Discount and Issuance Costs 
Deposit to Revenue Fund 

Total 

(*) EXCIU~CS Accrued lnlertsl on Studml Loans 
('*) Includcs bond insurance premium. 

Collateralimtion. Upon the issuanceofthe2005 Bonds,andafter givingeffecttothecontribulionofeducation 
loans and cash by the Corporation described above under "Use of Funds." it is anticipated that the principal amount of 
Pledged Loans and the value of other assets pledged under the Indenture will he equal to approxinlately 112% of the 
aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Bonds. The Indenture does not require that any level of collatemlizalion be 
maintained but does require that cenain tests be satisfied prior to the removal of assets from the lien of the Indenture. 

THE ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATIONIALASKA COMMISSION 
ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 

Commission - Gencral Information 

State law established the Alaska Commission on Posuecondary Education (the "Commission") in 1974. The 
Commission's primary purpose is to enable residents of the State to evaluate their postsecondary educational needs and 
available resources, to enable Slate residents to make informed decisions regarding the disposition of those resources, 
and to assure State residents of the opponunily to satisfy those postsecondary needs and goals. The Commission consists 
of founeen members representing public and private postsecondary education institutions in the State, advisory groups, 
and members of the legislature. Thecommission appoints an ExecutiveDirector. The ExecutiveDirector then appoints 
persons to staff positions authorized by the Commission. 

The Commission has offices i n  Juneau and Anchorage, Alaska. The principal office for the Commission is 
located at 3030 Vintage Boulevard, Juneau. Alaska 99801-7109. The telephone number for the Commission is (907) 
465-6740. The Attorney Generill of the State serves as counsel to the Commission. 



Staffing of the Conimission 

The Commission includes b u r  divisions which are managed by a six-member professional team. These 
individuals direct the nffairs of the staff and report to the Executive Director. The four divisions are Finance, Loan 
Operations and Outreach. Information Support Services, and the Executive Office. Ms. Sheila King supervises the 
Finance Division, which is composed of accounting and procurement. She is assisted by Ms. Elizabeth McDonough. 
The Loan Operations and Outreach Division is directed by Ms. StephanicButler. This Division is responsible lbrcitizen 
outreach and program marketing initiatives, strategic analysis, loan origination, customer service, deferment and 
forgiveness processing, skip tracing, due diligence activity on delinquent loans, records, and other specialized student 
aid proErams. The Information Support Services Division is directed by Mr. Kenneth Dodson. All development and 

Executive Director, is managed by the two other members of the professional team, Administrative Officer Frank Love. 
and the Internal Auditor (the Internal Auditor position is currently vacant). This division is responsible for overall 
agency management and specifically for internal audit, human resource management, institutional authorization, and 
procedural compliance with all relevant State and federal statutes, regulation and subregulatory policies. 

As oflanualy I. 2005, the Commission had one hundred and four employees. These positions are assigned as 
follows: six to the Executive Oflice, twelve to Finance, seventy to Loan Operations and Outreach, and sixteen to 
Inlbrmalion Support Services. 

Executive and Senior Staff of the Commission 

Ms. Dime Burru~is, fiecrrrive Director of the Co~mnissiori. Ms. Barrans a~surned the duties of Executive 
Director of the Commission and Executive Officer of the Corporation on July 10. 1995. Ms. Barrans joined the staff 
in January 1983 and held several positions with the agency, most recently serving as Program Coordinator from 1989 
to 1993 and Director of Student Financial Aid Programs in 1994195. Originally appointed in 1996, in 2003 Ms. Bamans 
was re-appointed by Governor Frank Murkowski to serve on the Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education. 
Ms. Barrans currently serves as Chair of the Western Interstate Commission for the 20042005 term. Ms. Barrans also 
jointly serves with the President ofthe University of Alaska as the State Higher Education Executive Officers for the 
State. Ms. Barrans currently serves as Chair-Elect of the State Higher Education Officers Organization. Ms. Barrans 
received a bachelor of arts degree from Barnard College of Columbia University in 1982. 

Ms.Shcilu King, CPA, ClriefFi~~ur~cialOfficer. Ms. King joined the Con~~nission in May 1998. Priorto joining 
the Cornnission. Ms. King was the Accountant IVMJontroller for the Alaska Industrial Development and Export 
Authority from May 1994 to April I998 and worked as a Supervising Senior Auditor for KPMG LLP (formerly known 
as KPMG Peat Manvick LLP) from February 1990 to May 1994. From 1981 to 1990, Ms. King workcd in the 
accounting lield in a variety of capacities. Ms. King received a bachelor of science degree in business administration 
from University of Texas at Dallas in 1989. 

Ms. Eliznberh McDo~io~rgli. Senior Accorrrrrar!r. Ms. McDonough originally joined the Comn~ission in 1988 
and served in the linance unit in a variety of capacities through 1993. From 1988 to 1991 she worked as an Accountant, 
from 1991 to 1992 she was the Finance Manager, and from 1992 to 1993 she was the Principal Analyst in charge of 
system projects. Ms. McDonough again joined the Commission in 1994 and since that t in~e has been the Senior 
Accountant in the Finance Division. Ms. McDonough received a bachelor of science degree in business administration 
with an accounting emphasis from California State University, Long Beach in 1983. 

Ms.Srep/ia~rieBsrler. Directoroflou~r Opera r io~an~~d  O~rrreaclr. Ms. Butlerjoined theCommission in August 
1997 as Institutional Authorization Program Coordinator. She was promoted to Director of Institutional Relations in 
June 1998. In October 2001 she accepted her current position. Prior to coming to the Commission, she worked ibr the 
University of Alaska Anchorage as Administrative Manager from November 1992 to 1997 and 1nlbnationlSupport 
Services Manager from 1990 to 1992. Ms. Butler is a Certified Internal Auditor through lhe International Institute for 
Internid Auditing and ii Certified Government Professional. Ms. Butler received a master of science in business 



administrationlmanngement liom Boston University in 1987 and a bachelor of arts in English from Barry University in 
Miami, Florida. in 1983. 

Mr. Ke~lrrerh Dodson, Direcror of l~for~~mrior~ Brpport Services. Mr. Dodson joined the Commission in 
Scplc~nbx 199-l ;IS U~rcauro i l~ i iu rn~~t iu~ i  Suppun Surv~c,..;. I'r~ur locoming lo the Conlmi,\iun I12 wl~scnipl~~)cd iron1 
1988 untll I00-l h\ UNII'AC Scnii: Corn.)r.ition ~n Dunwr. Color;do, tirst ;is a I'rocr.~nlmcr in  1988 sdv.t~~c~nc 10 ~ ~ - ~- 
Information services Supervisor i n  1990. in September of 1991 Mr. ~ o j s o n  assumed ;he role as Information Services 
Supervisor of Regulation and Compliance Support where his team successfully implemented the changes required by 
the 1992 Reauthorization Act as well as the Rebate Eligible Loans provisions. Mr. Dodson served on tile steering 
committee for the Rocky Mountain Chapter of the Project Management Workbench Users Group and was on the 
planning committee for the Guaranteed Student Loan Users Group. The Commission services the Corporation's loan 

. , ~ 

student loan servicers currently using HELMS.) MI Dodson ;eccived h certificate in Co;nputcr ~nfdrmation Systems 
from Tucunicari Area Vocational School in Tucumcari, New Mexico, in 1988. 

Mr. Frank Love, Ad~~rblistrariw Ofjicer. Mr. Love joined the Commission in July 1997. Prior to joining the 
Com-mission, Mr. Love's professional life was substantially spent a,. a 32-year careermemberof theUnited States Coast 
Guard. For the latter eighteen years of his service. Mr. Love served in various capacities as a human resources manager, 
engaged in personnel management, employee relations, career development, and staff training initiatives. Mr. Love has 
received certificates in Human Relations from the Defense Equal Opportunity Management Institute and Cliief Petty 
Oflicer Training from the US. Coast Guard Training Center in addition to receiving ongoing training in Human 
Resources issues. 

Corporation - General Information 

In 1987, State law created the Corporation. The statute creating the Corporation is codified at Alaska Statutes 
14.42.100 through 14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). Pursuant lo the Act, the Corporation is a "public corporation and 
government instrumentality within the Department of Education and Early Development but having a legal existence 
independent of and separate from tile state." Its primary purpose is to finance education lozins. A combination of 
revenues generated from the issuance of bonds and loan repayments fund the Program. 

The Corporation is governed by a board of directors (the "Board"). The supervision of the administration of 
the Corporation is delegated lo the Executive Oflicer of the Corporation (the "Executive Officer"), who is also the 
Executive Director of the Commission. 

The principal office of theCorporation is located at 3030 Vinlage Boulevard, Juneau. AIaska99801-7109. The 
telephone number for the Corporation is (907) 465-6740. The Auorney General ol'tlic State serves as counsel to the 
Corporation. 

TheCorpomtion lias previously issued the following bonds: (i)$673,770,000principal amount of Student Loan 
Revenue Bonds under a trust indenture dated as of May I, 1988. as amended and supplemented, of which $267,950,000 
amount is currently outstanding, (ii) $224.61 5,000 principal amount of Education Loan Revenue Bonds under a master 
indenture dated as of June 1, 2002, as amended and supplemented, of which $198,215,000 amount is currently 
outstanding, and (iii) $75,140,000 principal amountofCapilal Project RevcnueBonds under an indenturedated February 
I, 2004, of which $69,175,000 is currently outstanding. 

Corporation Membership 

The Board consists of two menlbers of the Commission, the Commissioner of Revenue, the Commissioner of 
Administration, and the Comlnissioner of Conimerce, Community and Economic Development. The members of the 
Board who represent the Commission serve on the Board at the pleasure of the Governor, subject to their incumbency 
on h e  Commission. 



The ?able below identities the current members of the Corporation's Board (and, where applicable, their lirst 
delegates to the Board). 

Namc and Location -- 

Randy Simmons, Chair 
Anchorage. Alaska 

Bobette Bush, Vice Chair 
Aniak, Alaska 

William A. Corbus 
Juneau, Alaska 

Tom Boutin, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Ray Matiashowski 
Juneau, Alaska 

Edgar Blatchford 
Juneau. Alaska 

Greg Winegar, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Principal Occupation 

Vice President. IL Properties. Inc 
Commission Member 

School District Superintendent, Retired 
Commission Member 

Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Deputy Commissioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Commissioner 
Alaska Depanment of Administration 

Commissioner 
Alaska Depanment of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Development 

Director of the 
Alaska Division of Investments 

Mr .  Randy Sirnnioirs. Chair of rhe Corpororio~f orrdMember c~rr/fe C o ~ ~ ~ ~ i l i s s i o i ~ .  Mr. Simmons was appointed 
to theCommission in 2001 by the Governor and to the Board of theCorporation that same year. Mr. Simmons currently 
is the Vice President of operations at JL Properties. Inc. in Anchorage, where he oversees the management of 
commercial and residential properties and promotes the development of new projects. He previously served as 
Development and FinanceManager of the AlaskaIndustrial Development and Export Authority, coordinating economic 
development projects and the development of policy, and was promoted to Chief Executive Officer with the 
responsibility for encouraging economic development and diversification in the State. As CEO, he also served as the 
CEO of the Alaska Energy Authority, a billion-dollar State corporation responsible for State-owned energy projects. 
State energy policy, and rural energy programs. He has served a$ comptroller for the Alaska Depanment of 
Transportation and Public Facilities where he was promoted to Deputy Commissioner of Finance and Management, 
responsible for the administrative and financial functions of the department, as well as oversight of the Alaska Marine 
Highway System and International Airport System. Prior to his public sector service, Mr. Simmons was a la manager 
and supervisor at Coopers & Lybrand, CPA's, in Anchorage. Mr. Simmons earned his juris doctorate in 1979 from the 
University of Oregon. School of Law, and his bachelor of science in business administration in 1974. He is a certified 
public accountant and a member olthe Alarka State Bar. 

Ms. Boberre D. Brrslr. Vice Chair of rlrc Corporario~l and Merirber ofrhe Con~missioir. Ms. Bush was appointed 
to the Commission in I993 and was reappointed in 1997. Ms. Bush is retired, previously serving as the superintendent 
of the Kuspuk School District in Aniak, Alaska. She received her bachelor of ans degree in 1969 from Whitman College 
in Walla Walla, Washington, and a master of education degree in 1988 from the University of Alaska-Fairbanks. Her 
professional experience includes I I years of teaching, serving as curriculum coordinator and curriculum slafl' 
development director in the Kuspuk School District, principal of Aunti Mary Nicoli Elementaly, and interim 
superintendent i n  the Kuspuk School District prior to being named superintendent. Ms. Bush currently serves as a 
member of the College of Rural Alaska Council, Bethel Broadcasting, Incorporated, and the Kuskokwim College 
Council. 



Mr. Ka)' Mariaslruivski. Corrorrissiorler, Dc/~arfrr~crrr of ArIrr~irrisrrarir,rl. Mr. Matiashowski was appointed 
Commissioner in 2001. Previously in his role as Deputy Commission of the Department, Mr. Matiashowski oversaw 
the divisions of Administrative Services, Alaska Longevity Programs, Finance. General Services, Information 
Technology Group. Retirement and Benefits, Senior Services, and the Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Prior to 
Mr. Matiashowski's appointment as Deputy Commissioner, he owned and operated a real estate company in Ketchikan, 
Alaska. Mr. Matiashowski has considerable experience in sales, having worked for a number of sales-oriented 
organizations. He also served as legislative aide and Chief of Staff to Senator Lloyd Jones. Mr. Matiashowski is a 
member of Onlicron Delta Epsilon and the International Honor Society in economics. He earned his Bachelor of Arts 
in economics from the University of Washington, and is a I983 graduate of the institute on comparative political and 
economic systems, Georgetown University. 

Mr. HVilliarrr A.  Corbrrs. Contnris.siorrer, Deparorroir ofRei)cnuc. Mr. Corbus was appointed Commissioner on 
December 9,2002. Mr. Corhus recently retired as president of Alaska Electric Light and Power Company, the electrical 
utilitv forJuneau. where he had worked since 1970. Mr. Corbus served on the Alaska State Pension Investment Board ~. ~ - ~~-~~ ~~~ ~ ~ 

from 1993 to 1999, and on several bank boards in Alaska. He holds a bachelor's degree in industrial engineering from 
Sranford University and a master's degree in business administration from the AmosTuckGraduate School at Dartmouth 
College. Mr. Corhus is a Navy veteran, and worked in financial planning and accounting at a New York City firm after 
leaving the Navy in the 1960s. As Revenue Commissioner, Mr. Corbus serves on the Board of Trustees of the Alaska 
Permanent Fund Corporation, i n  addition to overseeing the tax, investment and public service functions of the 900- 
employee Department of Revenue. 

Mr. TornBostin.Depiry Corrrn~issiuner, Dc/~arfrncr~rofReverr~ie, Treosrrry ar~dTurDivisio?r (Mr. Boutin serves 
on the Board as the First Delegate of William Corbus). Mr. Boutin was appointed Deputy Connnissioner in February 
2003. Mr. Boutin spcnl his lirst 22 years inNew Hampshire, logging and working for dairies. He then moved to Alaska. 
working as a logging engineer for Ketchikan Pulp Co. and as a timber faller, rigging slinger and equipment operator for 

. , 
Native Claims Settlement Act corporation involved in forest products and money management. His government service 
ex~erience consists of Slate Debt Manager tor the AIaskaDepartment of Revenue, Alaska State Forester, and currently. 
~ b ~ u t ~  Commissioner i b r the~ la ska~&ar tmen to f~evenud .  Mr. Boutin hasaBachelorof Science from the University 
ofNew Hampshire, and an MBA in Finance liorn the University of Oregon. He has lived in Juneau for the past 21 years. 

Mr. Edgar Blafcl,ford, Corrrrr~issior~er, Deparrrrrerrr of Comrr~erce, Corrrmuniry and Ecorlomic Del~eiopr~rerrr. 
Mr. Blatchford was appointed Commissioner of theDepartmcnt of Comnwce, Community and Economic Development 
in January 2003. At the time of his appointment, he was an Associate Professor of Journalism and Public 
Communications at the University of Alaska-Anchorage. Previously, under Governor Walter J. Hickcl, he served as 
Commissioner of Community and Regional Affairs kom 1990.1994. Mr. Blatchford earned a Bachelor of Arts degree 
from Alaska Methodist University in 1973, aJuris Doctor degree from the University ofwashington School of Law in 
1976 and a Masters of Arts degree in journalism from Columbia University in 1988. He is a former Mayor of Seward, 
and has served on the Board of Directors of Chugach Alaska Corporation, including numerous ternls as chairman. As 
Commissioner of the Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development, Mr. Blatchford oversees 14 
divisions whose mutual mission is to encourage and contribute to the state's economic growth through business 
developn~ent and investments in Alaska, the Lower 48, and international opportunities. 

Grcg IVir~egar, Dirccror of rl~e Division of lrrvesrnrer~rs. (Mr. Wincgar serves as the First Delegate of Edgar 
Blatchford.) Mr. Winegar was appointed Director of the Division of Investments in May 2000. This Division 
administers various direct lending programs for the State and services loans for other State agencies, representing 
approximately 3,500 accounts totaling $250 million. Prior to his appointment as Director, Mr. Winegar served as the 
Division of Investment's Lending Branch Manager for 21 years. Mr. Winegar received his bachelors degree from the 
Evergreen State College i n  1973. In addition to his work as Lending Branch Manager, he also served as a Loan Oflicer 
for the Deparunent for live years where his responsibilities included credit analysis and recommendations for 
commercial, multi-family, residential and consumer loan requests. 



Staffing of the Corporation 

The staff of the Commission also serves as staff of the Corporation in accordance with the Act. The 
Corporation does not have the authority to hire staff independently. See "Staffing of the Commission" above. 

Authority of the Corporation 

The Act grants the Corporation various corporate powers, including, among others, the authority to: (i) make 
and execute agreements, contracts, and other instruments necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers and 
functions of the Corporation, including contracts with a person or governn~ental entity; (ii) borrow money to carry out 
its corporate purposes and issue its obligations as evidenceofthe borrowing; (iii) collect lion1 a borrower amounts owed 
with respect to an education loan the Corporation has purchased; (iv) service education loans held by the Corporation; 
(v) purchase, or participate in the purchase, of education loans; (vi) contract in advance for the purchase or sale of 
education loans: (vii) sell, or participate in the sale, either public or private and on terms authorized by the Board, of 
education loans to other purchasers; (viii) collect and pay reasonable fees and charges in connection with the purchase. 
sale and servicing of education loans; (ix) enter into agreements with the Commission relating lo education loans, the 
administration of the education loan fund created under the Act, and the payment of and security for bonds of the 
Corporation; and (x) perform acts that may he necessary or appropriate to carry out effectively the general objectives 
and purposes of the Corporation under the Act. 

LOAN SERVICING AND COLLECTION 

General 

The Commission services education loans owned by the Corporation except to theextent that certain collection 
activities are delegated to private contractors. The Pledged Loan  NO^ evidencing the Pledged Loans will be secured 
in lireprool crlbincls ~~~:~lnl;~inc.I ill thc uifix;  d th\: C t ~ m m i w u ~ ~ .  which arc ;llm the oil iwj of the Curpuri~rld~~. ,\\ 
J ? i ; r ~ h d  undcr 'THE .AI.ASKA STUDEKT I.OAN CORPOR,\TIOK/:\L,\SL\ CO>IhIISSION ON 
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION," the Corporation does not have its own independent staff; the stal'f of the 
Commission serves as gaff of the Corporation. 

The Commission presently uses education loan servicing sofiware from Charter Accounts Systems. Inc. to 
service the Pledged Loans. The purchase of the software included the source code, the possession of which enables the 
Commission programming staff to enhance the reporting capabilities. 



Servicing of Pledged Loans 

The Commission services the ponfolio of Pledged Loans owned hy the Corporation. The Corporation may, 
in the future, use any other entity or person to service its loans. The Corporation expccts that all Pledged Loans pledged 
as security for payment of the 2005 Bonds will he serviced by the Commission or another servicer. The servicer will 
maintain custody of the Pledged Loans pursuant to a Custody Agrecment with the Corporation and the State of Alaska. 

L u m  Rcpuynrenr. Provided the borrowercontinues to makescheduled monthly payments, the borrower receives 
a montllly bill from the Commission and remains in the repayment cycle until the Pledged Loan is paid in full. At that 
time, a "paid in full" letter and the cancelled promissory note is sent to the borrower. 

Acrhdry Prior 10 Defurrlt. When a borrower fails to make a payment when due, the borrower's next billing 
statement contains text reminding the borrower that the payment is delinquent. The past due status is reflected in each 
subsequent monthly hilling until the Pledged Loan is brought current. In addition, during the time that the scheduled 
payment is between thirty (30) and one hundred eighty (180) days past due, due diligence staff make attempts, by 
telephone and regular mail, to contact the borrower in each 30-day period. If the borrower fails to respond to the contact 
or fails to bring the account current, or if the borrower makes arrangements to bring the account current but fails to keep - 
thearrangement, the Pledgcd Loan will be nianually reviewed by staff. Ifthe lbllowingcrileriaare met, the Pledged Loan 
is eligible for transfer to a collection agency for further collection action: (i) the Pledged Loan is at least two hundred 
seventy (270)' days past due; (ii) the borrowcr has failed to contact the Conmission to make alternate payment 
arrangements or has made alternate payment arrangements but has not kept the arrangement; (iii) tile Commission has 
exhausted all administrative measures for collection; and (iv) the borrower has received all appropriate past due notices 
including a demand letter. 

Collection 

The Commission has authority to facilitate collection on accounts, with respect to Pledged Loans, that are at 
least one hundred eighty days (180) past due without the need to secure a judgment issued by a court using various 
administrativecollectio~~ tools including wagegarnishment in Alaska, witl~llolding thcrenewal of an Alaskaoccupational 
license, seizure of the Slate of Alaska Permanent Fund Dividend, and issuing a lien against real property. 

The Alaska State Permanent Fund (the "Permanent Fund") is a fund held and managed by the Slate, which was 
e~t:~hlisl~cJ h) ;in anlcndnunt to tile SI:IIC Cm5111utim 111 1976. A pmxnl:!!x th.! S~;ntc'> < M I  md ::as royxltics i \  
dcn.,,ilc.l e.~ih v2;ir into the P C ~ I . I I I C I I ~  Fund. Curret~IIv. ;I ndnion o i  the Pcrnunmt Funll'\ c:~rnings i \  paid : I I I I I U ~ I Y  . . . - .  
toqualifying State residents whoapply for it (the "Permanent Fund Dividend"). TheCommission may seizca borrower's 
Permanent Fund Dividend, if any, to satisfy the balance of a defaulted Pledged Loan. There can be no assurance that 
the Pemianent Fund Dividend program will continue. The Permanent Fund Dividend can he eliminated or reduced by 
an amendment to the Alaska Statutes, by failure of the Legislature to appropriate the amount produced by the statutory 
formula, or by other Legislaivc action to divert either principal or earnings of the Permanent Fund. 

' The Commission may provide 3 boimwcr wit11 dlcrnative rqnyinent schedules, loan dcfcimenls, and loar forbearance oplioils suhsequcm lo lhc 
180" day of dcltnqucacy. hul  inol lalcr lhnn 1 1 1 ~  270"'day ofdclioqueocy. 
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TAX EXllMPTION 

lo the opinion of Bond Counsel, based on an malysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions 
and z~ssumiog, among other things, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the 2005 Bonds (i) is not includable 
in gross income of Holders thereof for federal income tax purposes and (ii) is not treated as a specific preference iten1 
to be included in calculating the alternative minimum tax on individuals and corporations, but such interest is included 
in calculating the "adjusted current earnings" ofcertain corporations for purposes of conlputing the alternative rnininlunl 
tax. 

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion based on existing laws of the State as enacted and construed that interest 
on the 2005 Bonds is excluded from taxation by the State except for inheritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers 
by or in contemplation of death and except to the extent that inclusion of said interest in computing the corporate 
alternative mininlum tax under the Code may affect the corresponding provisions of the State corporate income tax. 

Tl~eCodeimposesvarious restrictions, conditions, and requirements relating to theexclusion from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the 2005 Bonds. The Corporation has covenanted to 
comply with certain restrictions designed to assure that interest on the 2005 Bonds will not be included in federal gross 
income. Failure tocomply with thesecovenants may result in interest on the2005 Bonds being included in federal gross 
income, possibly from the date of issuance ofthe Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these 
covenants. Bond Counsel has not undenaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not 
taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the 2005 Bonds may adversely affect the tax 
status 01-interest on the 2005 Bonds. 

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the 2005 Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, the ownership ordisposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, such 2005 Bonds 
may otherwise affect a Bondholder's federal or state tax liability. The nature and extent of these other tax consequences 
will depend upon the Bondholder's panicular tax status and the Bondholder's other items of income or deduction. Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the 
accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2005 Bonds. 

A description of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix IV hereto and such opinion is 
to be delivered with the 2005 Bonds. 

Origiual Issue Premium 

The 2005 Bonds are being sold at a premium. An amount equal to the excess of the issue price of the 2005 
Bonds over their stated redemption price at maturity constitutes premium on such 2005 Bonds. An initial purchaser of 
a 2005 Bond must amortize any premium over such 2005 Bond's term using constant yield principles, based on the 
purchaser's yield to maturity or, in the case of 2005 Bonds callable prior to their maturity, by amortizing the premium 
to the call date, based on the purchascr's yield to the call date and giving effect to the call premium). As premium is 
amortized, the purchaser's basis i n  such 2005 Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount resulting in an increase in the 
gain (or decrease i n  the loss) lo be recognized ibr federal income lax purposes upon a sale or disposition of such 2005 
Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser's basis may be reduced, no federal income tax deduction is 
allowed. Purchasers of the 2005 Bonds should consult with their tax advisors with respect to the determination and 
treatment of an~onizable premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax 
consequences of owning a 2005 Bond. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Corpor;ltion has appointed U.S. Bank National Association. Seattle, Washington, as Trustee for the 2005 
Bonds. The Trustee is to carry out such duties as are assigned to it under the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure 
Ccnilicate. 



The Trustee has not reviewed or participated in the preparation of this Official Statement and assumes no 
responsibility for the nature, contents, accuracy, or completeness of the information set forth in this Official Statement 
or for the recit~~ls contained in the Indcntureorthe2005 Bonds, or ibr the validity, sufficiency, or legal effect of any such 
docunients. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

In accordance with Section (bj(5) of the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15~2-I2  under the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time (the "Rule") the Corporation has 
covenanted for the bcnefil of the benelicial owners of the 2005 Bonds to provide certain financial information and 
operating data relating to the Corporation on or before 215 days after the end of each fiscal year commencing in 2006 
for the liscal year ended June 30, 2005 (the "Annual Report"), and to prov~de notices of the occurrence of certain 
enumerated events, i f  deemed by the Corporation to be material. The Corporation will file the Annual Report with each 
Nationally RecognizedMunicipal SecuritiesIllformalio~l Repository and to the stateinformation depository for theState 
(if one is created). The specific nature of the information lo be contained in the Annual Report and the notices of 
material events is summarized in "APPENDIX V-FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURECERTIFICATE attached 
hereto. 

The sole and exclusive remedy for breach or default under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate is an action 
lo compel specific performance of the undertakings ofthe Corporation, and no person, including a registered owner or 
benelicial ownerof the Bonds, may recover monetary damages thereunder underany circumstances. A breach ordefault 
under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute an Event of Default under the Indenture. In addition, 
if all or any part ofthe Rule ceases to he in effect for any reason, then the information required to be provided under the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, insofar as the provision of the Rule no longer in effect required the provision of such 
information, sl~all no longer be required to be provided. 

The Corporation reserves the right to file its Annual Report, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange 
Comlnission lnlerpretive Letter dated September 7, 2004, with www.DisclosureUSA.org. 

The corporation has never failed lo comply in any nlaterial respecl with any previous undertaking with respect 
to the Rule to provide annual linancial information or notices of material events. 

ABSENCE O F  LITIGATION 

There is no controversy or lilignlion of any nature now pending or threatened restraining or enjoining the 
issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the 2005 Bonds or in any way contesting or affecting the validity ofthe 2005 
Bonds or any proceedings of the Corporation taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof or the pledge or 
application of any moneys or securities provided for the payment of 2005 Bonds or the existence or powers of the 
Corporation. 

UNDERWRITING 

The 2005 Bonds are being purchased by the Underwriter. The Underwriter has agreed to purchase the 2005 
Bonds at a price of $94,254,660.15 representing the aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Bonds plus a net original 
issue premium of $5,949,660.15. The Underwriter will be paid a fee of approximately $497,157.15 with respect to the 
2005 Bonds. The Bond Purchase Agreement provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the 2005 Bonds, if any 
are purchased, theobligation to make such purchase being subject to cenain terms and conditions set forth in such Bond 
Purchase Agreement. The initial public offering prices or yields sel forth on the inside cover page of this Official 
Statement hereof may be changed by theUnderwriter from time lo time without notice. The 2005 Bonds may be offered 
and sold to certain dealers (including RBC Dain Rauscherand other dealers depositing such 2005 Bonds into investment 
uusts) at prices or yields lower than the public offering prices or yields shown on the cover. Although there can he no 
assurance lhat any market will commence or be maintained, theUndcrwriter cxpects to make a market in the 2005 Bonds 



aftertheinitial publicoffering. It is likely that any market that develops will beat pricesdifferentfrom theinitial offering 
prices or yields. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Public Financial Mmagement, Minneapolis, Minnesota, has been retained by the Corporation to serve as 
financial advisor with respect to the 2005 Bonds. The linancial advisor has assistcd the Corporation i n  matters relating 
to the planning, structuring and issuance of the 2005 Bonds and various other debt related matters. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS O F  THE CORPORATION 

The linancial statements of the Corporation included in this Official Statement as APPENDIX I have been 
audited by Elgee Rehfeld Mertz. LLC, Independent Auditors, to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report 
thereon. 

LEGAL INVESTMENT IN ALASKA 

The Act provides, subject to any applicable federal requirement or limitmion, that the bonds of the Corporation 
are securities in which public officers and bodies of the Stale, municipalities, insurance companies, insurance 
associations, other persons carrying on an insurance business, banks, bankers, trust companies, savings banks, savings 
asociations, building and loan associations, investment companies, other persons canying on a banking business. 
administrators, guardians, executors, trustees, other fiduciaries, and otller persons who are authorized to invest in bonds 
or other obligations of the State, may properly and legally invest funds including capital in their control or belonging 
to them. The Act funher states that, notwithstanding any other provisions of law. the bonds of the Corporation are also 
securities that may bedeposited with and may be received by public officers and bodies of the Slate and municipalities 
for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the Slate is now or may be authorized. 

PLEDGE AND AGREEMENT OF THE STATE 

In the Act, the State pledges to, and agrees with, registered owners of bonds issued by the Corporation that the 
State will not limit or alter the rights and powers vested in the Corporation under Alaska Statutes, Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990, to fulfill the terms of acontmct made by thecorporation with the bondholders or in any way impair 
the rights and remedies of the bondholders until the bonds, together with the interest on them with interest on unpaid 
installments of interest, and all costs and expenses i n  connection with an action or proceeding by or on behalf of the 
bondholders, are fully met and discharged. In accordance with the Act, the Corporation has included this pledge and 
agreement of the Spate in the Indenture. 

RATINGS 

Fitch Ratings and Standard & Poor's Corporation are expected to assign their municipal bond rating of "AAA," 
and "AAA," respectively, to the 2005 Bonds, with the understanding that, upon delivery of the 2005 Bonds, FSA will 
issue its Municipal Bond Insurance Policy. Such ratings rellect only the views of the rating organizations and 
explanation of the significance 01-the ratings may be obtained from the rating agencies as ibllows: Fitch Ratings. One 
State Street Plaza, New York, New York 10004, (212) 908-0500; Standard & Poor's Corporation, 55 Water Street, New 
York, New York 10041, (212) 208-8000. 

The Corporation has furnished and will furnish to such rating agencies cenain information and materials, some 
of which have not been included in this Official Statement. Generally, a rating agency bases its rating on such 
information and materials and investigations, studies and assumptions furnished to and obtained and made by the rating 
agency. There is no assurance that any such rating will apply for any given period of lime or that it will not be lowered 
or withdmwn entirely if, in the judgment of the rating agency, circumslanccs so warrml. 
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A rating is not a recommendation to buy, scll or hold the Bonds and any such rating should he evaluated 
independently. Each rating is subject to change or withdrawal at any time and any such changeor withdrawal may affect 
the market price or marketability of the 2005 Bonds. The Underwriter has undertaken no responsibility either to bring 
to the attention of the Holders of the 2005 Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of any rating of the 2005 Bonds 
or to oppose any such change or withdrawal. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

All quotations from, and summaries and explanations of the State or federal laws, the Indenture (including 
supplements thereto) nnd the other documents and agreements contained herein do not purport to be complete and 
reference is made to said laws, documents and agreements for full and complete statements of their provisions. The 
Appendices attached hereto are a part of this Official Statement. Copies, in reasonable quantity, of the Indenture and 
the other documents and agreements described herein may be obtained upon request directed to Alaska Student Loan 
Corporation, Attn: Executive Officer, 1030 Vinlage Boulevard, Juneau, Alaska99801-7109 or to theTrustee, U S .  Bank 
National Association, 1301 Fifth Avenue Street, Suite 1410, Seattle, Washington, Attn: Corporate Trust Department. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whcther or not expressly so stated, are 
intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Oflicial Statement is not to he construed as a contract or 
agreement between the Corporation and the purchasers or holders of the 2005 Bonds. 

EXECUTION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been authorized by the Corporation 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

By: Is1 Diane Barrens 
Diane Bnrrans 
Executive Officer 
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ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Mana~cmcnt's Discussion and Analysis and 
Financial Statclnents 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

Together with lndependcnt Auditors' Report 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMEN'T'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Thc Alaska Student Loan Coqmration (Corporation) functions as a lender and scrviccr of 
education loans. 'She following is a discussion and analysis orthe Corporation's financial 
pcrfonnancc, provitling an ovet-vicw of thc activities for thc fiscal ycar endcd June 30, 
2004. This discussion and analysis contains other supplementary infomiation in addition 
to thc basic tinancial statcmcnts for tlic ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2004. Please read it in 
conjunction with the Colporation's financial statclnents and the notes to financial 
statements, which follow this scction. 

Financial Highlights 

The Corporation's total assets at June 30, 2003 were approximately $980.6 
tnillion, which is an increase of $146.8 million or 18% over June 30, 2003. 

The Corporation's long-term debt increased by $146.6 million during fiscal year 
2003, which rcprcscnts the nct difference bctwccn new issucs and paynicnts and 
rcfi~nding of outstanding debt. During the year the Corporation issucd bonds in 
the amount of $1 90.2 million. 

The assets of the Corporation exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal ycar 
by $251.5 million (reported as net asscts), a dccreasc in nct asscts of $71.5 million 
or 22% ovcr June 30,2003. 

Thc Corporation's education loans reccivahle was $577.2 million at year-end, an 
increase of $1 1 . I  million during thc ycar. 

The Corporation's operating revenuc was $38.7 million, an increase of S1.5 
million during thc ycar. 

Thc Corporation's intcrcst cxpcnse was $ 19.7 million during the ycar 

The Coq>oration3s cspcnscs rclatcd to operations was $8.9 million during fiscal 
ycar 2004. 

Owl-vicv of the Financial Statcnicnts 

Thc Corporation is an cntcrprisc fund of thc State of Alaska. As such, thc Corporation's 
financial statcmcnts arc prcparcd i n  conformity with accounting principles generally 
acccptcd in  thc Unitcd Stcrtcs as applictl on an m x ~ a l  basis. Untlcr thc ;~ccrual mcthotl ot 
accounting, thc same mcthotl uscd by priv:ttc scctor husincsscs, revcnucs arc rccognizcd 
in thc pcriod in which thcy arc carnctl iuid C X ~ C I I S C S  ilrc rc~ognizcd in thc pcriotl i n  which 
thcp ;IIK incu~vcd. Thc thrcc basic tinancial statcmcnts of thc Co~poralion arc as li>llows: 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Balance Sheets - This statement presents information regarding the Corporation's asscts, 
liabilitics and net assets. Net asscts represent the total amount of assets less the total of 
liabilities. The Balance Shccts classify asscts, liabilitics, and net assets as culrcnt, non- 
cun-ent, and rcstl-ictetl. 

Statement - Tliis sNetatenient prcscnts 
the Corporation's interest income, costs of finds, operating expenses, and changes in net 
assets for the fiscal ycar. 

Statement of  Cash Flows - This statement presents cash tlows from operations, non- 
capital tinancing, capital, and investing activities. The Corporation presents its cash 
tlows statement using the direct tnctliod of reporting operating cash tlows. 

Financial Analysis 

The ibllow~ng condensed financial infonnat~on was derived from the Corporat~on's 
financial statements and reflects the Corporation's changes during the fiscal ycar: 

Assets: 
Currcnt asscts 
Ilcstrictcd assets 

Total asscts 
L.iabilities: 
Currcnt liabilitics payable 

from unrestricted assets 
Current liabilities payable 

from rcstrictcd asscls 
Non-current liabilitics payable 
l?om restricted asscts 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 

Percentage 
2004 2003 Cllange 

Ilcsrricred incr ;~sscts 235,965,077 
Unrcstrictcd net assets l5.509.6l5 

Total net nsscts S 251.4' 

Origination fees of S1.4 million were collcctctl on loan li~ntlings (luring the year, 
liowcver, the an~lual tl-aiisfcr fi-om the origination fcc fund to reimburse tllc trust filntls for 
write-offs did not occur until alier .lunc 30, 2004. Origination fccs in tlic amount $4.2 
million were useti to cover loan losses and as a rcs~ilt, rcducctl the t1efc11-ctl credit account 
under the current liabilitics scclion. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Restricted assets, culTent liabilities payable from rcstrictctl assets, and non-currcnt 
liabilities payable from restricted assets increased tiom the prior ycar as a result of  
increased bonding activity during the year and a total of  580.6 million rcturn of capital 
payable to the State in FY2005. 

The Corporation issued the 2004 S c r m  bonds in the amount of $1 15.1 million to refund 
outstanding bonds and provide funding for the Corporation's loan programs. The 
rcfundings included $13.1 million for tlic early redemption o f t h e  1994 Series A bonds 
datcd July 1 ,  1994 and 526.4 million for the carly rcdcmption of  a portion of thc 2002 
Senior Series A bonds datcd June 4,2002. 

The Corporation issued Capital Project Revenue Bonds 2004 Series A in the amount of 
$75.1 million to pay for $75 million of  capital projccts for thc State. This paymcnt is a 
rcturn of capital providctl by the State for the creation oftlic Corporation. 

Beginning in FY2003, thc Corporation changed its method of  amortizing bond issuance 
costs kom the effective interest method to the straight-line method as nianagcment 
believes the straight-line method is more understandable given the nature of the 
Corporation's variable rate bonds. The cumulative effcct of the change in amortization 
n-rcthod recognized in FY2003 was Sl .h million. 

In FY2003 the Corporation moditied the loan allowance estiniatc for morc mature loans 
in the portfolio to better rccognizc the positive impact of ongoing loan servicing and 
collection improvcmcnts. Thc cunlulative effcct of  this changc was a reduction in thc 
allowance for loan loss of  $10.4 million in FY2003. 

Operating revenue-loan interest income S 38,657,784 37.1 54,043 4% 
Operating expenses (13,821,508) (10,335,689) (33%) 
Non-operating cxpcnsc, net (15,793,363) (1,928,305) (7 19%) 

Income befc11-c cumulative ell'cct 9,032,913 24,800,049 (63%) 
Cumulative clTcct o lchanx -. 

in nccounting methods -- 1,620,730 (100%) 
I~icomc bcSorc spcci a I I ~ C I ~ S  9,032.91 3 26,510,779 (66%) 
Spccial item, retun1 ol'capital (S0,600,000) (5,000,000) ( 1500%) 

lncr~i~sc  in  net assets (71,557,037) 21.5 10,779 (433%) 
Net assets - -  beginning 323,032.779 .~ ~.. -- 301,522,000 7% 
Net assets --- cnding $ 25 1,475,692 323,032,779 

.~*.*.*~.~.-.;=~-.= *&--~ .*-*---- (22%) .- 

The Coqxmtion provitlctl borrowers with ;In interest cost rctluction ibl- all lo:~ns with 
interest ratcs csccctling 8..3% for tlic third ycar in a row. The ilggrcgatc bcnclit rcsultcti 
I a rctluclion in income of $883,000 anti S1.I million i n  FY2004 ant1 FY2003, 
rcspcctivcly. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Interest income from investments, which is reported as a non-operating item, fell S3 
million from the previous year as a result of low market interest rates. 

The net non-operating expense amount in FY2003 was impacted by an allowance for 
loan loss adjustment. 

Special item, return of capital, rcprcscnts paynients to the State of Alaska as allowed for 
by statute. An annual payment as  detemiined b y  tlie Corporation's Board of Directors is 
based on the amount of the Corporation's income before special items during tlie fiscal 
year ending two years before the end of the tiscal year in which the paynent is to be 
made. Atlditionally, the Corporation issued bonds in FY2004 to tinance capital projccts 
of the Statc of  Alaska. 

Cosporation Activities and Conditions AfiEctincr Financial Position 

The Alaska Co~nniission on Postsecondary Education (Commission) administers the 
Corporation's programs. Operating expenditures of  the Commission are subject to 
budgetary appropriation. The Corporation reimburses the Conitnission for such 
expenditures that relate to the program adniinistration antl are permitted under the bond 
indentures of  tlie Corporation. 

'Thc puq~ose of  the loan progt-am is to providc low cost loans to Alaskans pursuing 
education and training at a postsccondary level antl to other qualified individuals 
attending postsccondary institutions in the Statc. 

Historically, the Corporation has provided various alternative education loan programs 
under the unibrella title of  the Alaska Studcnt Loan Progmrn. The Corporation modified 
and broadened its program offerings beginning in the 2002-2003 academic year by 
iniplementing a successor program, the AlaskAdvantagem Loan Program, which includes 
Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELI') loans governed by the I-Iighcr 
Education Act. The Corporation also replaced its fixed ratc alternative loan, the Alaska 
Student Loan, with a new variable ratc alternative loan, tlic Alaska Supplemental 
Education Loan (ASEL). 

To accommotlate FFELP lending, the Conimission sccul-ctl thc status of "cligiblc lcntlcr" 
under the Higher Education Act and entered into various agreements with Northwest 
Education Loan Association, to serve as the Comniission's "cligiblc guarantor" under thc 
Higlicr Education Act. Loans authorized under the 1-liglier Education Act which the 
Coiporation is funding includc Subsitlizctl Stafford, Unsubsidized Stafford, anti PLUS 
loans. The I-lighcr Education Act provides for federal (i) insurance or rcinsurancc of 
cligiblc loans, (ii) interest subsidy payment to eligible lcndcrs with rcspcct to ccrtain 
Subsidized StaiTord loans, and (iii) special allownncc payments rcpl-escnting an 
atltlitional subsidy paid by tlic Sccrctary of the U.S. Department of Education to holtlcrs 
of eligible loans. For a loan loss to he cligiblc for rcimburscrncnl to a lcntlcr by ;I 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

guarantor the loan must be serviced according to  standal-(1s set by l'ederal statutes and 
I-egulations. 

The interest ratc on FFELP loans is variable, reset annually on each July 1 .  Subsidized 
Stafford and unsubsitlized Staffol-d loans which are in in-school, g1-ace, and deferment 
periods bear intcrcst at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-bill ratc plus 1.7%, wit11 a 
maximum ratc of 8.25%. Subsidized Stafford and unsubsidized Staflbrd loans in all 
other periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-bill ratc plus 2.3%: with a 
maximum rate of 8.25%. PLUS loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T- 
bill rate plus 3.1%, with a maximum of 9%. 

In April 2004, the Corporation began offering a new federal consolidation loan for any 
borrower already having a loan w ~ t h  the Corpol-ation. Federal consolidation loans bear 
interest at a rate equal to the weighted average of the interest rates of the loans 
consolidated, roundcd to the nearest higher om-cighth of I%, with a maximum rate of 
8.25%. 

The interest rate for the ASEL is adjusted annually on or after June 1 and effective for the 
next twelve months beginning July 1 .  Accord~ng to State statute, the variable interest 
rates are to be based on the bond equivalent rate of  91-day T-bill auctioned at the final 
auction held before June I o f  the loan year plus up to 2.8% and are to be capped at 
8.25%. 

In liscal year 2003, the Corporation offered a new supplemental consolidation loan to 
borrowers who had two or more fixed rate Alaska Student Loans. The supplemental 
consolidation loan criteria has been expanded to  include any s~~pplernental loan of  the 
Corporation except the Family Education Loan. The supplemental consolidation loans 
accrue interest at fixed rates between 5.8% and 6%. 

The AlaskAdvantageO Program was structured to provide eligible student borrowers 
with low cost financial aid options. It encourages students to take advantage of  federal 
aid resources to maxiniize their grant and lowest cost loan options prior to tapping into 
altcrnative loan sources. The federal loan proyl-am allows borrowers to create a serialized 
note with a given lender. 

Bctwcen fiscal year 2003 and 2004, the Coq~oration saw a 10% incrmsc in loan 
originations and had the highest volume of fcticral loan awards in the state as coniparetl 
to other federal education loan providers in i\laska. Fctlcml loan originations incrcascd 
by 64% between fiscal year 2003 and 2004. 

To facilitate financing the progr-am, the COI-pol-ation issuctl $1 15. l million of tax-cxc~iipt, 
limitcd obliyatioti, ctluc:~tion lorn rcvcnuc hontls undcr the 2002 blaster T ~ L I S ~  Indenture. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

!MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The bond issuance included refunding bonds, which included $13.1 million for the early 
redemption of  the 1994 Scrics A Bonds and $26.4 million i'or the carly redemption of  a 
poltion of the Senior Scrics 2002 A Bonds. 

AlaskAdvanta17eO Bosi-owcr Bcnetits: 

Under the AlaskAtlvantngcU3 Program the Corporation's Board of Directors has approvcd 
va~ious  loan benefit fcatures that provide incentives and rewards to borrowers who 
participate in the program. 

Under the AlaskAdvantagc@ Borrower Bcnefit Program, effective July 1, 2004 through 
June 30, 2005, borrowers with qualified loans held by the Corporation are eligible for 
ccrtain interest rate reductions or rcbatcs on any such loan. 

Bosi-ower Benefit Program offerings arc subject to thc availability of funds and annual 
modifications or termination by tlic Corporation at its discrction provided, however, that 
any changes do not adversely effect the credit rating of certain bonds issued by the 
Corporation. 

Contacting the Corporation's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the Corporation's tinanccs and to demonstrate the Corporation's 
accountability for its asscts. If you have any questions about this report or nccd 
additional financial infbrniation, contact the Finance Officer of  the Corporation at (907) 
465-6757. 



'The Board of Directors 
Alaska Stutlcnt Loan Corporation: 

W c  Iiavc audited the acconlpanying basic financial statements of tlie Alaska Studcnt Loan Coqporation 
(Coqmration), a component unit o f t h c  State o f  Alaska, a s  of  and for the years cnded June 30, 2004, and 
2003, as listed in the table of contents. These  financial statements are the responsibility of the 
managcmcnt of the Corporation. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

W e  conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, :lnd tlie stantiartls applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen[ Atnliring S t u ~ ~ ~ l u r d s ,  
issucd by the Co~nptrollcr Gcncral of  the Unitcd States. Those  standards requirc that we plan and pcrfonn 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wl~ether  the financial statcmcnls are free of  rnatcrial 
misstntcmcnt. An audit iocludcs cxaniining on  a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
discIosurc~ in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant cstimatcs made by man;tgemcnt, as wcll a s  evaluating the ovcrall fi~iancial statement 
presentation. W e  bclicve that uur audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In oul- opinion, thc financial statements rel'cii-ed to above present ihirly, in all material respects the 
financial position of the Alaska Student I m n  Corpon~t ion as of  June 30, 2004, am1 2003, and the results 
u f  its opcratior~s and its cash tlows for the years then cndcd in conibrmity with accounting principles 
generally acceptcd in the Unitcd States of  America. 

' h e  Mnnagcmcnt's Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 llirougli 6, is not a rcquircd part of the basic 
finaticial statements but is supplcmcntary infomiation rcquircd by tllc Govcnuncntal Accounting 
St;~ndartls I3oard. We have applicd ccrtain limited procedures, which consistctl principally of inquiries o f  
monagc~ncnt regarding the methods of measurement a11d presentation of  the supplcmentaiy inSon~lation. 
Ilowcvcr, wc did not audit the information enti cxprcss no  opinion on i t .  

In accortlancc with ~oi~i.l~ll!llelli r f ~ ~ d i r i ~ z g  .V/~r~rrlrr~d~, w e  have also issucd a rcpo~-t tlatcd September 3, 
2004, on ou1- consideration of the Corporation's intcrmal control over linnnci:il reporting :~nd our rests of 
its co~iipliancc with ccrtai~i pruvi~ions of  laws. regulations, contracts and g1.3111~. 'l'liai rep(1rt is an integral 
part ut' an audit perll)rinctl in accol-(lance with ( ; ~ I X J ~ I I I C I ~ /  A~di r i rg  S1~1nrl1r1.11.s and sl~ould be read in 
conjunclio~i wit11 this report in considcl-ing the rcsults of o u r  iudit. 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Balance Shccts 

Years ended June 30,2004 and 2003 

Asscts 
Currcnt asscts: 

Cash and cash cquivalcnts (notc 3) 
l~ivest~nents (note 4) 
Accrued interest recei\,sble 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash cquivalcnts (note 3) 
Investinents (notc 4) 
Loans rcceivablc (notc 5) 
Lcss allowance for: 

Doubtful loans (note 6) 
1:orgiveness (note 7) 
Net loans receivable 

Accrued intercst receivable, net of forgivcncss allowance of 
$708,964 and $698,651 in 2004 and 2003, respecti\dy 

Duc from U S .  Department of Education 
Bond issoancc cost, ncl of accum~nulated amortization of 

$4,742,81 1 and $4,093,522 in 2004 and 2003, respectively 
'Total restricted assets 
Total assets 

(Continued) 

See ;iccompaiiying notcs to t l~c  linuncial statements 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Componcnt Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Balance Sliccts 

Years ended June 30.2004 and 2003 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Liabilities: 
Curt-ent liabilities payablc from unrestricted asscts: 

Accounts payahlc 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants outstanding 
Deferred credit (note 2) 
Rctum of capital paytnent declared (note 12) 

Total current unrestricted liabilities 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Accounts payable 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants outstanding (notc 5) 
Return of capital paymcnt declared (note 12) 
Bond interest payable 
Cunwt  pot-tion of arbitrage rcbatc payable (note 9) 
Current ponion of bonds payable (notc 8) 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities payable from restricted asscts: 
Arbitrage rebate payable (note 9) 
Bonds payable, net of bond premiumsldisco~tnts (note 8) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Committnents and contingencies (note 12) 

Net assets: 
Restricted net assels 
Unrestricted net asscls (notc 2) 

'l'otal net asscts 
Total liitbili~ics and net asscts 

See accompanying notcs to linnncial stalctncnls 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Component Unit o f t h c  State of Alaska) 

Statements of  Revenue, Expenses 

and Changcs in Net Assets 

Years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 

Operating revenue - interest income - student loa~ i s  

Operating expenses: 
Ijrovision for: 

Loan losses (notc 6) 
Forgiveness (notc 7) 

Opcr a 1' ions 
Total operating cxpenses 
Opcrating income 

Nonopcratilig revenue (expense), excluding special itcm: 
Interest income from investmcnts 
Interest expense 
Arbitrage rcbate expense 
Amortization of  bond issuance costs 
Change in estimate of doubtful loan allowance (notc 6) 

Nct nonoperating expense 
Income before cumulative effect 

Cumulative effect of  change in accounting method (note 2) 
Income before special item ("statutory nct income") 

Spccial item, return ofcapit;d (note 12) 
Change in net assets 

Total net assets-bcgirming 
Total net assets-ending 

Scc accompanying n o t e  to lit~aucial statcmcnls. 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Componcnt Unit o f thc  State ol' Alaska) 

Statements of Cash I'lows 

Ycars endctl June 30,2004 and 2003 

Cash flows from opcrating activities: 
Principal rcpaymcnts received on loans 
Intcrcst received on loans 
Other cash receipts 
Loans originated 
Cash paid to Alaska Cornmission on  Postsecondaty 

Education for operating expenses 
Nct cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows froni noncapital financing activities: 
Proceeds froni issuance of  bonds 
Bond issue costs 
Interest paid on bonds 
Principal payrncnts on bonds 

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash flo\vs rrom investing activities: 
Intcrcst received on investments 
Investments matured 
Invcstmcnts purchased 

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activitics 

Cash llows from capital activitics: 
Proceeds froni issuancc of  bonds 
l3ond issuc costs 
Rcturn of  capital payments 

Net casli provided by (uscd for) rcturn ofcapital 

Net incrcasc in cash and cash equivalcnts 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pcriod 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pcriotl 



ALASl<A STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(:I Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Ycars ended June 30,2004 and 2003 

Rcconeiliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 

Increase in net loans receivable 
l~lcrease in net accrucd interest receivable on loans 
Decrease in due to State of Alaska 
Increase in otller assets 
Decrease in accounts payable 
Decrease in warrants outstanding 
Decrease in deferred credit 

Net cash provitlcd by opcrating activities 

Summary of noncasli transactions that affect 
rccognizcd assets and liabilities: 

Provision for loan loss and forgiveness 
l'rovision for lost interest and forgiveness 
Write-off of uncollcctible loans 
Forgiveness granted - principal 
Forgiveness granted - interest 
Bond discount amortization 
Bond issuance cost amortization 
Deferred credit used for loan loss 
Deferred credit aniortizatioti 
Interest capitalization 
Unrcalizcd gain (loss) on investments 
Clianye in estimate doubtli~l loans 
Cumulative clkct of clianac i n  accounting nrcbliod 

Scc accompanying notcs to lina11ci:ll st;ltcmcnls 



AI.ASI<A S'I'UDEN'I' LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Unit ofthe State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

( I )  Authorizing Lcgislntioti and Organization 

'The Alaska Student Loan Corporation (Coiporation), a coniponent unit of tlic State oS Alaska, was 
created in 1987 by an act of the Stste of Alaska I.c$islaturc (L.egislaturc). 'l'he put-pose of  tlic 
Corporation is to provide low-interest education loans to Alaskans. Tlie Cotpor-ntion is authorized, with 
cc~lain limitations, to issue its own bonds and other ohligations in such principal amounts as, in tlic 
opinion of the Corporation, will be necessary to provide sufficient funds ibr carrying out its ~ L I I ~ O S C .  All 
obligations so issued shall not bc tlcctncd to constitute a dcht of the State of Alaska (State). 

'Sl~c State Governor appoints the Corporation's Board of Directors and the staff of the Alaska 
Comniission on I'ostsccondary Education (Commission) administers tlie Corporation. The Commission's 
budgct provides for reimbursement from the Corporation for operating and capital expcnscs. The 
Comtnission's budgct is subject to review and approval from both the cxccutivc and legislative branches 
of tlie State. 

The State lias provided education loans through various programs since 1968. Prior to tlie creation of the 
Corporation, substantially all such loans wcrc recorded in the Scholarship Revolving Loan Fund and 
Teacher Scholarship Loan Fund (Funds) of thc State. In April 1985, by act of tlie i..cgislature, the assets, 
liabilities, and equities of the Funds were transferred Lo the Corporation effective December 30. 1987. 

Loans are financcd ti~rougli the issuance of tax-exempt bonds or witli recycled principal and interest 
repayments. 'The bonds outstanding are payable, primarily Srom interest and principal repayments on tlie 
financed loans as spec~ficd in the underlying resolutions authorizing the salc of boods. 

( 2 )  Sunirnnry of Significnnt Accounting Policies 

firrrd Accorrrrli~tg 

Tlie linancial activities of tlie Cotporation, which are restricted by tile Corporation's b o ~ ~ t l  
indentures and the I-equiremcnts of the I.cgislature, arc recordcd in various funds as specifietl in 
such instruments or nccessitatcd by appropriation rcquircrnenls or sound liscal nlanagemcnt. 
The funds arc combined for linancial statement purposes and there are no significant interfund 
transactioos. The Corporation's funds arc considered to be enterprise fmds for linancial 
reporling puq~oscs with revenues recognized when earned and cxpcnscs wlicn incurred. 

S l u ~ ~ ~ / u r d  Ap/~/;cutio~r 

As allowed by the Govcrnmcnt Accounting Standal-(Is Board Statcmcnt No. 20 (GAS13 20). 
k c o ~ i r ~ t i i ~ g  uizd Fi~iir~ic;irl Repoi-t;i~,q ./?IT- I'i-oprktmy F I O I ~ Y  m d  U/hw ( io i~e r i t i~~e~m/  E,I/;/;L,.s 
7%1u Use Proprieto~y 1;iiiid :Iccorrii/ii7g, the Col-poratio~\ lias elected not to apply Statcnients and 
Intcrpret:~tions issued by the Financial Accounling Standards Doard alicr November 30, 19S9. 

I:i.scul Yair 

'l'lic Corpor;~tion's liscal ycar begins July 1 and cnds Junc 30, consistc~~i wit11 tlic St;~tc's liscal 
year. 



Al.ilSI<A SYU1)ISNT 1.OAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Untt o f t h c  State of Alaska) 

Notes to Ft~~ancia l  Statements 

June 30,2001 and 2003 

(tl) Murroprrerrt E.stirrrutc.s 

In preparing the financial statements in accortlance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, tnanagement is required to make estimatcs and assumptions that afi'ect the reporled 
amounts of'asscts, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual amounts could differ from those 
estimates. The more significant accountitlg and reporting policies applied in the preparation of 
the accompanying financial statements are discussed below. 

(c) Lnurrs 

Loans represent education loans issued through the AlaskaAtlvantagcC3 Loan Programs, which 
includc Alaska Supplemental Loans, Teacher Education Loans (TEL), Family Education Loans 
(FEI.), (collectively referred to as supplemental loans), and federally guaranteed Stafford, PLUS 
and Consolidated loans. The terms of lhc loans vary depending on the year of  inception and loan 
type. Interest accrues at fiscd and variable rates ranging from 2.625% to 9% and is generally 
dctcrtnined by loan lype and issue date. T h c  Corporation offers b o t ~ o w c r  betielits, which reduce 
the interest costs for eligible borrowers. 'I'he borrower benefit offerings are approved by the 
Corporation Board of  Directors annually and !nay vary from year-to-year. 

Borrowers of TEL can obtain up to 100% forgiveness of  loan principal and interest if the 
borrower teaches in rural Alaska for periods specilietl by the program. 

For certain supplcmentsl loans awarded prior to July 1, 1987, bouowcrs can obtain forgiveness 
for up to 50% of  loan principal and interest if the borrower resides in Alaska for specified 
periods upon successtitl completion of the pro&ram of  study for which the loan was awarded. 

'The allowance for doubtful loans reprcscnts management's estimate, basctl on cspcricnce, of  all 
loans that will ultimately be oncollectible. The Cotporation charges off supplemental loam to 
the allowance upon death, bankruptcy as allowed by law, total tlisabilily of  the borrower, or 
when a payment has not been reccivcd for five years on loans not in dcfertncnt. In fiscal year 
2003, management changed the allowance csrimate for older loan program years to better reflect 
the impact of ongoing loan servicing and collcction itnprovements. T o  detcl-mine the change, 
managcmenl analyzcd default tlat;~ on matured loan pools and cohort dcSault declines since 
calcndar year 1997. These analyses were uscd to estimate reserve mtcs for loans outstandins ;IS 

of  June 30, 2003. Included in the older program years are thc loans that wcrc bt-ought back for 
in-house setvicing tluc to tertnination ol'thc collection agcncy contracts in 1998. 2001 and 2003. 

Intct-cst on education loans is accrocd whcn cat-ned. 1:ot- Scdcr:llly guar;lntced suhsitlizetl loans, 
intcrcst Liom (IK start date oS thc lo;nl until 3 chtc !hat is six monlhs alier the studcut \\~itlitlraws 
li-om school (plus any autliorizctl dcl'ci-melit pcriotls) is biilctl to and paid hy the L1.S. Dcpartrncnt 
of  l~ducntion untlcr 1111: 1:cdcral i;';~niily liducarion l.o:ln I'roft-;lm. 'fhc borrower pays inlet-est 



ALASKA SI'UDEN'I' 1,OhN CORI'ORA'I'ION 
(a Component Unit o f t h e  State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30.2004 and 2003 

su1)scqucnt to that date. For non-subsidized federally guaranteed loans ilnd for all supplemental 
loans issued after June 30, 2002 intcrcst from the disbursement date is paid by tlie borrower. 

Certain supplemental loans are non-interest bearing while tlic borrower is completing eligible 
studies. All statc guaranteed loans issued prior to July I .  1996 are non-intcrest bearing during 
approved periods of  defernient and postponement. Loans issued prior to July 1, 1987 are also 
non-interest bearing during a one-year grace period kdlowing completion of studies and a six- 
month sub-grace period following an approved defernient. Non-intcrcst bearing loans are 
approximately $38,476,179 at Junc 30, 2004. 

I-listorical rates are used to detcniiine the allo!cance for doubtful interest. The  allowance for 
doubtful interest is approxiniately $21,500.000 and $21,900.000 as of  June 30, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. The provision for doubtrul interest is a reduction of interest income and was 
approximately %1,340,000 and $4,739,000 for the years ended Junc 30, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 

(11) Deferred Credit 

Borrowers who received supplemental loans al'ter Junc 30, 1994 were charged an origination fee 
of  I%, 3% or 5%, generally determined by loan issue datc. Its purpose is to offset loan losses 
due to death, disability, bankruptcy or default of  borrowers charged the origination fee. The 
origination fee is recognized as revenue using tlie straight-line inethotl equal to the loan 
repayment period and assumes repayment begins the ycar following origination. The allowance 
for doubtful loans has been reduced by tlic unamortized deferred credit. 

(i) Allorvurrce for For$ivore.s.s 

The  allowance Sot- forgiveness represents iiianagcment's cslimatc, based on experience of' the 
loan forgiveness that will ultimately be applied for and granted. 

Bond issuance costs include utitlcnvritct-s' Fees and other costs incurred in cotinection with tlic 
issuance of bonds. Effective for tlie year cndcd June 30. 2003, the Corporation changed its 
method of amortizing bond issuance costs frotii the cffcctivc intcrcst tiictliotl to the straight-line 
metliod. Tlic cuniulntivc efl'cct o f t h c  changc is $1,620,731. 

(k) Borrd Di.scorrr~f.s/Pre~~~i~r~~~.s urrd Deferred Anrorrrrls orr Rcfrrrrrrlirrg.~ 

Effcctivc for the ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2004, the Corpoi-ation cliangcd its method  tamo or ti zing 
bond discounts. prctiiiums and dcl'et-I-ed amounts on rcfuildings it0111 the cft'cctivc interest method 
to tlic straight-line nicthod. 'l'lierc is no cumul:ltive cfl'ect of  this change. 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN COIII'ORATION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statcnicnts 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

(m) I1r1~es1nrerrl.s 

The Co~poration carries all investments at fair value. 

Unrestricted net asscts represent assets of the Corporation not pledged as collateral for specilic 
bond indentures. GASB 34 requircs assets restricted by statute to be rcported as unrestricted. 
Assets restricted by statute are approximately S29,200,000 and $2S,100,000 at June 30, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalet~ts 

The statement of cash flows is presented to reflect the activity resulting in a changc in cash and cash 
equivalents. For purposes of the statement of  cash flows, the Corporation considers its equity in the 
State's Treasuty Pools to be cash and cash equivalents. The Corporation's equity consists of cash, Short- 
term and Intermediate-tenn Fixcd Income Pools, and repurchasc agreements held by the State as the 
custodian for the Corporation. 

Govetnment Accounting Standat-ds Board Statement No. 3 (GASB 3) and GASB Technical Bulletin 87-1 
require dcposits and investments to be categorized to indicate the level of risk assumed by the 
Co~yoration at the end of the period. Category 1 consists of investments that arc insured or rcgistered 
and held by the Corporation or its custodian in tile Corporation's name. Category 2 consists of uninsured 
and unregistered investments held by the Corporation or its custodian in the Corporation's name. 
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investnlents held by the Corporation or its custodian not 
in tile Coi-poration's name. 

A summary of cash and cash equivalents at June 30 follo\vs: 

Risk Category 2004 2003 

Fixcd Incon~e pools - $ 16,374,182 10,1S9,270 
Deposits, collateralized 1 3,448,777 4,506,875 
Repurcliase agreements 1 8,152,411 4,692,735 
Deposits, uncollateralized 3 - 7,281 

$ 27,975,370 19,396,161 

Equity in the Fixed Inco~ne pools cannot bc categorized bccause it represents the Corporation's shal-e of 
ownership in the pool tather t l ~ m  owncrship of specific securities. 

Cash and cash cquivalcnts in the amount of S10,911,266 and S9,903,333 for fiscal y a r s  2004 and 2003, 
raspcctively, are subject to certain rcstrictions as spccificd in the bond indentures. 

(Continued) 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

The Fixed Income pool pa~ticipates in the Dcpnrtment of Revenue's securities lending program 
(Program) as allowed by Alaska Statute 37.10.071. Under the Program, fixed income securitics are 
loaned to broker agents or other entities for collateral in the form of cash or securities, with simultaneous 
agreement to return the collatcral for tlie same sccurities in the future. 

Collateral securities tray not be pledged or sold unless tlic borrower defaults. Security loans arc fully 
collateralized at not less than 102 percent of their fair value. There arc no restrictions on tlie amount of 
the loans that can bc made under the program. There is limited credit risk associated with tlie lending 
transactions since loss indeninification is provided if resulting ft-om counterparty failure or default 
(subject to certain limitations). 

At June 30, 2004 and 2003, tlie fair value of securities on loan allocablc to the Corporation totalcd 
S3,243,043 and $1,909,142, rcspectivcly. There were no losses incurred as a result of securities lending 
transactions and there were no significant violations of legal or contractual provisions nor failures by any 
borrowers to return loaned securities during eilhcr fiscal ycar 2004 or fiscal ycar 2003. 

Add~tional investment information is disclosed in the financial schedules issued by the Department of 
Revenue, Treasury Division. These financial schedules arc available through the Department of 
Revenue, Treasury Division, I1.O. Box 110405, Juneau, Alaska 99811-0405 or at 
~\~ww.rcvcnue.state.ak.us/treasury/Pi~blications.htn~. 

(4) Investments 

Allowable restricted investmcnts are spccificd in the bond indcntut-e, as arc ccrtain restrictions. 
Substantially all investments arc held, in trust, for [he benefit of the Corporation and the bondholdcrs. 

The Cot-poration's investments at June 30 are shown below: 

Risk Category 2004 2003 
Categorized investnients: 

U.S. governmcnt and federal 
agcncy securities 1 $ 196,580,925 120,930,342 

Repurchase agrcenients I 38,421,000 41,257,379 
Forward delivery agreements 1 26,819,796 13,000,644 
Cotporatc Bonds 1 2,933,408 - 

Bank investment contracts 3 - 9,340,000 
264.755.1 29 184,528,365 

Non-categorized investmcnts: 
Money inarket pool - 

Government securitics 
Total investments 



ALASKA STUDEXT LOAN CORl'OIL\TION 
(a Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Stalenients 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

Pooled investments cannot be categorized because they represent tile Corporation's sliarc of ownership i n  
the pool rather than ownership of specific sccuritics. 

The carrying value ~S~nves tmcnts  at June 30, 2004, by conlraclual maturity, are shown below: 

Due in one year or less $ 3 15,247,849 
Due within one to five years 98,594,813 
Due in five years or niorc 

Investments include amounts specifically desi~mated for financing education loans. At June 30, 2004 and 
2003 the invcstmcnts available for financing cducation loans total 5148,165,230 and $133,485,683 
respectively. The funds arc available to the Corporation only if cerlain cash flow tests are met. The 
remaining investments held by the Trustee are restricted for debt service, capital reserve and rebate 
requirements. 

(5) Restricted Loans Kcceivable 

A summary of restricted loans receivable, all of which are installment loans to individuals, at June 30 
follows: 

Alaska Supplemental Loans S 534,089,988 537,252,920 
Teacher Education Loans 9,062,785 9,332,715 
Familv Education Loans 9.122.020 9.743.222 . . , . -  
Federal Family Education I.oans 24,973,470 9,817,694 

S 577,248,263 566,146,551 

The loan portfolio summarized by loan status at June 30 tbllows: 

Enrollment 
Gracc 
Repayment 
Deferment 

Loans awarded and not d~sbimod at June 30, 2004 and 2003 told 513,511,526 and SS,723,521 
respectively. 



Al,ASl<A Sl'U1)ISN'I' 1,OhN CORPORATlON 
(a Co~~ipoticnt Unit of tlic State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statelilenrs 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

li~clutletl in loans rcccivable are S45O,S94 and $541,356 of loan wal-rants issued bur not yet rcdcetnctl by 
tlic borrowers at June 30, 2004 and 2003, rcspcctivcly. Ilcdcmplion is contingent upon the borrowers 
meeting certain eligibility rcquiremcnts. 

Restricted loans I-cceivablcs arc pledged lo rhe Corporation's outstatitling bonds. 

(6) Allo\vanee for Doubtful Loans 

A suti~mary of the activ~ty in the allowance for doubtf'ul loans at Junc 30 follows: 

2004 2003 

Balance at beginning of pcriod $ 96,229.397 107,710,286 
Provision for loan losscs 4,439,205 1,229,039 
Net loans charged off (1,335,591) (2,338.0 13) 
Change in estimate (note 2(f)) - (10,371.915) 
Balance at end of period S 99,333,011 96,229,397 

(7) Allowance for Forgive~less 

As tlcscribcd in note 2, the Corpot-ation disburses loms of which principal anti interest become clig~blc 
for forgivcncss undcr certain conditions. 

A summat-y ol'tlie activity in rlic allowance for forgiveness at Jutie 30 lbllows: 

2004 2003 

Billancc at beginning of period S 7,292,031 2,346,535 
1'1-ovision for foreivcncss 418.14s 451.788 . - -  

Foryivcncss granted (314.124) (506.292) 
13alancc 211 crltl ol'pct-iod S 2,396,055 

------.= 
2,292,031 "~--,. 



i\I,hSI<A S T U D E N T  LOAN CORI'ORA'I'ION 
(a Compot~nt  Unit of thc Statc of Alaska) 

Nolcs to Financial Statctncim 

June 30.2004 and 2003 

(a) Bonds paynblc at June 30 consist ot'thc following: 

Amount outsranding 
Ori.~iual 

Outstanding under the I988 Master Indcnture: 

1993 Serics .4 Student Loan Rcvenuc Bonds 
scrial bonds 

1994 Scrics A Student Laan Revenue Bonds 
scrinl bonds, tixed ratcs ranging 
from 5.875% lo 6.0%, due 2005 to 2008 

I995 Scries A Student Loan Revenuc Bonds 
scrial bonds, lixcd ratcs ranging 
from 5.5% to 5.75%. due 2005 to 2009 

1996 Serics A Studcnt Loan Revenuc Bonds 
serial bonds, tisetl ratcs ranging 
from 5.75% to 6.35%, due 2005 io 2013 

I997 Scrics A Studcnt 1.oan Revenuc Bonds 
scrial bonds, tixed ratcs ranging 
li'o~n 5.1 5% to 5.75%, due 2005 to 201 5 

I998 Scrics A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
scrial bonds, tixcd ratcs ranging 
from 4.6% to 5 3 4 ,  duc 2005 to 2016 

I999 Scries A Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
scrial bonds, lisetl rates ranging 
from 4.6% to 5.45%, due 2005 to 201 7 

2000 Scries A Stutlcnt Loan Rcvcnuc Bonds 
scrial bonds, lixcd rates ranging 
from 5.3% to 6.0596, due 2005 to 2018 
w m  bonds, 6.0%, duc July 1, 2016 

2001 Scrics A Stutlcnt Loan Rcvcnuc Bonds 
scrial bonds, iixcd r:ms ranging 
li-onl3.95?/, lo 4.65%. duc 2004 lo 201 1 

I.css bond discounts 
Sub-total I 9SS Master Indcnture 



ALASKA STUDEN'I' LOAN COIII'ORA'I'ION 
(a  Componcnl U n ~ t  o f t h c  State ol' Alaska) 

I'otcs to F ~ n a n c ~ a l  Statements 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

Atiiount outstanding 
Original 

Outstanding under the 2002 Master Indenture: 
Amount 2004 -- 2003 

2002 Series A and B Education Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction variable rate bonds, duc 2009 to 2037 S 62,500,000 62,500,000 62,500,00( 

2003 Scrics A-I and A-2 Education Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction variable rate bonds, due 201 I to 2038 47,000,000 47,000,000 47,000.00( 

2004 Series A-I, A-2, A-3 Etlucation Loan Revenue Bonds 
auction variable rate bonds due 2044 93.1 00,000 93,100,000 -- 
serial bonds, fixed rate ranain!: 
from 5.0% to 5.25%. due 31 1 to 2017 

Plus bond premium 
Sub-total 2002 Master Indenture 

!\mount outstantling 
Original 
Amount 2004 2003 

Outstanding ondcr the 2004 Indenture: 

2004 Scrics A Capital Project Rcvcnuc Bonds 
scrial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
from 2.0% to 4.096, tluc 2005 to 20 17 
lerm bonds. 4.0%, due July 1 ,  201 S 

Plus botid premium 
Sub-Total 2002 lntlcnturc 

Uonds I'ayablc 
I'lus bond prcmiunli Lcss bond discounts 



AlASKA SI'UDICN'I' L,O,\N CORPORATION 
(;I Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial St i~tc~ncnts  

June 30.2004 and 2003 

(b) The ruinimum payments anti sinking l i d  install~ncnts related to the each inden~ure for the five 
years subsequent to Junc 30, 2004 and tllerealier are as ibllows: 

1988 Master Indenture 

Period ending 
June 30 Interest 

2002 Master indenture 

I'criod ending 
June 30 Principal Interest 'rot;~l 



Al,ASI<A STUDICNI' LOAN CORPORATION 
(a Component U11tt of the State of  Alaska) 

Notes 10 Financial Statcmcnts 

Juilc 30. 2004 and 2003 

I'eriod ending 
June 30 -~ Principal Intcrcsi Total 

Total for a11 Bonds 

I'eriod ending 
June 30 .. l'rinci@ Intcrcst Total -- .- 

(c) The 1988 and 2002 blaster Indcnturc Bonds arc 111-ivste acti\:ity bonds. 'l'hc 2004 111denturc 
Bonds arc not private activity bontls. 1\11 of the  bonds pay interest scmiai~nually. The bonds arc 
secured by education loans and other assets of  the Corporation and m e  not obligations of the 
State. 

All of the bonds are subject to certain carly redemption fceturcs, both mandatory and at t l ~ c  
option of the Colporation. In atltlition, the  bond illdcntul-cs contain covcnanrs relative to 
rcs~rictinns 1111 ildditin~xtl itldcbtcdtless. 



M,ASKA SIUDEN'I LOAN CORPOR,t'TIOZI 
(a Component Untt oft110 State of.4laska) 

Notes to I'tnancial Statctnents 

June 30, 2004 and 2003 

(11) On June 5, 2003, tlic Corporation issued $47,000,000 in ctlucation loan revenue bonds, o ~ w l i i c l ~  
Sl5,SS5,000 was Sor the purpose of refunding thc outsklnding 1993 Scries A bonds at par. Tlie 
refittiding occurred on July I ,  2004. 

'l'lic rcfunding portion of  the Set-ies 2003A-2 bonds was issued as auction variable iatc 
certiticates in which the ititerest is reset evety 35 days and tlic principal payment d i e  June 1. 
2038. The initial interest rate on the Series 2003A-2 bonds \\,as 1.12%. The rcfuntlcd 1993 
Series A bonds interest rates were tixed rates ranging liom 5.5% to 5.625% and wcre due in level 
debt scrvicc paymcnts, with the tinal pnytixnt due July 1, 2006. The  refimding resulted in 
aggregate debt service payments ovcr the next seven years in a total amount of approximately 
$400,000 less than the debt service payments which would havc been due on the rcfuntled bonds. 
Based on the Series 2003A-2 bonds' initial intcrest rate of  1.12%, thcrc will be an estimated 
cconomic gain of $900,000. Economic gain is calculatcd as !he net difference between the 
prcscct value ol'thc old dcbt scrvicc requirements and the prescnt value of the new dcbt service 
rcquirements, discounted at the efrcctive intcrest ratc aud adjusted for additional cash paid. 

(c) On May 19, 2004, the Corporation issued $1 l5 , I  15.000 in education loan revenue bonds, of' 
which $13,055,000 was for the purpose of rcfunding the oulstand~ng 1994 S e r m  A bonds and 
$26.400.000 was ibr the purpose of refunding a portion of thc Series 2002 A bonds, both at Far. 

T h e  1994 Scries A rclirnding occurred on July  1, 2004. The refunding portion of the Scries 
2004A-2 bontls was issued as auction variable ratc certificates in wliicli thc intcrcst is reset cvety 
35  days and the principal pnytiicnt due June I ,  2044. Thc initial interest I-ate on the Series 
2004A-2 bonds was 1.18%. The rcl'undcd 1994 Series A bonds intcrest rates were lixed ratcs 
ranging liom 5.875% to 6 %  and were due in lcvcl dcbt service payments, with the h a 1  payment 
due July 1 ,  2007. Tlie rerunding resulted in aggregate debt setvice paymcnts ovcr the next seven 
years in a total amount of approxitnatcly $700,000 less than the debt scrvicc paymcnts wliicli 
would liave been duc on the rcl'undcd bonds. Based on tllc Series 2004A-2 bonds' initial interest 
rate of  1. IS%, thcrc will be an estimated economic gain ofS740,000. 

( t  The  Scrics 2002 A rcl'untling occurred on August 16. 2004. The ~rclitndiny portion of the Scrics 
2004 A-1 was issucd as auction variable ratc ccrtilicates in which the interest is I-csct every 35 
days and the priticip;ll payment due Junc 1.  2044. 'I'hc initial inlet-cst ratc on the Scries 2004 A-l 
bonds was 1.20%. The  refunded Scries 2002 A bonds were issucd as auction variable ratc 
certilic:itc~ in ~ I i i c l i  [lie interest rate reset cvcty 35 days and the principal payments were due 
Junc 1 .  2009 and 2010. The relittiding was effcclcd to cstcnd tlic maturity d;ltcs oi'tiiesc bontls 
to June I ,  2044. Thcrc is no expected cconomic gain or cliilngc in dcbt scrvice payments ovcr the 
next six years. 

(9) Arbitrage l<eb;~te  Pay:lble 

111 connection wit11 tile Corporation's 1;ls-cscmpt bond issuus, ihc Corporation is subject to I-ch;ltablc 
at-bitl-age W I ~ C I I  hond procccils at-c invcstcd in invcstmcnls :ind cducntion loans. Interest incotnu it on^ 
invcstmcnis ;tnd ctlucation loans is limilcd by the U S .  'l'ru;~sury rcgula~ions. '1'111: ntnount ;iccntcd lbr 



AIASKA S'I'UDEN'I' LOAN CORPORA'I'ION 
(:I Cotnpcment Unit oftlie State ol'i\lask;t) 

Notes Lo I'inancial Statements 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

arbitrage rebate liability at June 30, 2004 and 2003, represents the amount of arbitrage rebate due to the 
fcdcral government for excess earnings on tlie bond proceeds. 

(10) Student Loan Interest and Special Allowance on l:ederally Citaranteed Loans 

'l'hc U.S. Department of Education makes quarterly interest subsidy pnylnents on behalf of qualilicd 
students until tlie student is required under provisions o f t he  IHigher Education Act to begin repayment. 
Repayment on Stafford Education loans nor~nally begins within six months after students complete their 
course of' study, leave school, or cease to carly nt least one-half the normal full-time academic load as 
detertilined by the educational institution. Repayment of PLUS loans nornially bcgins within sixty days 
fiom the date of loan disbursement unless a deferment of payments has been granted. In these cases, full 
repayment of principal and interest would resume at the expiration of the dcfcrnicnt. Interest accrues 
durins this tlefertiient period. 

The U S .  Dcparhient of Education provides a special allowance payment to lenders participating in the 
Stafford, PLUS, and Consolidation loan programs. Special allowance is paid based on a rate h a t  is 
established quarterly. For loans lirst disbursed after June 30, 1999 and financed witli obligations issued 
after October 1, 1993, the rate is based on tlie average rate established in the auction of the tlirec-month 
Financial Coriirnercial Paper, plus a predetct-mined factor, less the interest rate on the loan. Loans ~iiatle 
or purchased witli funds obvained through the issuance of tax-exempt obligations issued before October 
1, 1993 arc eligible for one-half of the special allowance rate, subject lo a tnininium rctuni of 9.5%. 
Loans originated or  purchased with funds obtained through the issuance of tax-exempt obligations 
originally issued afier Octobcr I, I993 are eligible for full spccial allowance and are not subject to a 
minimum relurn. 

(I I)  Retirement Plan 

Effective July 1.  1997, the Commission adopted the provisions of Go\~crnmcnt Accountins Standards 
Board State~iicnt No. 27 (GASB 27), Accowzririg ,h Petisioru I)!, Slute arzd Loci11 Gover.tzrrreni 
E t ~ ~ p l o j ~ e l : ~ .  'l'hcre was no inipact on the financial statements as a result of GASR 27. 

'l'lie Commission and its cmployccs pal-ticipatc it1 tlic State of Alaska I'ublic liniployccs' 
I<ctircmcnt System (PEIIS), as a dciinctl benelit, agctit niultiplc-employer public employee 
rctiretnent system wliicll was cstablished antl is adtninisterctl by the State to provide pension, 
post-cniploymc~it healthcare, and death and disability bcneiits to eligible eniployces. All I'uII- 
time ctnployccs are required to participate in I'ERS. Rcnclit antl contribution pt-ovisions arc 
cst:iblishcd by Statc law and may be amended only by the State 1.cgislatui-e. 

Ilmployccs hit-ctl \xior to July I ,  19S6 with five or inore years ofcrcditcd service arc cntitlcd to 
annual pension bcnclits beginning at iiortnal rctit-cnictit age tifty-live or carly rctircmctit age 
filiy. For cmployccs hired alicr June 30, 1'XO the normal rctilcmcnt :~gc  is sixty :ind the early 
retircmcnt age is liliy-live. 'l'hc not-tiial annual pension henelit for the lirst rcn years of set-vice is 
equal to 2% pcr year of ihc inemher's highest tlircc-year :weray yearly conipcnsation, 2.25% per 
pc;~r lbt- tlic sccoiitl icn y c m  ofscrvicc. and 2.5% per year tlicrciilic~-. All scrvicc c~irt~cd prior to 
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July 1, 1986 is calculated using the 2% multiplier. Employees with thitty or  more years of 
crcditcd scrvicc may retirc at any age and receive ;I nornial benelit. Major m e d i a ~ l  benefits are 
provided witlioul cost to all rctirecs first hired heforc July I .  1986. Metnbcrs with five or  niore 
years o f  credited sen'ice first hired after June 30, 1986, but bcfot-c July 1 ,  1996, may elect m;ljor 
nicdical benefits. Mcmbers lirst liircd after June 30, 1996 must obtain at least ten ycars of 
credited service to bc  eligible to clect major rncdical bcnefits. 

Each fiscal year, PERS issues a publicly available financial rcport that includes financial 
statctnents and requircd supplcmcntary inforniation. 'l'liat report may be  obtained by writing lo 
the Statc o f  Alaska, Department o f  Administration, Division o f  Retirement and Benefits, P.O. 
Box 110203 Juneau, Alaska 9921 1-0203 o r  b y  calling (907) 465-4460. 

(b) Ftrrtd Policy arrd Arrrrrrol Pcrrsiort Cost 

Eniployees arc rcquired, by State statute, to contribute 6.75% of their gross wagc to the plan. 
The  funding policy for PERS provides for periodic ctnploycr contributions at actuarially 
dctcrniincd rates that, expressed as  a percentagc of annual covercd payroll, are sufficient to 
accumulate sufficicnt assets to pay bcnetits wlicn due. Covcred payroll for thc period endcd 
Junc 30, 2004, was approxiiiiately $4,361,000 constituting substantially all o f  tlie Comniission's 
payroll. The Co~iunission's annual pension cost for the current year and the rclatcd infortii a t'  on 
is as  Sollows: 

Contribution ratcs: 
Lmplopcc 
Employer 

Annual Pcnsion cost to date $ 333,540 
Contributions made $ 333,540 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization nictliod 
Amortization pcrtod 
Assct valuation tnethod 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Inllation rate 
lnvcstmcnl rcturn 

I'rnjccted salary incrcasc: 
Inllation 
I'roductivity and mcrit 

Junc 30,2003 
Projected unit credit 
Lcvcl pcrccntagc of pay 
25-year Fixed 
5-year stnootlicd market 

3.50% pcr year 
8.25% pcr year, compounded ;~nnually, net 

ofcSpCIlSC. 

I lcaltll cost trend 
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In the current ycar, the Commission dctcrmined, in accordance with provisions of GASB 27, that no 
pension liability (asset) exisled to PERS and there was no previously repotted lialility (assct). 

(a) 0pcrarion.s 

The Commission includcd npproximntcly $9,600,000 in its budget for liscal ycar 2005 as 
reimbursement f'rom the Corporation for administrativc and capital expenses incurred on tlic 
Corporation's bchalf. Amounts paid by the Cotporation will be subject to rcvision based upon 
actual expenses incurred by the Commission. 

(b) Pajwerrr to the Stare ofAInsktr 

Iluring fiscal yeas 2000 the Alaska legislature passed a bill that allows the Corporation to pay the 
State a return of contributed capital or dividend annually based on net income. IS the 
Corporation's Road of Directors elects to make such a payment, the amount may not be less 
than lo%, nor greater than 35%, of the Corporation's income before transfers when it equals or 
exceeds $2,000,000 for the Base Fiscal Yeas. The Base Fiscal Ycar is defined as the fiscal ycar 
ending two years before the end of the fiscal ycar in which the payment is made. 

O n  September 23, 2004, the Corporation's Board of Directors approvctl a $5,600,000 Return of 
Capital payment to the State which will be paid during the liscal yeat- 2005. 

During fiscal ycar 2004 the Alaska legislature passed a bill allowing the Corporation an 
additional means to pay the Starc a retunl of contributed capital. 'The Corporation is now 
permitted to use its bonding authority to return capital invested in the loan program Inck to the 
State. By ywr-end, n Capital Project Revenue account was cstablislied and lilndcd with 
S75,000,000 for use in linancial various State capital pmjccts. 

(c) Irrtmest Cost Retlrrctiorr 

011 Dccembcr 4, 2000, the Colpration Doard of Directors authorized an intcrcst cost rcductiori 
fbr loans awa~dctl with intcrcst rates of 9%, S.9%, and 8.6%. 'The atnou~it of the reduction will 
mnge from thrcc-tenths perccnt (.3%) to scven-tenths perccnt (.7%) oftlie oulstanding principal 
balance of the loan. The ;lggl-cgate cost reduction in liscal ycar 2004 was npproximntcly 
$883.000. 'l'hc Co~poration expects the cost to continue to decline each yew, rci~clling a linal 
reduction ol'apprositnatcly $40.000 by ycar 2022. 
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by an amendment to tlie Alaska Statulcs.'l'hc Commission timy seize a borrowcr's Permanent 
Fund Dividcnd (I'FL)) payment, if any, to satisSy tlic balance of a defitulted loan pursuant to 
Alaska Statutes 14.43.345 ant1 43.23.067. To do so, tlie Commission issues certilicd claim lcttcrs 
to all borrowers oi'defiiultcd loans applying for PFD, notilying tlicm of the Commission's clai~n. 
'I'lie Conimission has seimrc priority over all other executors except State child suppo~i 
cnforccmcnt and any court ordered restitution. 'l'licrc is no assurance that any patticular 
borrower will qualilL or apply for a PFD paytilent. 

PFD seizures collected by tlie Comrnission were approximately $4,900,000 and $6,800,000 for 
the years ended June 30,2004 and 2003, respectively. 

'The Legislature and the Governor have, from time to time, considered various alternative 
mcasurcs including reducing or restricting tlie size of tlie I'FD. Tlic Corporation cannot predict 
whether any such measure will be enactcd or the impact any such measure would have on loan 
collections tlirougli PFD seizures. 

(e) Gmerul 

The education loan program has traditionally been the subject of lcgislative action by the State. 
The laws governing the program have been a~neridcd from time io time and will continue to be 
the subject of Icgislative proposals calling for funher amcndmcnt. The effect, if any, on tlic 
program cannot be dctcrniinctl. 

'l'lic Corporation is subject to interest rate risk relating to its variable rate bonds and the loans 
funded with bond proceeds. The bonds are subject to an interest ratc cap of 14% while the loans 
are subject to an interest rate cap of S.25% to 9.5% depending on the loan type. Thc Corporation 
has various strategies llvailable to manage the risk that tlic bond rate may rise above the loan ratc 
cap. 

(13) Subsequent Event 

As further described in Notc 8, on May 19, 2004, tlic Corporation issued $1 15.1 15,000 i n  educalion loan 
revenue bonds in pnrt for refunding at par $13,055,000 oS the outstanding Set-ies 1994 A bonds and 
526,400,000 of tlic Series 2002 A bonds. The Scrics 1994 A rcli~ndiny will occur on July I, 2004 and 
tlie Scrics 2002 A refunding will occur on August 16, 2004. 
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Exhibit A CustodianlDepositarylServicing 
Agreement 

THIS INDENTURE, made and entered 
into as of March 1, 2005, by and between the 
ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION, a 
public corporation and government instrumentally 
created and existing under the laws of the State of 
Alaska (herein called the "Corporation" or the 
"Issuer"), and U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION organized and existing under the 
laws of the United States, as Trustee (herein 
called the "Trustee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Corporation isauthorized 
by the Act (as herein defined) to issue its bonds for 
the purposeof returning capital contributionsto the 
State of Alaska; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has 
determined to enter into this lndenture with the 
Trustee to secure its Bonds (as herein defined) as 
the Corporation may elect to issue such Bonds 
from time to time in accordance with the terms of 
this lndenture and of any Supplemental lndenture 
executed pursuant to this lndenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds shall be special, 
limited obligations of the Corporation, and the 
principal and redemption premium, if any, of and 
interest on the Bonds shall be payable solely from 
theTrust Estate (as defined herein), subject to the 

Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
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provisions of this lndenture authorizing the 
Corporation to create security interests in said 
Trust Estate in favor of Credit Enhancement 
Agencies (as defined herein) and counterpartiesto 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreements and, further, 
subject to the provisions of this lndenture 
authorizing the Corporation to create Classes (as 
defined herein) and to grant security interests in 
the Trust Estate that are prioritized based upon 
such Classes: and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the 
issuance of any Bonds, the Corporation may 
obtain Credit Enhancement or enter into lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreements (as such terms are 
defined herein) and may secure its obligations 
under such Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreements by a pledge of the Trust 
Estate described below, and such pledge may be 
of a priority less than, equal to, or greater than the 
pledge of theTrust Estate to any class or Series of 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the time of issuance of any 
Series of Bonds, the form of Bonds, and other 
relevant terms of Bonds are to be specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture pertaining to such Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of 
this lndenture have been authorized bv Resolution 
2005-01 of the Corporation, a certiied copy of 
which has been delivered to the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, all things necessary to make 
the Bonds, when authorized pursuant to a duly 
adopted Supplemental lndenture and 
authenticated by the Trustee and issued as in this 
lndenture provided, the valid, binding and legal 
special, limited obligations of the Corporation 
according to the import thereof, and to constitute 
this lndenture a valid pledge and assignment of 
the Trust Estate to the payment of the principal or 
redemption price, if any, of and interest on the 
Bonds and all other amounts due in connection 
therewith (subject to the provisions of this 
lndenture authorizing the Corporation to create a 
security interest in the Trust Estate in favor of 
Credit Enhancement Agencies and counterparties 
to lnterest Rate Exchange Agreements) have been 
done and performed, and the creation, execution 
and delivery of this lndenture and the creation, 
execution and issuance of the Bonds subject to the 



terms hereof, have in all respects been duly 
authorized; 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL PERSONS BY 
THESEPRESENTS 

GRANTING CLAUSES 

That the Corporation, in consideration of 
the premises and the acceptance by theTrusteeof 
the trusts hereby created and of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by the Bondholders, and 
for good andvaluable consideration, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to 
secure the payment of the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on the Bonds and the 
obligations of the Corporation arising under any 
Credit Enhancement facility and any lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement (but only if and to the extent 
that the Corporation expressly grants a security 
interest under this lndenture in favor of such Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the Bonds to which such Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement relates), all according to their tenor and 
effect and all other amounts due in connection 
therewith and the performance and observance by 
the Corporation of all the covenants expressed or 
implied herein and in the Bonds, in such Credit 
Enhancement facilities, and in such lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreements, does hereby grant, 
bargain, sell, convey, pledge and assign unto, and 
grant a first priority security interest in and to the 
Trustee, and unto its respective successors in 
trust, and to their respective assigns, forever, for 
the securing of the performance of the obligations 
of the Corporation hereinafter set forth, the 
following (herein, the "Trust Estate"): 

The Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts. 
and Pledged Loan Notes (all as the same are 
defined herein) including all extensions and 
renewals of the term thereof, if any, together with 
all right, title and interest of the Corporation 
therein, including, but without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the present and 
continuing right to claim, collect and receive any of 
the moneys, income, revenues, issues, profits and 
other amounts payable or receivable thereunder, 
to bring actions and proceedings thereunder or for 

the enforcement thereof, and to do any and all 
things which the Corporation is or may become 
entitled to do under the Pledged Loan Notes; 
provided, however, that the foregoing pledge is 
subject to the Corporation's right to modify the 
terms of, orto take other actions which may affect. 
the Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts, and 
Pledged Loan Notes pursuant to Section 707 
herein. 

II. 

All Funds and Accounts (except any Credit 
Enhancement Fund) and moneys and investments 
therein including, but not limited to, undisbursed 
proceeds of Bonds and amounts held under the 
CustodianlDepositary/Se~icing Agreement; 

Any and all service or support agreements 
by and between the Corporation and either the 
Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education, 
including without limitation the agreement 
governing the administration of the Education Loan 
Trust Fund established in the Corporation by the 
Act to the extent they relate to any Pledged Loans; 

All moneys and securities from time to 
time held by the Trustee under the terms of this 
lndenture (except moneys and securities in any 
Credit Enhancement Fund) and any and all other 
real or personal property of every name and nature 
concurrently herewith or from time to time 
hereafter by delivery or by writing of any nature 
conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned or 
transferred as and for additional security underthis 
lndenture for the Bonds, to the extent so 
conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned or 
transferred by the Corporation or by anyone in its 
behalf, or with its written consent, to the Trustee, 
which is hereby authorized to receive any and all 
such property at any and all times and to hold and 
apply the same subject to the terms hereof; and 

Any and all proceeds of the foregoing. 
subject, in all cases, to the terms and provisions of 
this lndenture governing the use and application of 
all such property and rights in property including 
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the Corporation's right to withdraw, free and clear 
of the lien of this lndenture, Pledged Loans, cash 
and other properly held hereunder or credited 
hereto subject to the requirements hereof; 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular 
the Trust Estate, whether now owned or hereafter 
acquired, unto the Trustee and its respective 
successors and assigns in trust forever to its and 
their own proper use and behalf but; 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the 
terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal and 
proportionate benefit, security and protection of all 
present and future owners of the Bonds from time 
to time issued and to be issued under and secured 
by this lndenture without privilege, priority or 
distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any of the 
Bonds except to the extent that any privilege, 
priority, or distinction may be created pursuant to 

and disposed of under, upon and subject to the 
terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants, 
agreements, trusts, uses and purposes as 
hereinafter expressed, and the Corporation has 
agreed and covenanted, and does hereby agree 
and covenant with the Trustee and with the 
respective holders of the Bonds as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATiONS 

Section 101 , Definitions. In this 
Indenture, unless the context otherwise requires. 
the following words and terms shall have the 
meanings set forth in this Section: 

"Account" shall mean one of the special 
accounts created and established pursuant to 
Section 501 or Section 510 of this lndenture. 

the terms of this Indenture with respect to the "Accountant" shall mean a certified public 
creation of Classes (as defined herein): accountant or firm of indeoendent certified oublic . . 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the 
Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall well 
and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on, the 
Bonds due or to become due thereon, and all other 
amounts due thereunder, at the times and in the 
manner mentioned in the Bonds according to their 
tenor and in accordance herewith, and shall cause 
the payments to be made on the Bonds as 
required under Article V and Article VII hereof, or 
shall provide, as permitted hereby, forthe payment 
thereof, and shall well and truly keep, perform and 
observe all the covenants and conditions pursuant 
to the terms of this lndenture to be kept, performed 
and observed by it, and shall pay or cause to be 
paid to the Trustee all sums of money due or to 
become due to it in accordance with the terms and 
provisions of this lndenture, then upon the final 
payment thereof this lndenture and the rights 
hereby granted shall cease, terminate and be void; 
othenvise this lndenture to be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

THIS INDENTUREOFTRUSTFURTHER 
WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared, that 
all Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be 
issued, authenticated and delivered and all of the 
property, rights and interests, including, without 
limitation, the loan payments and other amounts 
hereby assigned and pledged are to be dealt with 

accountants selected bv the Corooration and may 
be the accountant or-firm of accountants that 
regularly audits the books of the Corporation. 

"Act" shall mean Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990 of the Alaska Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Additional Bonds" shall mean Bonds 
other than the first series of Bonds authenticated 
and delivered under this lndenture. 

"Authorized Newspaper" shall mean a 
newspaper or financial journal printed in the 
English language and customarily published 
(except in the case of legal holidays) at least once 
a day for at least five days in each calendar week, 
which is of general circulation in the Borough of 
Manhattan, City and State of New York. 

"Authorized Officer" shall mean the 
Chairman or Executive Officer of the Corporation 
and, in the case of an act to be performed or a 
duty to be discharged, any member, officer or 
employee of the Corporation then authorized by 
the Chairman or Executive Officer or by action of 
the Board of Directors of the Corporation to 
perform such act or discharge such duty. 
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"Bond shall mean one of the bonds, 
notes, or other evidences of indebtedness 
authenticated and delivered under this Indenture. 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean any firm of 
attorneys selected by the Corporation and 
acceptable to the Trustee that is recognized 
nationally as expert in the area of municipal 
finance and tax-exempt obligations. 

"Bondholder" or "holder" or words of 
similar import, when used with reference to a Bond 
or Bonds, shall mean any person who shall be the 
registered owner of any Outstanding Bond or 
Bonds issued in fully registered form or the bearer 
of any Bond or Bonds issued in bearer form or 
registered to bearer. 

"Bond Payment Date" shall mean any day 
on which interest, principal, redemption premium 
or any other payment on a Bond is required to be 
made, whether at maturity, redemption or 
otherwise. 

"Bond Year" shall mean the twelvemonth 
period beginning on July 1 of any year (but not 
including any year in which there are no Bonds or 
Parity Obligations outstanding) and ending on 
June 30 of the following year. 

"Business Day" shall mean any day other 
than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on 
which banks in New York, Alaska, or the state or 
states in which any Trustee appointed hereunder 
performs its duties hereunder are authorized or 
required to be closed or are closed. 

"By Class in Descending Order of Priority" 
shall mean that any action to be so taken shall be 
taken first with respect to the Bonds that are 
designated as the highest priority Class of Bonds 
Outstanding until there is no such action required 
for such Bonds and then such action shall be 
taken for each lower priority Class of Bonds 
Outstanding in order until such action shall no 
longer be required for each such Class. 

"Capital Reserve Fund" shall mean the 
capital reserve fund created pursuant to Section 
501 and described as such under the Act. 

"Capital Reserve Fund Requirement," 
shall mean, at any time, Eligible Capital Reserve 

Assets in an amount equal to the least of the 
following: (1) 10% of the stated principal amount of 
the Bonds then Outstanding; (2) 125% of the 
average annual principal and interest requirements 
on all Bonds then Outstanding; or (3) the 
maximum annual principal and interest 
requirements on all Bonds then Outstanding. 

"Certificate" shall mean a signed 
document either attesting to or acknowledging the 
circumstances, representations or other matters 
therein stated or set forth or setting forth matters to 
be determined by an Authorized Officer pursuant 
to this indenture. 

"Class" shall mean one or more Series of 
Bonds, Credit Enhancementfacilities, and Interest 
Rate Exchange Agreements having the same 
security interest with respect to the Trust Estate. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commission" shall mean the Alaska 
Commission on Postsecondary Education. 

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" shall 
mean, for each Series, the continuing disclosure 
certificate or agreement, if any, executed by the 
Corporation for the purpose of satisfying the 
continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15c2- 
12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
with respect to such Series, as such continuing 
disclosure certificate or agreement is originally 
executed and as it may be amended from time to 
time in accordance with its terms. 

"Corporation" shall mean the Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation, a public corporation 
and government instrumentality created and 
existing pursuant to the Act. 

"Costs of issuance" shall mean all items of 
expense directly or indirectly payable or 
reimbursable by or to the Corporation and related 
to the authorization, sale, or issuance of Bonds, 
including, but not limited to, printing costs: costs of 
preparation and reproduction of documents; filing 
and recording fees; initial fees and charges of any 
Fiduciary and its counsel: legal fees and charges; 
underwriting compensation; placement agent 
compensation; fees and disbursements of 
consultants and professionals; costs of credit 

Alaska Student Loan Corporalion 
MASTER INDENTURE 



ratings; fees and charges of any Credit 
Enhancement Agency in connection with providing 
Credit Enhancement for any of the Bonds; fees 
and charges for preparation, execution. 
transportation and safekeeping of Bonds; costs 
and expenses of refunding; premiums for the 
insurance of the payment of Bonds; and any other 
cost, charge or fee in connection with the original 
issuance of Bonds. 

"Counsel's Opinion" shall mean an opinion 
signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys of 
nationally recognized standing in the field of law 
relating to state and municipal financing (who may 
be counsel to the Corporation) selected by the 
Corporation and acceptable to the Trustee. 

"Credit Enhancement" shall mean a letter 
of credit, a line of credit, a credit facility, a surety 
bond, bond insurance, or any other instrument or 
arrangement obtained in connection with the 
issuance of a Series of Bonds to further secure the 
payment of the Bonds of such Series or the 
payment of any Pledged Loans. 

"Credit Enhancement Agency" shall mean 
any bank or other institution that provides Credit 
Enhancement. 

"Credit Enhancement Fund" shall mean a 
Fund or Account authorized to be created by the 
Corporation under Section 510(B) for the purposes 
of holding and disbursing the proceeds of, or 
holding only, Credit Enhancement. 

"Custod ian lDepos i tary lServ ic ing 
Agreement" shall mean that certain agreement 
with respect to custody of a portion of the Trust 
Estate by and amongthe Corporation, the Trustee, 
and the State through the Commission and 
through its Department of Revenue, dated March 
1, 2005. 

"Debt Service" shall mean, for a Series of 
Bonds Outstanding and for any Parity Obligations 
Outstanding, the scheduled amount of interest and 
Principal Installments payable on the Bonds of 
such Series or on such Parity Obligations (or 
substantially equivalent payments due on Parity 
Obligations) during the period of computation. 

"Default Payment" shall mean all amounts 
(in any form) received by the Corporation, by the 

Trustee acting on behalf of the Bondholders, or by 
any agent of either of them as a result of the 
acceleration of the due date of any Pledged Loan 
because of an event of default with respect to such 
Pledged Loan. 

"Depositary" shall mean the State or any 
bank or trust company or national banking 
association selected by the Trustee or the 
Corporation as a depositary of moneys or 
securities held under the provisions of this 
Indenture, and may include the Trustee, if such 
party agrees to hold such money or securities as 
an agent of the Trustee. 

"Event of Default" shall mean any of the 
events specified in clauses (1) through (7) of 
Section 1002. 

"Excess Coverage" shall mean, as of any 
date of calculation, and except as otherwise 
prowded in a S~pp.emental Indenture, the amount 
ov whcn the sum of the value of la) the Pledaed 
  bans (valued at par plus accrued interest and 
accrued Special Allowance Payments, as such 
term is defined in the Higher Education Act, if any) 
credited to the Education Loan Fund and (b) all 
cash and Investment Securities held in the Funds 
and Accounts (valued as set forth herein or in the 
pertinent Supplemental Indenture, plus accrued 
interest, but excluding amounts irrevocably set 
aside to pay particular Bonds pursuant to Section 
1201) shall exceed all of the following sums taken 
individually and not as an aggregate: (x) 107% of 
the sum of the principal and accrued interest on all 
Outstanding Class I Bonds; and (y) 101.5% of the 
sum of the principal of and accrued interest on all 
Outstanding Bonds; all as evidenced in a 
Certificate, upon which the Trustee may 
conclusively rely. 

"Fiduciary" shall mean the Trustee, 
Registrar or any Paying Agent or any Co-Paying 
Agent or Co-Registrar for the Bonds or any Series 
of Bonds. 

"Fitch" means Fitch, Inc. and its 
successors and assigns. 

"Fund shall mean one of the special trust 
funds established pursuant to Section 501 (A) or 
Section 510. 
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"Guarantor" shall mean any entity which 
has entered into an agreement with the 
Corporation to guarantee education loans under 
the Higher Education Act or other federal law and 
has entered into an agreement with the Secretary 
for reinsurance of its guarantees of education 
loans. 

"Higher Education Act" shall mean Title IV 
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, 
or any successor federal act, and the regulations. 
directives, bulletins, and guidelines promulgated 
thereunder. 

"lndenture" shall mean this lndenture as 
from time to time amended and supplemented in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean any 
date upon which interest on any Bonds is payable 
in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and the 
terms of this lndenture or any Supplemental 
Indenture. 

"Interest Rate Exchange Agreement" shall 
mean a contract entered into by the Corporation or 
by the Trustee on behalf of the Corporation 
providing for an interest rate cap, floor, or swap 
with respect to any Bonds or Pledged Loans. 

"Investment Securities" shall have the 
meaning, with respect to any Class, set forth in 
any of the Supplemental Indentures authorizing a 
Series of Bonds of such Class if any of the Bonds 
of such Class and Series are Outstanding at the 
time of reference, provided that if more than one 
Series of Bonds of a particular Class has Bonds 
Outstanding and the meanings in the 
Supplemental lndenturesare different, lnvestment 
Securities shall mean only those investments 
appearing in both or all Supplemental Indentures 
for Bonds of such Series and Class (in the 
determination of the Trustee, which shall be 
conclusive). 

"Letter of Instructions" shall mean a letter 
or other written communication from Bond Counsel 
relating to the satisfaction of any Code provisions 
or Regulations applicable to any Bonds. 

"Original Purchaser" shall mean with 
respect to each Series the first purchaser or 

purchasers of the Bonds of such Series from the 
Corporation. 

"Outstanding", when used with reference 
to Bonds, shall mean, as of any date, all Bonds 
theretofore or thereupon being authenticated and 
delivered under this lndenture except: 

(1) Any Bonds canceled by the 
Corporation or the Trustee at or prior to 
such date; 

(2) Bonds for the transfer or 
exchange of or in lieu of or in substitution 
for which other Bonds shall have been 
authenticated and delivered pursuant to 
this indenture; and 

(3) Bonds deemed to have been paid 
as provided in subsection (B) of 
Section 1201. 

"Parity Obligations" shall mean bonds, 
notes, or other obligations so described in 
Section 209(A) hereof and issued under or 
secured by a Parity Obligation Instrument. 

"Parity Obligation Instrument" shall mean 
the indenture, resolution, or other instrument 
securing any Parity Obligation and underwhich the 
Parity Obligation was issued. 

"Paying Agent" shall mean any bank or 
trust company, which may include the Trustee. 
designated by the Corporation as paying agent or 
co-paying agent for the Bonds of any Series, and 
its or their successor or successors hereafter 
appointed in the manner herein provided. 

"Permitted Spread" shall mean the 
maximum spread between the yield on the Bonds 
of a Series and the yield on the Pledged Loans 
financed with proceeds of, or, under the Code or 
the Regulations, allocable to, the Series permitted 
under the Code and the Regulations without 
adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of such 
Bonds. 

"Pledged Loan" shall mean any loan held 
in or credited to the Pledged Loan Fund under this 
Indenture. 
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"Pledged Loan Fund" shall mean the 
Pledged Loan Fund established pursuant to 
Section 501. 

"Pledged Loan Note" shall mean the 
promissory note or other documentation 
evidencing a Pledged Loan. 

"Pledged Receipts" shall mean (i) all 
revenues pledged by the Corporation in any 
Supplemental lndenture (ii) all amounts, including 
principal and interest payments, paid or payable or 
otherwise received under or pursuant to or with 
respect to any Pledged Loan (monthly or 
otherwise) including, without limitation, both timely 
and delinquent payments with late charges, fees 
and charges, special allowance payments, 
insurance or guaranty payments, subsidy 
payments, andall other revenuesand income paid 
to the Trustee, the Corporation, or any agent of 
either on account of or in connection with any 
Pledged Loan, (iii) all Recoveries of Principal, and 
(iv) all interest paid or payable or any gain realized 
upon the investment or deposit of amounts in any 
Fund or Account, but shall not include any amount 
retained by any Servicer of any Pledged Loan 
(other than the Corporation, the Commission, or 
any related entity) as compensation for services 
rendered. 

"Prepayment" shall mean any amount 
received or recovered as a prepayment of the 
principal amount of any Pledged Loan, including 
any prepayment penalty, fee, premium or other 
such additional charge, less the amount retained 
by any Servicer of such Pledged Loan, other than 
the Corporation, as additional compensation 
resulting from such prepayment. 

"Principal lnstallment" shall mean, as of 
any date of calculation and with respect to the 
Outstanding Bonds of any Series, (i) the principal 
amount of such Bonds which are due on a certain 
future date, reduced by the aggregate principal 
amount of such Bonds which would be retired by 
reason of the payment when due and application 
in accordance with this lndenture of Sinking Fund 
Payments payable before such future date for the 
retirement of such Bonds or (ii) the unsatisfied 
balance, determined as provided in 
subsection 505(E), of any Sinking Fund Payment 
due on a certain future date for such Bonds, plus 
the aggregate amount of the premiums, i f  any, 
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which would be applicable on such future date 
upon the redemption of such Bonds by application 
of such Sinking Fund Payments in a principal 
amount equal to said unsatisfied balance or (iii) if 
such future dates coincide as to different Bonds of 
such Series, the sum of such principal amount of 
Bonds, unsatisfied balance and applicable 
premiums, if any or (iv) for any particular Series of 
Bonds the amount specified in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing such Series of Bonds. 

"Principal Installment Date" shall mean 
any date upon which a Principal Installment is 
payable on any Bond in accordance with its terms 
and the terms of this lndenture. 

"Program Expenses" shall mean all the 
corporation'; expenses in carrying out and 
administering its Education Loan Program, insolar 
as they are fairly allocable to all Pledged Loans, 
and in servicing the Pledged Loans; "Program 
Expenses" shall include, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, expenses incurred in 
thecollection of Pledged Loans; salaries, supplies, 
utilities, mailing, labor, materials, office rent, 
maintenance, furnishings, equipment, machinery 
and apparatus; insurance premiums; legal. 
accounting, management, consulting and banking 
services and expenses; the fees and expenses of 
the Trustee and its agents and counsel; the fees 
and expenses of Depositaries and Paying Agents; 
Costs of Issuance not paid from proceeds of 
Bonds; and payments for pension, retirement, 
health and hospitalization and life and disability 
insurance benefits, all to the extent properly 
allocable to the Education Loan Program insofar 
as they are fairly allocable to Pledged Loans. 

"Purchase Agreement" shall mean the 
agreement between the Corporation and the 
original purchaser or underwriter of any Series of 
Bonds relating to the issuance of such Bonds by 
the Corporation and the purchase of such Bonds 
by such original purchaser or underwriter. 

"Rating Agency" shall mean any securities 
rating agency but only if and during the times that 
such agency shall have assigned, at the request of 
the Corporation or in connection with any Credit 
Enhancement obtained by the Corporation, and 
have in effect a rating for any of the Outstanding 
Bonds. The Corporation may at any time and in its 
discretion determine that any such rating agency 
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shall not be a "Rating Agency" under this 
definition, and upon such determination such 
rating agency shall cease to be a "Rating Agency." 

"Rating Confirmation" shall mean a letter 
from each Rating Agency then providing a rating 
for any Bonds confirming that the action proposed 
to be taken will not, in and of itself, have the effect 
of (i) reducing or withdrawing the rating then 
applicable to those Bonds if those Bonds are not 
secured by Credit Enhancement, or (ii) if those 
Bonds are secured by Credit Enhancement which 
requires that the ratings on the Bonds (without 
regard to Credit Enhancement) be maintained at a 
certain minimum rating, reducing their rating to a 
rating below such minimum rating without regard 
to the rating of the Credit Enhancement Agency or 
withdrawing the rating. In the event that all Bonds 
issued hereunder are secured by Credit 
Enhancement and there is no public rating 
published at the request of the Corporation with 
respect to the Bonds, the letter from each Rating 
Agency referred to above may include a letter to 
the Credit Enhancement Agency from each Rating 
Agency that has provided the Credit Enhancement 
Agency with a rating forthe Bonds (for purposesof 
the Credit Enhancement Agency's capital 
requirements or otherwise), that such rating will 
not be reduced or withdrawn. 

"Record Date" shall have the meaning set 
forth in thesupplemental Indentureauthorizing the 
particular Series of Bonds. 

"Recoveries of Principal" shall mean all 
amounts received by the Corporation as a 
recovery of the principal amount of any Pledged 
Loan, including any Default Payment, Prepayment 
or Sale Payment. 

"Redemption Date" shall mean the date on 
which any Bonds are subject to redemption. 

"Redemption Account" shall mean the 
Redemption Account of the Revenue Fund 
established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Redemption Price" shall mean, with 
respect to any Bond, the principal amount thereof 
plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 
redemption thereof pursuant to the provisions of 
such Bond, this indenture, or the Supplemental 

Indenture that authorized the issuance of such 
Bond. 

"Refunding Bonds" shall mean all Bonds, 
whether issued in one or more Series. 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance 
for the purpose of refunding Bonds or other 
obligations of the Corporation and all Bonds 
thereafter authenticated and delivered upon the 
transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in 
substitution for such Bonds pursuant to this 
Indenture. 

"Registrar" shall mean the person or entity 
responsible for maintaining the registration books 
of the Corporation with respect to the Bonds. 

"Regulations" shall mean temporary and 
permanent regulations promulgated under the 
Code. 

"Revenue Fund shall mean the Revenue 
Fund established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Sale Payment" shall mean any amount 
received by the Corporation from the sale, 
assignment, endorsement or other disposition of 
any Pledged Loan, except Prepayments or Default 
Payments; provided that withdrawal of a Pledged 
Loan pursuant to Section 507(B) shall not be 
considered a disposition leading to a Sale 
Payment. 

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of 
the United States Department of Education. 

"Series" shall mean all the Bonds 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance 
pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture and 
designated as a Series therein and any Bonds 
thereafter authenticated and delivered upon the 
transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in 
substitution for (but not to refund) such Bonds as 
herein provided, regardless of variations in 
maturity, interest rate, Sinking Fund Payments, or 
other provisions. 

"Series Account" shall mean, for each 
Series, the Series State Projects Account 
established for such Series pursuant to Section 
502. 
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"Servicer"sha1l mean the Corporation, the 
Commission, or, if there has been filed with the 
Trustee a Rating Confirmation reflecting the 
servicing of any Pledged Loan by another 
institution pursuant to a Servicing Agreement, any 
such institution. 

"Servicing Agreement" shall mean a 
contractual agreement of the Corporation with a 
Servicer other than the Corporation for the 
servicing of Pledged Loans by the Servicer. 

"Sinking Fund Installment" shall mean, as 
of any particular date of calculation and with 
respect to the Outstanding Bonds of any Series. 
the amount required to be paid at all events by the 
Corporation on a single future date for the 
retirement of Bonds of such Series which mature 
after said future date, but does not include any 
amount payable by the Corporation by reason only 
of the maturity of a Bond. 

"S&PU shall mean Standard & Poor's 
Rating Group. 

"State" shall mean the State of Alaska. 

"State Projects" means projects identified 
by Alaska law as eligible for financing with 
proceeds of the Bonds. 

"Subordinate Obligations" shall mean 
bonds, notes, or other obligations described in 
Section 209(B). 

"Supplemental lndenture" shall mean an 
indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this 
Indenture, executed by the Corporation and 
effective as provided in Article VIII. 

"Surplus Revenues" shall mean amounts 
held at any time in the Revenue Fund and 
described in Paragraph Seventh of Section 503(C) 
hereof. 

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee appointed 
pursuant to Article XI and any successor or 
successors to it or any other person at any time 
substituted in its place pursuant to this lndenture. 

"Trust Estate" shall have the meaning 
provided in the Granting Clauses of this lndenture. 

"Yield Reduction Payment" shall mean the 
minimum amounts payable to the United States 
Treasury as described in Treas. Reg. s1.148-5(c). 

Section 102 - Interoretations. (A) In this 
Indenture, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(1) Articles and Sections 
referred to by number shall mean the 
corresponding Articles and Sections of 
this lndenture; 

(2) The terms "hereby". 
"hereof". "hereto", "herein", "hereunder" 
and any similar terms, as used in this 
Indenture, refer to this lndenture, and the 
term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the 
term "heretofore" shall mean before, the 
date of its execution: 

(3) Words of the masculine 
gender shall mean and include correlative 
words of the feminine and neuter genders 
and words importing the singular number 
shall mean and include the plural number 
and vice versa; 

(4) Words importing persons 
shall include firms, associations. 
partnerships ( including l imi ted 
partnerships), trusts, corporations and 
other legal entities, including public 
bodies, as well as natural persons; 

(5) Words importing the 
redemption or redeeming of a Bond or the 
calling of a Bond for redemption do not 
include or connote the payment of such 
Bond at its stated maturityorthe purchase 
of such Bond; 

(6) Any headings preceding 
the texts of the several Articles and 
Sections of this lndenture, and table of 
contents or marginal notes appended to 
copies hereof, shall be solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not 
constitute a part of this lndenture, nor 
shall they affect its meaning, construction 
or effect; 
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(7) I f  a Supplementa l  
lndenture authorizes coupon Bonds it 
shall make provisions for publication of 
notices required to be mailed hereafter in 
an Authorized Newspaper. The notices 
shall be published and contain the same 
information as notices required to be 
mailed. If, because of the temporary or 
permanent suspension of the publication 
or general circulation of all Authorized 
Newspapers or for any other reason, it is 
impossible or impractical to publish any 
notice pursuant to this lndenture in the 
manner herein provided, then such 
publication in lieu thereof as shall be 
made with the approval of the Trustee 
shall constitute a sufficient publication of 
such notice; 

(8) With respect to any Bond 
that bears interest at a stated rate, 
compounded periodically, first payable (i) 
at maturity or prior redemption or (ii) 
commencing as of a date more than one 
year after the initial authentication and 
delivery thereof, for all purposes of this 
lndenture and of any Supplemental 
lndenture adopted pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless the context or the 
related Supplemental lndenture otherwise 
requires, the "principal amount" of such 
Bond as of any date of calculation shall be 
deemed to be equal to the sum of (x) the 
stated principal amount of such Bond 
upon original issuance plus (y) an amount 
equal to interest thereon accrued (and not 
cJrrently payable) and compounded at the 
a ~ ~ l ~ c a b l e  rate to tne Bond Pavment Date 
or'other date specified in ;he related 
Supplemental lndenture which most 
immediately precedes or corresponds to 
the date of calculation; 

(9) This lndenture shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance 
with the applicable laws of the State; 

(10) Any requirement for 
amounts to be deposited in any Fund or 
Account shall be considered satisfied 
upon the crediting of such amounts to 
such Fund or Account; and 
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(1 1) Any requirement herein or 
in any Supplemental lndenture for the 
payment of any money or the taking of 
any other action on a particular date may, 
unless otherwise specifically required, be 
taken on the Business Day following such 
date if such date is not a Business Day 
and such requirement shall thereupon be 
satisfied with the same effect as if the 
payment was made or the action taken on 
the date required. 

(€5) Nothing in this lndenture 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to confer upon, or to give to, any 
person, other than the Corporation, the 
Fiduciaries, the Credit EnhancementAgencies and 
the counterparties to Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreements to which the Corporation has 
expressly granted an interest herein and then only 
to the extent of that interest, and the holders of the 
Bonds any right, remedy or claim under or by 
reason of this lndenture or any covenant, 
conditionsorstipulationthereof. Allthecovenants, 
stipulations, promises and agreements in this 
lndenture contained by and on behalf of the 
Corporation shall be for the sole and exclusive 
benefit of the Corporation, the Fiduciaries, such 
Credit Enhancement Agencies and counterparties 
to lnterest Rate Exchange Agreements, and the 
holders of the Bonds. 

Section 103 I Severabilitv of Invalid -- 
Provisions. If any one or more of the covenants or 
agreements provided in this lndenture on the part 
of the Corporation or any Fiduciary to be 
performed should be contrary to law, then such 
covenant or covenants or agreement or 
agreements, shall be deemed separable from the 
remaining covenants and agreements hereof, and 
shall in no way affect the validity of the other 
provisions of this lndenture or of the Bonds. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION. OBLIGATION AND 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

Section 201 -Authorization for lndenture. 
This Indenture is authorized and executed by 
virtue of and pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 
The Corporation has ascertained and hereby 
determines and declares that execution of this 
lndenture is necessary to carry out the powers and 



duties expressly provided by the Act, that each 
and every act, matter, thing or course of conduct 
as to which provision is made herein is necessary 
or convenient in order to carry out and effectuate 
the purposes of the Corporation in accordance 
with the Act and to carry out powers expressly 
given in the Act and that each and every covenant 
or agreement herein contained and made is 
necessary, useful or convenient in order to better 
secure the Bondsand are contracts or agreements 
necessary, useful and convenient to carry out and 
effectuate the corporate purposes of the 
Corporation under the Act. 

Section 202 I lndenture Constitute -- 
Contract. In consideration of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by those who shall hold 
the same from time to time, the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be a part of the contract of the 
Corporation with the holdersof Bonds and shall be 
deemed to be and shall constitute a contract 
between the Corporation, the Trustee and the 
holders from time to time of the Bonds. The 
pledge hereof and the provisions, covenants and 
agreements herein set forth to be performed by or 
on behalf of the Corporation shall be for the 
benefit, protection and security of the holders of 
any and all of such Bonds. Each Bond, Credit 
Enhancementfacility, and lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement of a Class, regardless of the time or 
times of its issue or maturity, shall be of equal rank 
without preference, priority or distinction over any 
other Bond, Credit Enhancement facility, or 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement of such Class 
except as expressly provided in this lndenture. 

Section 203 - Obliqation of Bonds. This 
Indentureauthorizes thecorporation tocreateone 
or more series of bonds of the Corporation and 
creates a continuing pledge and lien to secure the 
full and final payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price of and interest on such bonds, 
and any Sinking Fund Installments for the 
retirement thereof. The Bonds shall be special, 
limited obligations of the Corporation, and the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, thereof and 
the interest thereon shall be payable solely from 
the Trust Estate, subject to the provisions of 
Section 51 0(D) hereof authorizing the Corporation 
to create a security interest in the Trust Estate in 
favor of Credit Enhancement Agencies and 
counterparties to lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreements. The Bonds shall contain on their 
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face a statement that neither the faith and credit 
nor the taxing power of the State or of any political 
subdivision of the State is pledged to the payment 
of the principal thereof or the interest thereon. 

Section 204 - Authorization of Bonds. In 
order to provide funds to finance State Projects, 
bonds of the Corporation are hereby authorized to 
be issued from time to time without limitation as to 
amount except as herein provided or as may be 
limited by law, and such bonds shall be issued 
subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations 
established in this lndenture and any 
Supplemental lndenture applicable to such bonds 
and in one or more Series and in such Classes as 
hereinafter provided. 

Section 205 - Issuance and Delivew of - - - 
Bonds: Classes of Obliqations. (A) After their 
authorization bv a Supplemental Indenture. Bonds 
of a Series may be executed by or on behalf of the 
Corporation and delivered to the Trustee for 
authentication and, upon compliance by the 
Corporation with the requirements, if any, set forth 
in such Supplemental lndenture and with the 
requirements of Section 206 or, in the case of 
Refunding Bonds, Section 207, the Trustee shall 
thereupon authenticate and deliver such Bonds to 
or upon the order of the Corporation. 

(B) The Corporation may designate 
Classes of Bonds and may also include Credit 
Enhancement facilities and lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreements in such Classes. Unless 
otherwise designated, any Bond shall be 
presumed to be of the highest Class, and such 
highest Class shall be referred to as "Class I." 
Lower Classes shall be designated by successive 
roman numerals. Except as otherwise provided in 
a Supplemental lndenture relating to any Series or 
Class of Bonds, the Trustee and the Corporation 
are obligated to apply the Trust Estate to the 
payment of amounts due By Class in Descending 
Order of Priority. 

Section 206 I Conditions Precedent -- 
Delivery of a Series of Bonds. All (but not less 
than all) the Bonds of a Series (other than 
Refunding Bonds) shall be executed by the 
Corporation for issuance and delivered to the 
Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by 
the Trustee and delivered to the Corporation or 
upon its order, but only upon satisfaction of 
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Section 708 hereof and the receipt by the Trustee 
of: 

(1) A Counsel's Opinion to 
the effect that (i) the Corporation has the 
right and power to execute and deliver this 
Indentureand thesupplemental lndenture 
authorizing such Series under the Act as 
amended to the date of such Opinion; (ii) 
this lndenture and such Supplemental 
lndenture has been duly and lawfully 
executed and delivered by the 
Corporation, is in full force and effect and 
is valid and binding upon the Corporation 
and enforceable in accordance with its 
terms (subject, as to enforcement of 
remedies, to applicable bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency, moratorium, or 
other laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally from time to time in effect); (iii) 
this lndenture and such Supplemental 
lndenture creates the valid pledge and 
assignment which it purports to create of 
theTrust Estate, subject to the application 
thereof to the purposes and on the 
conditions permitted by this lndenture; (iv) 
the Bonds of such Series are valid and 
binding special, limited obligations of the 
Corporation, enforceable in accordance 
with their terms and the terms of this 
lndenture and such Supplemental 
Indenture; and (v) the Bonds of such 
Series have been duly and validly 
authorized and issued in accordance with 
the constitution and statutes of the State. 
including the Act as amended to the date 
of such Opinion, and in accordance with 
this lndenture; 

(2) A written order as to the 
delivery of such Bonds, signed by an 
Authorized Officer; 

(3) Either an original of the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such 
Series or a copy thereof certified by an 
Authorized Officer, which Supplemental 
lndenture shall specify: 

(a) The authorized 
principal amount and Series 
designation of such Bonds; if 
such Bonds are of a Class lower 
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than Class I, the Supplemental 
lndenture must include such 
designation as well; 

(b) The purposes for 
which such Series is being 
issued, which shall be one or 
more of the following: (i) financing 
State Projects; (ii) financing any 
program or activity of the 
Corporation; (iii) making deposits 
into any Fund or Account, (iv) 
refunding any Bonds, or 
(v) paying Costs of Issuance; 

(c) The date, and 
the maturity date or dates, of the 
Bonds of such Series or the 
method of determining the same; 

(d) (i) The interest 
rate or rates (if any) or maximum 
interest rate of the Bonds of such 
Series, or the manner of 
determining such rate or rates 
(which may be determinable at 
one or more specified times set 
forth in the Supplemental 
Indenture, which may accrete or 
compound with such frequencies 
or in such manner as shall be 
specified in such Supplemental 
lndenture and which shall be as 
otherwise specified in the 
Supplemental Indenture), and the 
Interest Payment Dates and 
Record Dates therefor and (ii) a 
manner of calculating accreted 
value or compounded principal 
value during all or any part of the 
term of the Series of Bonds being 
authorized, if interest is not 
payable currently and the 
Corporation determines that it is 
necessary or appropriate; 

(e) The Pay ing 
Agent or Paying Agents and the 
place or places of payment of the 
principal and Redemption Price, if 
any, of, and interest on, the 
Bonds of such Series or the 



manner of appointing and 
designating the same; 

(f) The Redemption 
Price or Prices, if any, and, 
subject to the provisions of Article 
VI, the redemption terms for the 
Bonds of such Series; 

(g) The amount and 
due date of each Sinking Fund 
Installment, if any, for Bonds of 
like maturity of such Series; 

(h) The forms of the 
Bonds of such Series and of the 
Trustee 's  cer t i f i ca te  of 
authentication; 

(i) If, at the time of 
issuance of the Bonds of such 
Series, an lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement will apply 
to such Bonds or such Bonds are 
to be secured by Credit 
Enhancement, the form of Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement to be 
obtained, the identity of the Credit 
Enhancement Agency or of the 
counterparty to the lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement, and the 
substantial form of the significant 
documents relating to the Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement; 

(i) M Bonds of such 
Series are to contain any tender 
or put options or the like, whether 
such Bonds are to be remarketed 
and, if so, the identity of any 
remarketing agent and the 
substantial form of any 
remarketing agreement relating to 
such Bonds; 

(k) Whetherinterest 
on the Bonds of such Series is 
intended to be excludible from 
gross income for federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Section 
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103(a) of the Code or any 
successor statute thereto; 

(I) A n y  o t h e r  
provisions deemed advisable by 
the Corporation as shall not 
conflict with the provisions hereof; 
and 

(m) Such additional 
matters as may be necessary or 
appropriate to cause interest on 
the Bonds of the Series to be 
issued pursuant to such 
Supplemental Indenture to be 
exempt from federal income 
taxation pursuant to Section 
103(a) of the Code if it is intended 
that interest on the Bonds be so 
exempt and to prevent the 
issuance of such Series from 
adversely affecting the federal 
income tax treatment of any 
Outstanding Bonds and the 
interest thereon intended to be so 
exempt; 

(4) The amount of the 
proceeds of such Series to be deposited 
in any Fund or Account held by the 
Trustee pursuant to Section 501 ; 

(5) A Certificate that no 
Event of Default or a payment default 
relating to any Bonds exists or remains 
uncured or will result from such additional 
issuance, unless such additional issuance 
will cure such Event of Default or such 
payment default: and 

(6) Such further documents 
and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vlll or any 
Supplemental Indenture adopted pursuant 
to Article VIII. 

Section 207 : Conditions Precedent Q -- 
Delivew of a Series of Refundinq Bonds. (A) All 
Refunding Bonds of a Series shall be executed by 
the Corporation for issuance and delivered to the 
Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by 
the Trustee and delivered to the Corporation or 
upon its order, but only if the applicable financial 
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tests and other requirements of Sections 208 and 
708 hereof are satisfied and only upon the receipt 
by the Trustee of: 

(1) The documents and 
moneys, if any, referred to in paragraphs 
( I ) ,  (2), (3), (4), (5) and (6) of Section 206; 

(2) Either (i) moneys (which 
may include all or a portion of the 
proceeds of the Refunding Bonds to be 
issued) in an amount sufficient to effect 
payment at the applicable Redemption 
Price of the Bonds or other obligations to 
be refunded, together with accrued 
interest on such Bonds or other 
obl garlons ro the redemption date, or (11) 
olrecr oollgallons of ( ~ n c l ~ d  ng ob gatlons 
issued or held in book-entry form on the 
books of) the Department of the Treasury 
of the United States of America which are 
not subject to redemption prior to the 
dates on which amounts will be needed to 
make payments on the Bonds or other 
obligations to be refunded and the 
principal of and interest on which when 
due, togetherwith the moneys (which may 
include all or a portion of the proceeds of 
the Refunding Bonds to be issued), if any. 
contemporaneously deposited with the 
Trustee, will be sufficient to pay when due 
the applicable Redemption Price of the 
Bonds or other obligations to be refunded, 
together with accrued interest on such 
Bonds or other obligations to the 
redemption date, which moneys or 
lnvestment Securities shall be held by the 
Trustee or any one or more of the Paying 
Agents or an escrow agent or trustee for 
other obligations in a separate account 
irrevocably in trust for and assigned to the 
respective holders of the Bonds or other 
obligations to be refunded; and 

(3) Such further documents 
and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vlll or any 
Supplemental lndenture adopted pursuant 
to Article VIII. 

(8) Neither lnvestment Securitiesnor 
moneys deposited with the Trustee or an escrow 
agent or trustee for other obligations pursuant to 

paragraph (A) (2) of this Section nor principal or 
interest payments on any such lnvestment 
Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any 
purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, 
the payment of theapplicable Redemption Price of 
the Bonds or other obligations to be refunded, 
together with accrued interest on such Bonds or 
other obligations to the redemption date, and any 
cash received from such principal or interest 
payments, if not then needed for such purpose, 
shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in 
such lnvestment Securities as are described in 
clause (ii) of said paragraph maturing at times and 
in amounts sufficient to pay when due the 
applicable Redemption Price of such Bonds or 
other obligations, together with such accrued 
interest. 

Section 208 - Reauirements for the -- 
Issuance of Additional Bonds. Additional Bonds 
may not b e  issued unless, in addition to the 
requirements of Section 206 or Section 207. 
whichever is aoolicable. the followino reouirements . , " 

are satisfied: 

(i) if any Bonds are 
Outstanding prior to the issuance of the Additional 
Bonds and will remain Outstanding after the 
issuance of the Additional Bonds, the Trustee 
receives a Rating Confirmation taking into 
consideration the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, 

(ii) no Eventof Default under 
this lndenture, or payment default with respect to 
any Bonds, asto which theTrustee has knowledge 
shall exist and remain uncured (unless the 
issuance of the Additional Bonds and the 
application of the proceeds thereof will cure the 
Event of Default or payment default), 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund, 
immediately after the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, will be funded to at least the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, and 

(iv) a n y  a d d i t i o n a l  
requirements imposed by a Supplemental 
lndenture are satisfied. 

Sectiqn 209 - Parihr Obliqations; 
Subordinate Obliqations. i ~ ) ~ h e ~ o r ~ o r a t i o n  may 
issue Parity Obligations under instruments other 
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than this lndenture for any lawful purpose of the 
Corporation, provided that the requirements of this 
lndenture for the issuance of Additional Bonds 
would be met if the term "Parity Obligation" were 
substituted for the term "Additional Bonds" 
appearing therein and in the defined terms therein 
(other than any requirement with respect to 
funding the Capital Reserve Fund) and as if the 
Parity Obligations were being issued hereunder, 
and subject to any additional limitations that may 
be set forth in a Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing a Series of Bonds. Parity Obligations 
shall equally and ratably rank with all Bonds. 
Credit Enhancement facilities, and Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreements of the same Class as the 
Parity Obligations except as to the Capital Reserve 
Fund, in which they shall have no rights 
whatsoever. Parity Obligations shall be subject to 
the following additional conditions: 

(1) The Trustee shall act as 
trustee under any Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

(2) The Parity Obligations 
must be secured by a lien on any 
property financed with the 
proceeds of the Parity 
Obligations. 

(3) If any Parity Obligations 
are to be secured by any lien, 
mortgage or security interest on 
property that is not part of the 
Trust Estate, the Corporation 
shall grant a lien, mortgage or 
security interest on such property 
(other than any capital reserve 
fund comparable to the Capital 
Reserve Fund) to the Trustee as 
security for the Bonds on a parity 
with the lien, mortgageorsecurity 
interest which will secure such 
Parity Obligations; the Bonds 
shall share in such security 
interest by Class. 

(4) Any default under or with 
respect to any Parity Obligation 
lnstrument shall be a default 
under this lndenture only if and to 
the extent that a similar event 
with respect to a Bond of the 
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same Class as such Parity 
Obligation would be an Event of 
Default, and there shall be 
included in any Parity Obligation 
lnstrument a provision that any 
Event of Default under this 
lndenture shall automatically be a 
default under such Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

(5 )  According to the terms of 
any Parity Obligation or Parity 
Obligation Instrument, the 
Trustee shall have substantially 
the same duties, obligations. 
rights and remedies in connection 
with events of default and 
security for or with respect to the 
Parity Obligations as it has in 
connection with Events of Default 
and the Trust Estate hereunder. 

(6) Any Parity Obligation 
lnstrument shall include such 
other provisions, reasonably 
satisfactory to the Trustee, as 
shall be necessary to permit the 
Trustee to performany dutiesand 
obligations and exercise its rights 
and remedies under this 
lndenture and any Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

If there occurs an Event of Default under 
this lndenture, including an Event of Default based 
upon an event of default with respect to a Parity 
Obligation, and the Trustee applies the Trust 
Estate to the payment of the Bonds, all collateral 
held as security by the Trustee for the payment of 
the Bonds (other than the Capital Reserve Fund). 
and all collateral held as security for the Parity 
Obligations (other than any reserve fund 
comparable to the Capital Reserve Fund) shall be 
aggregated and applled equal y and rataoly to the 
oavmenr of the Bondsano PariNObl~aarlonsof tne 

(B) The Corporation may issue 
Subordinate Obligations from time to time under 
instrumentsotherthan this Indenturesubjectto the 
conditions set forth below in this Section 209(B) 
and subject to any additional conditions that may 
be set forth in a Supplemental lndenture 
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authorizing a Series of Bonds. Subordinate 
Obligations may be secured by such assets as 
may be described in theinstrument authorizing the 
issuance of the Subordinate Obligations, but 
Subordinate Obligations shall have no security in 
or pledge or lien on or rights of any kind 
whatsoever with respect to the Trust Estate that is 
greater than the security, pledge, lien, or rights of 
the Bonds of the lowest Class Outstanding. 

ARTICLE Ill 
GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF 

BONDS 

Section 301 - Title and Date of Bonds. - -. - - - - 
Subject to the provisions of Section 303, each 
Bond shall be entitled "State Projects Revenue 
Bonds" and shall bear such additional letter or 
number Series designation as shall be determined 
in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
Bonds of the Series of which such Bond is one. 
The Bonds of each Series shall be dated as of and 
bear interest from the date specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture that authorized such 
Series, which date may be contemporaneous with 
or prior to or after the date of issuance of such 
Bonds. 

Section 302 - Principal Installment gxJ - - - 
Interest Pavment Dates. The date upon which 
each Principal Installment with respect to any 
Bond is payable and the dates upon which interest 
on such Bond shall be payable shall be specified 
in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
Series of which such Bond is a part. 

Section 303 - Leqends. The Bonds of - - - 
each Series shall contain or have endorsed 
thereon a statement to the effect that the State 
shall not be liable thereon and that such Bond 
shall not be a debt of the State and may contain or 
have endorsed thereon such provisions, 
specifications and descriptive words not 
inconsistent with the provisions of this lndenture as 
may be necessary or desirable to comply with 
custom or otherwise as may be determined by the 
Corporation prior to delivery thereof. 

Section 304 Place and Medium of -- 
Pavment. The interest on, and the principal (and 
premium, if any) of each Bond of any Series shall 
be payable at the principal corporate trust office of 
theTrustee in St. Paul. Minnesotaor at such other 

location and subject to any terms and conditions 
as may be specified in thesupplemental lndenture 
authorizing the Series of which such Bond is a 
part. Payment of interest on and principal (and 
premium, if any) of each Bond of any Series shall 
be made in lawful money of the United States of 
America which at the time of payment is legal 
tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

Section 305 - Form and Denominations; 
Pavment of Interest. The Bonds of each Series 
may be issued in the form of fully registered Bonds 
without coupons or, if the Corporation and the 
Trustee enter into a Supplemental lndenture to 
provide necessary terms under Section 801 (5), in 
the form of bearer Bonds with coupons. Interest 
on Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner 
thereof as of the applicable Record Date as shown 
on the registry books of the Corporation kept for 
such purpose by the Trustee. 

Section 306 - Neqotiabilitv, Transfer and 
ReqistrV. (A) Each Bond shall be transferable only - .  
upon the books of the Corporation, which shall be 
kept for the purpose by the Trustee or any co- 
registrars specified in a Supplemental Indenture, 
by the registered ownerthereof in person or by his 
attorney duly authorized in writing, upon surrender 
thereof together with a written instrument of 
transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed 
by the registered owner or his duly authorized 
attorney. Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the 
Corporation shall issue in the name of the 
transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same 
aggregate principal amount, Series, Class, 
maturity, and interest rate as the surrendered 
Bond. 

(8) The Corporation and each 
Fiduciary may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Bond shall be registered upon the books 
of the Corporation as the absolute owner of such 
Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, 
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on 
account of, the principal and Redemption Price, if 
any, of and interest on such Bond and for all other 
purposes, and all such payments so made to any 
such registered owner or upon his order shall be 
valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or 
sums so paid, and neither the Corporation nor any 
Fiduciary shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary. The Corporation agrees to indemnify 
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and save each Fiduciary harmless from and 
against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense 
judgment or liability incurred by it, acting in good 
faith and without negligence under this lndenture, 
in so treating any such registered owner. 

Section 307- Regulations With Respect to 
Exchanges and Transfers. In all cases in which 
the privilege of exchanging Bonds or transferring 
Bonds is exercised, the Corporation shall execute 
and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver 
Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this 
Indenture. All Bonds surrendered in any such 
exchangesortransfersshailforthwith becancelled 
by the Trustee. For every such exchange or 
transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, 
the Corporation ortheTrustee may, as a condition 
precedent to the privilege of making such 
exchange or transfer, make a charge sufficient to 
reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such 
exchange or transfer. Neither the Corporation nor 
the Trustee shall be required (i) to transfer or 
exchange Bonds of any Series during the 15 days 
(or such other period of time as may be specified 
in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing such 
Series) precedingan interest Payment Dateon the 
Bonds of such Series or preceding any selection of 
Bonds of such Series to be redeemed or (ii) to 
transfer or exchange any Bonds previously called 
for redemption. 

Section 308 - Bonds Mutilated. Destroved, 
Stolen or Lost. In case any Bond shall become 
mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the 
Corporation shall execute, and thereupon the 
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond 
of like Series, Class, maturityand principal amount 
as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost. 
in exchange and substitution for such mutilated 
Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of such 
mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for the 
Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the 
Trustee evidence satisfactory to the Corporation 
and the Trustee that such Bond has been 
destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership 
thereof, and upon furnishing the Corporation and 
theTrustee with indemnity satisfactory to them and 
complying with such other reasonable regulations 
as the Corporation and the Trustee may prescribe 
and paying such expenses as the Corporation and 
Trustee may incur. All Bonds so surrendered to 
theTrustee shall becancelled by it. Any such new 
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Bonds issued pursuant to this Section in 
substitution for Bonds alleged to be destroyed, 
stolen or lost shall constitute original additional 
contractual obligations on the part of the 
Corporation, regardless of whether the Bonds so 
alleged to be destroyed, stolen or lost be at any 
time enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally 
secured by and entitled to equal and proportionate 
benefits with all other Bonds issued under this 
Indenture, in any moneys or securities held by the 
Corporation or the Fiduciariesforthe benefit of the 
Bondholders. If a bondholder satisfies the 
conditions set forth in this section for the 
replacement of a mutilated Bond ora Bond alleged 
to be destroyed, stolen, or lost and such Bond has 
matured or all principal thereof and interest 
thereon shall become due for any other reason, 
then the Trustee may pay such principal of and 
interest on such Bond without issuing a 
replacement Bond. 

Section 309 : Preparation of Definitive -- 
Bonds. Temporary-. (A) Until the definitive 
Bonds of any Series are prepared, the Corporation 
may execute, in the same manner as is provided 
in Section 311, and, upon the request of the 
Corporation, the Trustee shall authenticate and 
deliver, in lieu of definitive Bonds, but subject to 
the same provisions, limitations and conditions as 
the definitive Bonds except as to the 
denominations thereof and as to interchangeability 
thereof, one or more temporary Bonds 
substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in 
lieu of which such temporary Bond or Bonds are 
issued, in such denominations as may be 
authorized by the Corporation, and with such 
omissions, insertions and variations as may be 
appropriate to temporary Bonds. The Corporation 
at its own expense shall prepare and execute and, 
upon the surrender therefor of such temporary 
Bonds, the Trustee shall authenticate and, without 
charge to the holder thereof, deliver in exchange 
therefore, definitive Bonds of the same aggregate 
principal amount, Series, Class, and maturity as 
the temporary Bonds surrendered. Until so 
exchanged the temporary Bonds shall in all 
respects be entitled to the same benefits and 
security as definitive Bonds authenticated and 
issued pursuant to this lndenture. 

(B) If the Corporation shall authorize 
the issuanceof temporary Bonds in more than one 
denomination, the holderof any temporary Bondor 



Bonds may, at his option, surrender the same to 
the Trustee in exchange for another temporary 
Bond or Bonds of like aggregate principal amount, 
Series, Class, and maturity of any other authorized 
denomination or denominations, and thereupon 
the Corporation shall execute and the Trustee 
shall authenticate and, in exchange for the 
temporary Bond or Bonds so surrendered and 
upon payment of the taxes, fees and charges 
provided for in Section 307, shall deliver a 
temporary Bond or Bonds of like aggregate 
principal amount, Series, Class, and maturity in 
such other authorized denomination or 
denominations as shall be requested by such 
holder. 

(C) All temporary Bonds surrendered 
in exchange either for another temporary Bond or 
Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds shall be 
forthwith cancelled by the Trustee. 

Section 31 0 -Cancellation& Destruction 
of Bonds. All Bonds paid or redeemed, either at or -- 
before maturity, shall be delivered to the Trustee 
when such payment or redemption is made, and 
such Bonds, togetherwith all Bonds purchased by 
the Trustee, shall thereupon be promptly 
cancelled. Bonds so cancelled may, at any time. 
be cremated or otherwise destroyed by the 
Trustee, who shall execute a Certificate of 
cremation or destruction in duplicate by the 
signature of one of its authorized officers 
describing the Bonds so cremated or otherwise 
destroyed, and one executed Certificate shall be 
filed with the Corporation and the other executed 
Certificate shall be retained by the Trustee. 

Section 311 - Execution - -  
Authentication. (A) After tKeir authorization by a 
Supplemental Indenture, Bonds of a Series may 
beexecuted by oron behalf of the Corporation and 
delivered to the Trustee for authentication. The 
Bonds shall be executed in the name and on 
behalf of the Corporation by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the Chairman or Executive 
Officer of the Corporation, and the corporate seal 
of the Corporation (or a facsimile thereof) shall be 
thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise 
reproducedthereon, andattested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of any other Authorized Officer, 
or in such other manner as may be required by 
law. In case any one or more of the officers or 
employees who shall have signed or sealed any of 
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(B) The Bonds of each Series shall 
bear thereon a certificate of authentication, in the 
form set forth in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing such Bond, executed manually by the 
Trustee or by an agent of the Trustee approved by 
the Corporation. No Bond shall be entitled to any 
right or benefit under this lndenture or shall be 
valid or obligatory shall for any purpose until such 
certificate of authentication shall have been duly 
executed by the Trustee. Such certificate of the 
Trustee upon any Bond executed on behalf of the 
Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Bond so authenticated has been duly executed. 
authenticated and delivered under this lndenture 
and that the holder thereof is entitled to the 
benefits hereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS. 

PLEDGED RECEIPTS, AND OTHER 
AMOUNTS 

Section 401 Application of Bond 
Proceeds, Accrued Interest and Premium. (A) The 
proceedsof sale of the Bonds of each Seriesshall, 
except to the extent that such Bonds shall be 
Refunding Bonds, assoon as practicable upon the 
delivery of such Bonds by the Trustee pursuant to 
Section 206, be applied as follows: 

(1) The amount, if any, 
necessary to cause the amount on deposit 
in the Capital Reserve Fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Fund Requirement 
immediately after such delivery shall be 
deposited in the Capital Reserve Fund; 

the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or 
employee before the Bonds so signed and sealed 
shall have been actually delivered, such Bonds 
may, nevertheless, be delivered as herein 
provided, and may be issued as if the persons who 
signed or sealed such Bonds had not ceased to 
hold such offices or be so employed. Any Bond of 
a Series may be signed and sealed on behalf of 
the Corporation by such persons as at the actual 
time of the execution of such Bond shall be duly 
authorized or hold the proper office in or 
employment by the Corporation, although at the 
date of the Bonds of such Series such persons 
may not have been so authorized or have held 
such office or employment. 



(2) The amount, if any, to be 
deposited therein pursuant to the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
issuance of such Series shall be 
deposited in the Interest Account; 

(3) The balance remaining 
after all other deposits required by this 
Section have been made shall be 
deposited in the Series Account within the 
State Projects Fund established for such 
Series. 

(B) The proceedsof sale of the Bonds 
of a Series of Refunding Bonds or the proceeds of 
the Refunding Bonds of any Series which includes 
Refunding Bonds, shall be deposited in the 
Redemption Account or shall be applied as 
otherwise provided in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the issuance of such Series of Bonds; 
provided, however, that if the amountin thecapital 
Reserve Fund is, or will be at the time of issuance 
of such Refunding Bonds, less than the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, then the Corporation 
must deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund the 
amount necessary to curesuch deficiency or, if the 
Corporation fails to make such deposit on the date 
of issuance of such Refunding Bonds, such 
amount must be so deposited from proceeds of 
such Refunding Bonds. 

Section 402 : APDlication of Pledaed -- 
Receipts and Other Amounts. (A) Pledged 
Receipts shall. promptlv upon their receipt, be 
depo$ited with a ~ e ~ o s i t a r y  (who shall hold the 
same in a custodial account as agent for the 
Trustee subject to the provisions of Section 511) 
and transmitted to the Trustee at least monthly; 
such Pledged Receipts, together with all Pledged 
Receipts collected by the Trustee, shall be 
credited to the Revenue Fund, except for Pledged 
Receipts which are investment earnings of the 
Capital Reserve Fund, which shall be credited to 
the Capital Reserve Fund in accordance with 
Section 506(B). Upon receipt by the Trustee or 
any Depositary of any Pledged Receipts, such 
Pledged Receipts shall be deemed to be credited 
to the Revenue Fund, except for Pledged Receipts 
which are investment earnings of the Capital 
Reserve Fund, which shall be deemed to be 
credited to the Capital Reserve Fund in 
accordance with Section 506(B). 

(B) The Corporation may make a deposit 
of money or any other assets to any Fund or 
Account, and the Trustee shall accept such 
deposit for such Fund or Account. When such 
deposit is made, such money or other assets shall 
be held for the purpose or purposes of such Fund 
or Account and otherwise subject to all of the 
terms and conditions of this lndenture. 

ARTICLE V 
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Section 501 - Establishment of Fundsand 
Accounts. (A) The Corporation hereby 
establishes and creates the State Projects Account 
as a special account within the Education Loan 
Trust Fund to be held by the Trustee in trust 
hereunder. Within the State Projects Account, the 
Corporation also hereby establishes and creates 
the following special trust funds and within such 
funds the following accounts (all to be held by the 
Trustee in trust hereunder): 

(1) State Projects Fund; 
(a) Series State Projects 

Accounts; 

(2) Revenue Fund; 
(a) Interest Account; 
(b) Principal Account; 
(c) Redemption Account; 

(3) Capital Reserve Fund; 

(4) Pledged Loans Fund. 

(B) Any amounts held by aDepositary 
as agent for the Trustee and all amounts held 
under the CustodianlDepositary/Se~icing 
Agreement shall be deemed to be held by the 
Trustee in the appropriate Fund or Account 
hereunder. All moneys or securities deposited 
with theTrustee or any Depositary pursuantto this 
lndenture shall be held in trust and applied only in 
accordance with the provisions hereof and shall be 
considered trust funds for the purposes of this 
Indenture. 

Section 502 - State Proiects Fund. (A) 
The Corporation shall create or identify in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing a Series of 
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Bonds a Series State Projects Account within the 
State Projects Fund applicable to such Series of 
Bonds. Each such Series Account shall be 
identified by inserting in the designation therefor 
the year, letter, or other designation of the Bonds 
of such Series. 

(6) Except as permitted by subsection 
(F) of this Section, amounts in any Series Account 
shall be expended only (i) to pay the cost of 
acquiring or financing State Projects (ii) to pay 
reasonable and necessary Costs of Issuance of 
any Bonds, subject to any limitation on such use 
that may be established in any Supplemental 
Indenture, (iii) to pay the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on the Bonds when 
due by transfer to the appropriate account of the 
Revenue Fund, as applicable, (iv) to pay any costs 
associated with any of the foregoing, or (v) for 
such other purposes as the Corporation may direct 
in writing, including, but not limited to, the payment 
of Program Expenses. Investment Securities 
acquired with amounts in a Series State Projects 
Account shall be credited to that Series State 
Projects Account. 

(C) The Trustee shall pay out and 
permit the withdrawal of amounts on deposit in the 
State Projects Fund at any time for the purposes 
set forth in (B) of this Section, but only upon 
receipt of a Certificate of an Authorized Officer of 
the Corporation setting forth (i) the amount to be 
paid, (ii) the person or persons to whom such 
payment is to be made (which may be or include 
the Corporation or the State), (iii) in reasonable 
detail the purpose or purposes of such withdrawal 
and stating that such withdrawal from any Series 
State Projects Account is a proper charge thereon, 
and (iv) if the withdrawal is for payment of acost of 
State Projects, a reference to the State law that 
permits the use of proceeds of the Bonds for such 
cost. 

(D) At any time that Bondsof aSeries 
shall be subject to mandatory redemption or 
payment and amounts in the Redemption Account 
in the case of a redemption, or in the lnterest 
Account and Principal Account in the case of a 
payment, are insufficient for such purposes, unless 
otherwise directed by the Corporation, the Trustee 
shall transfer the amounts necessary for such 
purposes first from the Series State Projects 
Account for such Bonds, then from any other 
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Series State Projects Account to the Redemption 
Account or to the Interest Account and Principal 
Account, for redemption or paymentof such Bonds 
as the case may be, or apply such amounts 
directly to the redemption, purchase or retirement 
of such Bonds in accordance with their terms and 
the provisions of Article VI. If, after making any 
transfer required pursuant to the preceding 
sentence there remains an insufficiency, the 
Trustee shall apply amounts in the Capital 
R e s e ~ e  Fund in accordance with and subject to 
the terms of Section 506 hereof to satisfy such 
insufficiency. Except as otherwise provided in a 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds, any redemption or 
payment under this Section shall be made By 
Class in Descending Order of Priorly. 

(E) RESERVED 

(F) Upon the payment or redemption 
of all of the Outstanding Bonds of any Series, the 
balance, if any, remaining in the Series State 
Projects Account established for such Series shall 
be transferred to the Revenue Fund. 

Section 503 - R e v e n u e m .  (A) Pledged 
Receipts, together with all other funds received 
hereunder and not otherwise directed hereunder. 
shall be credited to the Revenue Fund as required 
by Section 402 hereof, except that Pledged 
Receipts which are investment earnings of the 
Capital Reserve Fund shall be credited to the 
Capital Reserve Fund as provided in Section 
506(B) hereof. 

(B) Amounts in the Revenue Fund 
shall be applied only forthe purpose of making the 
payments or transfers provided in (C) of this 
Section. 

(C) TheTrusteeshall make payments 
from the Revenue Fund at any time in the order 
and amounts prescribed below: 

First: To the Corporation, the 
amount certified in writing by the 
Corporation as necessary to make any 
rebate payments or Yield Reduction 
Payments required to comply with its 
covenant contained in Section 714. 



Second: To the lnterest Account, 
the amount necessary to increase the 
amount in such Account so that it at least 
equals unpaid interest on the Outstanding 
Bonds of the highest Class coming due 
within the next Business Day (or to honor 
any reimbursement or payment obligation 
underany Credit Enhancement or lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such interest), unless 
otherwise specified with respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the Series of Bonds. 

Third: To the Principal Account, 
the amount necessary to increase the 
amount in such Account so that it at least 
equals the amount of unpaid Principal 
lnstallmentswhich will becomedue on the 
Outstanding Bonds of the highest Class 
within the next Business Day (or to honor 
any reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any Credit Enhancementor lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such principal), unless 
otherwise specified with respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing such Series of 
Bonds. 

Fourth: To the lnterest Account 
first and the Principal Account second the 
amounts necessaryto make the payments 
described in Paragraphs Second and 
Third of this Section 503(C) By Class in 
Descending Order of Priority with respect 
to any Outstanding Bonds other than the 
Class I Bonds: provided, however, that in 
each case described in this paragraph 
Fourth if any such principal or interest 
amount has been paid through a Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement, then to that extent 
any Pledged Receipts which would 
otherwise have been applied to such 
payments shall, instead, be applied to 
honor any reimbursement or payment 
obligation under any such instrument 
corresponding to any such payment. 

Fifth: To the Capital Reserve 
Fund, the amount, if any, necessary to 

cause the amount in such fund to equal 
the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement. 

Sixth: To the Corporation, as 
directed in writing, for the payment of 
Program Expenses, or the establishment 
of reserves therefor, the amount needed 
and required to pay a portion of the 
reasonable and necessary Program 
Expenses and, in addition, any amount 
needed to pay fees and expenses with 
respect to any Credit Enhancement, any 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement, or 
any Auction Agent or broker dealer; 
provided that the amount so paid to the 
Corporation or set aside in reserve during 
any fiscal year of the Corporation for the 
payment of Program Expenses may not 
exceed 1.25% of the average principal 
amount of Pledged Loans outstanding 
during the preceding Fiscal Year or such 
greater or lesser amount as may be set 
forth in a Supplemental Indenture, 
provided that the Corporation must 
provide the Trustee with a Rating 
Confirmation that reflects any greater 
amount before establishing any such 
greater amount in a Supplemental 
Indenture. 

Seventh: Any remaining amounts 
shall be held in the Revenue Fund and 
applied as provided in the foregoing 
paragraphs or applied to payments 
described in Section 502(D), Section 
506(A), or Section 508. 

Section 504 : lnterest Account and -- 
Principal Account. (A) TheTrustee shall pay out of 
the lnterest Account to the respective Paying 
Agents for the Bonds (i) on or before each lnt6rest 
Payment Date, the amounts required for the 
payment of interest dueon the Outstanding Bonds 
on such date and (ii) on or before the redemption 
date or date of purchase, the amounts required for 
the payment of accrued interest on the Bonds 
redeemed or purchased for retirement, unless the 
payment of such accrued interest shall be 
otherwise provided for. In each such case, such 
amounts shall be applied by such Paying Agents 
to such payments; provided, however, that each 
payment shall be made By Class in Descending 
Order of Priority, beginning with Class I Bonds, if 
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any, unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds; and provided. 
further, that, unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or C ass of Bonds, interest payments 
rv:th resoect to anv lower C.ass of Bonds shall be .... 
made drily if an; to the extent that principal 
amounts due with respect to any higher Class of 
Bonds have been set aside in accordance with the 
requirements of paragraph Fourth of Section 
503(C). 

(B) From the amount accumulated in the 
Principal Account for each Principal Installment 
with respect to Bonds the Trustee shall pay to the 
respective Paying Agents on or before each 
Principal Installment Date the amount, i f  any, 
required for the payment of principal due on such 
date, and such amounts shall be applied by the 
Paying Agents to such payments; provided, 
however, that, unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds, each payment shall 
be made By Class in Descending Order of Priority, 
beginning with Class I Bonds, if any. 

(C) The amount accumulated in the 
Principal Account for each Sinking Fund Payment 
may and, if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation, shall be deposited in the Redemption 
Account (together with'amounts accumulated in 
the lnterest Account with respect to interest on 
such Bonds forwhich such Sinking Fund Payment 
was established) and applied by the Trustee prior 
to the forty-fifth day preceding the due date of such 
Sinking Fund Payment as follows: 

(1) to the purchase pursuant to 
Section 505(B) of Bondsof the Seriesand 
maturity for which such Sinking Fund 
Payment was established; or 

(2) to the redemption of such 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602 or Section 
603, if then redeemable by their terms, at 
the Redemption Price which would be 
payable for such Bonds upon redemption 
by application of such Sinking Fund 
Payment plus unpaid interest accrued to 
the date of redemption. 

(D) Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 504, if interest or 
principal with respect to any Bond is paid from 
Credit Enhancement and such payment is required 
to be reimbursed, then amounts held in the 
lnterest Account and in the Principal Account shall 
be used to make such reimbursement in lieu of 
making such interest or principal payments in 
accordance with the terms of the instrument 
creating the Credit Enhancement. 

Section 505 - Redemption Account. (A) 
There shall be deposited in the Redemption 
Account any amounts which are required to be 
deposited therein pursuant to this lndenture or any 
Supplemental lndenture and any other amounts 
available therefor and determined by the 
Corporation to be deposited therein. Subject to 
the provisions of this lndenture or of any 
Supplemental lndenture requiring the application 
thereof to the purchase or redemption of any 
particular Bonds, the Trustee shall apply any 
amounts deposited in the Redemption Account to 
the purchase or redemption of any of the Bonds 
(or to the reimbursement of any Credit 
Enhancement provider for amounts advanced by 
Credit Enhancement to pay for such purchase or 
redemption) at the times and in the manner 
provided in this Section and in Section 602 or 
Section 603. as applicable. 

(B) At any time prior to the forty-fifth 
day prior to the day upon which Bonds are to be 
redeemed from such amounts, the Trustee shall, 
upon the written direction of the Corporation, apply 
amounts in the Redemption Account to the 
purchase of any of the Bonds which may be 
redeemed by application of amounts on deposit in 
the Redemption Account, except that the 
Corporation may, by delivery of written instructions 
to such effect signed by an Authorized Officer. 
require or prohibit such purchases in the discretion 
of the Corporation. The Trustee shall purchase 
Bonds at such times, for such prices, in such 
amounts and in such manner as the Corporation 
shall from time to time direct in writing. The 
purchase price paid (excluding accrued interest 
but including any brokerage and othercharges) for 
any Bond purchased shall not exceed the principal 
amount of such Bond unless such Bond may be 
redeemed in accordance with this lndenture on 
any date within thirteen months after such 
purchase in which event such purchase price shall 
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not exceed the highest Redemption Price payable 
on any such date upon the redemption of such 
Bond. In the event the Trustee is able to purchase 
a principal amount of Bonds equivalent to the sum 
of the deposits in the Redemption Account for the 
redemption of such Bonds at a purchase price less 
than the sum of such deposits, excluding the 
applicable transfers from the lnterest Account, 
upon the payment by the Trustee of the purchase 
price of such Bonds, the Trustee shall transfer the 
balance of such moneys remaining in the 
Redemption Account to, and deposit the same in, 
the Revenue Fund. 

(C) The Corporation may,from time to 
time by written instructions, direct the Trustee to 
make purchases under subsection (B) above. No 
purchase of Bonds shall be made by the Trustee 
from amounts in the Redemption Account within 
the period of forty-five days next preceding any 
date on which such Bonds are subject to 
redemption. 

(D) Upon the purchase or redemption 
of Bonds of any Series and maturity for which 
Sinking Fund Payments have been established 
from amounts in the Redemption Account, there 
shall be credited toward all future Sinking Fund 
Payments thereafter to become due and any 
payment upon final maturity with respect to such 
Bonds, on a pro rata basis among all such Sinking 
Fund Payments and payment upon final maturity, 
an amount equal to the total principal amount of 
such Bonds so purchased or redeemed. If. 
however, there shall be filed with the Trustee 
written instructions of an Authorized Officer 
specifying a different method for crediting Sinking 
Fund Payments upon any such purchase or 
redemption of Bonds, then such Sinking Fund 
Payments shall be credited as shall be provided in 
such instructions, but only if the Corporation shall 
have filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such crediting method. 

(E) As soon as practicable after the 
forty-fifth day preceding the due date of any such 
Sinking Fund Payment, the Trustee shall proceed 
to call for redemption pursuant to Section 603, on 
such due date, Bonds of the Series and maturity 
for which such Sinking Fund Payment was 
established in such amount as shall be necessary 
to complete the retirement of Bondsof such Series 
and maturity in the principal amount equal to the 
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amount of the unsatisfied balance of such Sinking 
Fund Payment. The Trustee shall so call such 
Bonds for redemption without regard to whether it 
then has moneys in the Redemption Account 
sufficient to pay the applicable Redemption Price 
thereof to the redemption date. 

(F) The Trustee shall pay out of the 
Redemption Account to the Paying Agents for 
such Bonds on or before the redemption date 
thereof, the amounts required for the payment on 
such date by such Paying Agents, respectively, of 
the Redemption Price of any Bonds to be 
redeemed and the Paying Agents shall apply such 
amounts to the redemption of such Bonds on and 
after such date. If at any date there shall be 
moneys in the Redemption Account and there 
shall be Outstanding none of the Bonds of the 
Series for the redemption of which such moneys 
were deposited in the Redemption Account, such 
moneys shall be withdrawn therefrom and 
deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

(G) Except for amounts which are 
required to be retained therein for the redemption 
of Bonds for which notice of redemption shall have 
been given as provided in Article VI or for which 
the Trustee has received irrevocable instructions 
to give such a notice on a future date, amounts in 
the Redemption Account may, upon the written 
request of the Corporation, signed by an 
Authorized Officer, be transferred to the Revenue 
Fund. 

Section 506 I Insufficient Revenues; -- 
CaDital Reserve m. (A) If, one Business Day 
before any lnterest Payment Date, the amount in 
the Principal Account or the lnterest Account 
(taking into account amounts scheduled to be 
received from Investment Securities at any time 
before such lnterest Payment Date) shall be less 
than the amount required for the payment of all 
Principal Installments and interest on Outstanding 
Bonds of a Class due on such lnterest Payment 
Date, the Trustee shall apply all Surplus Revenues 
and then amounts in the related Series Accounts 
and then from any other Series Accounts to satisfy 
such insufficiency and, if an insufficiency remains 
thereafter, shallimmediately notifythecorporation 
of such event and shall apply amounts from the 
Capital Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to 
make good the deficiency. Amounts so applied 
shall be applied By Class in Descending Order of 

MASTER INDENTURE 11-26 



Priority. If on any Redemption Date (or any date 
for the purchase of Bonds under Section 505(B)), 
the amount in the Redemption Account and the 
Interest Account shall be less than the amount 
required for the payment of the Redemption Price 
(or purchase price) and interest accrued on such 
Bonds to be redeemed (or purchased) on such 
date the Trustee shall apply all Surplus Revenues 
and then amounts in the related Series Accounts 
and then from any other Series Accounts to satisfy 
such insufficiency and, if an insufficiency remains 
thereafter, shall immediately notify the Corporation 
of such event and shall apply amounts from the 
Capital Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to 
make good the deficiency. Amounts so applied 
shall be applied By Class in Descending Order of 
Priority. If, on any date specified in this Section 
506(A) forthe application of amounts in the Capital 
Reserve Fund, there are insufficient amounts for 
such application, or if, at any time, the amount in 
the Capital Reserve Fund is less than the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall 
immediately notify the Corporation of such event 
and, upon the written direction of the Corporation, 
shall immediately transfer to the Capital Reserve 
Fund from assets of the Corporation made 
available for such purpose by the Corporation or 
from any other Fund or Account (provided that the 
Trustee shall make any such transfer from a 
Series Account only aftertransferring any available 
assets of the Corporation and any amounts in all 
other Funds and Accounts, excluding any Credit 
Enhancement Fund, and then on a pro rata basis 
among the amounts available in all the Series 
Accounts unless a different allocation is required 
for Federal tax reasons as set forth in a Letter of 
Instructions, or to pay principal or interest on any 
Bonds) amounts necessary to increase the amount 
in the Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund to theamount needed 
for the intended application or to the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, as the case may be. 
In determining whether the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is at least equal to the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall 
include the amount of cash and the principal 
amountof InvestmentSecurities heldin thecapital 
Reserve Fund, togetherwith the amount of interest 
earned or accrued thereon as of the date of 
valuation, and shall also include, but only if any 
other requirement therefor specified in a 
Supplemental lndenture has been satisfied, the 
principal component of any Credit Enhancement 
then on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund. 
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(B) All income earned or gains 
realized as a result of the investment of amounts 
on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund shall be 
deposited therein and constitute a part thereof. 
Except as provided in subsection (C) of this 
Section, if, concurrently with any allocation from 
the Revenue Fund pursuant to subsection (C) of 
Section 503, the amount on deposit in the Capital 
Reserve Fund shall be in excess of the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement, the Trustee shall 
transfer the amount of such excess to the 
Revenue Fund. 

(C) Whenever the Corporation shall 
deliver instructions to the Trustee to redeem 
Bonds of a particular Series or the redemption of 
Bonds of a particular Series is required by a 
Supplemental lndenture (other than by application 
of Sinking Fund Payments) and such redemption 
is to be made from amounts then on deposit in any 
Fund or Account other than the Capital Reserve 
Fund, the Trustee shall calculate the amount by 
which the amount on deposit in the Capital 
Reserve Fund will exceed the Capital Reserve 
Fund Requirement immediately following the 
redemption of the Bonds specified in such 
instructions (and to be redeemed from such 
amounts) and such excess amount shall on the 
redemption date specified in such instructions, be 
transferred into the Revenue Fund. In making the 
aforesaid calculation, the Trustee shall also take 
into account, as nearly as practicable, the 
additional amount by which the amount on deposit 
in the Capital Reserve Fund will exceed the 
Capital Reserve Fund Requirement as a result of 
the redemption of Bonds from the amounts to be 
so withdrawn. The Trustee shall give notice of the 
redemption of such Bonds and shall select the 
particular Bonds to be so redeemed in such 
manner as the Corporation shall specify in written 
instructions (subject to the terms of this lndenture 
and any Supplemental Indenture) or, failing such 
instructions, as the Trustee shall, in its sole 
discretion, deem advisable. 

(D) Whenever the amount in the 
Capital Reserve Fund, togetherwith the amount in 
the Interest Account and Principal Account, is 
sufficient to fully pay the principal of and interest 
on all Outstanding Bonds of a Series in 
accordance with their terms (including the Sinking 
Fund Payments for the retirement thereof), and 
immediately thereafter the amount on deposit in 
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the Capital Reserve Fund shall at least equal the 
Capital Reserve Fund Requirement, such amount 
shall, at the written direction of the Corporation, be 
transferred from the Capital Reserve Fund to the 
Revenue Fund. Prior to any such transfer, 
investments held in the Capital Reserve Fund in 
an amount necessary to make said transfer shall 
be liquidated. 

(E) The Trustee shall sell or redeem 
lnvestment Securities to the extent necessary to 
provide money to make any required payment 
pursuant to this Section and, at the written 
direction of the Corporation, shall sell or redeem 
Investment Securities to make any deposit, 
purchase, payment or redemption as permitted 
pursuant to this Section. 

Section 507 - Pledaed Loans Fund. (A) 
The Corporation may deposit loans and other 
assets in any amount in the Pledged Loans Fund 
at any time. Upon the payment or redemption of 
all of the Outstanding Bonds of a Series and 
payment to the Insurer of all amounts due under 
the Insurance Agreement, if any, relating to such 
Series, the balance, if any, remaining in the 
Pledged Loans Fund for that Series shall be 
transferred to the Corporation. 

(B) At any time the Corporation may 
direct the Trustee to withdraw Pledged Loans or 
other property from the Pledged Loans Fund, and 
theTrustee shall so withdraw such Pledged Loans 
or other property and deliver such Pledged Loans 
or other property to the Corporation free and clear 
of the lien and pledge of this lndenture; provided 
that 

(i) the Trustee receives a Rating 
Confirmation taking into 
consideration such withdrawal of 
Pledged Loan or other property; 

(ii) the Trustee receives from the 
Corporation a Certificate that no 
Event of Default and no payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
exists or remains uncured, and 
no Event of Default or payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
as to which the Trustee has 
knowledge shall exist and remain 
uncured (unless the withdrawal 

shall cure the Event of Default or 
payment default); 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund will 
be funded to at least the Capital 
Reserve Fund Requirement after 
giving effect to the withdrawal; 

(iv) any additional requirements 
imposed by a Supplemental 
lndenture are satisfied; and 

(v) the Corporation shall certify to 
the Trustee that all conditions 
precedent to the withdrawal of 
Pledged Loans and other 
property pursuant to this Section 
504(C) and pursuant to any other 
applicable provisions of this 
lndenture or any Supplemental 
lndenture shall have been 
satisfied. 

The Corporation may expend any amounts paid to 
it or transfer or use any Pledged Loans or other 
property transferred to it for any lawful purpose. 

(C) The Corporation may at any time 
sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of a 
Pledged Loan at a price (i) at least equal to the 
principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) (a) 
when the amounts on deposit in the Fundscreated 
in Section 501 (A) are at least equal the principal 
amount of the Outstanding Bonds or (b) to pay 
current debt service on the Bonds; or (ii) lower 
than the principal amount thereof (plus accrued 
interest) if the Corporation delivers to the Trustee 
a Rating Confirmation taking into consideration 
such sale, assignment, transfer, or other 
disposition of such Pledged Loan at such lower 
price. The Corporation shall sell Pledged Loans if 
necessary to prevent the occurrence of an Event 
of Default. Thecorporation shall also sell Pledged 
Loans if necessary to prevent a default in the 
payment of the principal of or interest on any of the 
Bonds when due, unless such sale would cause 
an Event of Default to occur. 

Section 508 - Excess Coveraae. At any 
time, but no more frequently than once every 
month, the Corporation may deliver to the Trustee 
a Certificate, evidencing the fact that there is then 
Excess Coverage on deposit hereunder and 
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specifying the amount thereof and stating that no 
Event of Default or payment default exists 
hereunder. Promptly upon the Trustee's receipt of 
that Certificate with a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting the release of any Excess Coverage, the 
Trustee shall release such Excess Coverage to the 
Corporation from the Pledged Loans Fund or from 
the Revenue Fund, as set forth in such Certificate, 
for any of its corporate purposes, including, without 
limitation, the deposit of said amounts in any Fund 
or Account or the acquisition of additional loans for 
transfer to any Fund. The Trustee may 
conclusively rely upon such Certificate without 
further duty to examine or investigate the accuracy 
thereof. 

Section 509 - Obtaining Credit 
Enhancements and Interest Rate Exchanae 
Aqreements. Except as otherwise provided in a 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds, the Corporation may 
obtain Credit Enhancement or an lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement with respect to such Bonds 
either at the time of issuance of the Bonds or any 
time thereafter, provided that, in any case, the 
Corporation shall have filed with the Trustee a 
Rating Confirmation reflecting such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. The Class ranking of such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement shall be determined as provided in 
Section 510(D). 

Section 510 : Creation of Additional -- 
Funds, Acco~nts and Subaccounts: Separate 
Cred~t Enhancement Funds: Pledqe of Trust 
Estate w~th ReSDeCt to Credit Ennancements and - -- -- - 

lnterest Rate Exchanae Aqreements. (A) The -- 
Trustee shall establish within any Fund such 
Accounts in addition to the Accounts herein 
established as the Corporation shall by 
Supplemental lndenture determine and shall in like 
manner establish within any Account such 
additional subaccounts for the purposes of such 
Account as the Corporation shall so determine. 

(B) The Corporation may at any time 
by execution of a Supplemental lndenture 
establish a Fund or Account in which to hold any 
Credit Enhancement and the proceeds thereof or 
drawings thereunder (a "Credit Enhancement 
Fund") for the benefit of any Series of Bonds to 
which such Credit Enhancement has been 
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pledged, which pledge may be (but is not required 
to be) exclusively for the benefit of such Series of 
Bonds or certain designated Series of Bonds and 
not equally and ratably among all the Series of 
Bonds and Parity Obligations Outstanding. 
Amounts held in a Credit Enhancement Fund shall 
not be considered a part of the Trust Estate but, 
rather, shall be subject to such lien and pledge as 
may be created in the Supplemental lndenture 
creating such Credit Enhancement. 

(C) If the Corporation creates a Credit 
Enhancement Fund, the Corporation may direct, in 
the Supplemental lndenture creating such Credit 
Enhancement Fund, that the Trustee pay, and if so 
directed in writing by the Corporation the Trustee 
shall pay, principal (including premium, if any) of 
and interest on the Bonds secured by such Credit 
Enhancement Fund directly from amounts in such 
Credit Enhancement Fund and that the Trustee 
reimburse, and if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation the Trustee shall so reimburse, such 
Credit Enhancement Fund for such payment from 
the Credit Enhancement Fund; provided, however, 
that the Corporation may, in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the Series of Bonds to be 
secured by Credit Enhancement, treat any, or any 
part of any, obligation owed or which may in the 
future beowed to the Credit Enhancement Agency 
pursuanttothecredit Enhancement Instrumentas 
Additional Bonds of the same Class as the Bonds 
secured by such Credit Enhancement if the 
Corporation, at the time of issuance of said Series 
of Bonds and at the time of the creation of any 
such obligation satisfies the requirements of 
Section 208, in which case the Trustee shall pay 
the principal of and interest on any such 
obligations in accordance with the terms of this 
lndenture treating such obligations as Additional 
Bonds. In a Supplement lndenture authorizing 
Additional Bonds secured by a Credit 
Enhancement Fund the Corporation may fix 
provisions relating to such Fund different from the 
provisions of Section 511. In addition to the 
foregoing, the Corporation may agree to permit a 
Credit Enhancement Agency to be subrogated to 
the rights of any Bondholders whose Bonds are 
secured by the Credit Enhancement provided that 
such Credit Enhancement Agency is not in default 
under such Credit Enhancement and provided that 
such Credit Enhancement, if it has been assigned 
a Class as provided above, is in a Class at least as 
high as the Class of the Bonds it secures. 
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(D) If the Corporation enters into an 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement or obtains 
Credit Enhancement with respect to any Series or 
Class of Bonds, the Corporation may grant a 
security interest in the Trust Estate to secure 
performance of the Corporation'sobligations under 
such Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement. The Corporation may 
identify the Class ranking of the Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the Bonds secured by such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement or in the agreement creating the credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchanae 
Agreement. The Class ranking of the ~ r e i i t  
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement may be equal to or greater or lesser 
than the Class ranking of any Bonds issued under 
this lndenture, including the Bonds secured by the 
Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. 

Section 51 1 - D ~ D O S ~ ~ S  Investments. 
(A) All amounts in anv Fund or Account held under 
i hk  lndenture (including amounts described in the 
CustodianlDepositaryISe~icing Agreement and 
any other amounts held in any fund or account 
created by or on behalf of any such Fiduciary or 
Depositary for the receipt of amounts held under 
this lndenture) by any Fiduciaryor Depositaryshall 
be held in trust for the benefit of the Trustee i f  not 
held by the Trustee and shall be continuously and 
fully secured forthe benefit of the Corporation and 
the holders of the Bonds either (i) by lodging 
lnvestment Securities as collateral with theTrustee 
as custodian, having a market value (exclusive of 
accrued interest) not less than the amount of such 
moneys or (ii) in such other manner as may then 
be required by applicable federal or state laws and 
regulations and applicable state laws and 
regulations of the state in which such Fiduciary or 
Depositary (as the case may be) is located. 
regarding security for, or granting a preference in 
the case of, the deposit of trust funds; except that 
it shall not be necessary for a Fiduciary or 
Depositary to give security under this subsection 
for the deposit of any moneys with them held in 
trust and set aside by them for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on any 
Bonds, or for any Fiduciary or Depositary to give 
security for any moneys which shall be 
represented by obligations or certificates of deposit 
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purchased as an investment of such moneys. All 
amounts deposited with the Trustee and each 
Depositary (including amounts received by the 
S t a t e  o f  A l a s k a  u n d e r  t h e  
CustodianlDepositarylSe~icing Agreement) shall 
immediately be credited to the particular Fund or 
Accountto which such amounts belong. Until such 
time as such amounts are expended for the 
purposes authorized by this lndenture or any 
Supplemental lndenture or are transferred to 
another Fund or Account as provided in this 
lndenture or any Supplemental Indenture, the 
Trustee or Depositary shall invest such amounts 
as provided in (B) of this Section. Neither the 
Trustee nor any Depositary shall be responsible 
for any losses resulting from the investment of 
moneys in the funds and accounts created 
hereunder, so long as such investments are made 
in accordance with this lndenture and the written 
direction of the Corporation or, in the case of the 
State acting under the Custodian Agreement, in 
accordance with the Custodian Agreement. The 
Trustee may make any and all investments 
permitted by the provisions of this Section 511 
through its own investment department or that of 
its affiliates. The Corporation acknowledges that 
to the extent that regulations of the Comptroller of 
thecurrency orotherapplicable regulatoryagency 
grant the Corporation the right to receive 
brokerage confirmations of security transactions. 
the Corporation waives receipt of such 
confirmations. 

(B) Upon the deposit of any amounts 
in any Fund or Account, the Corporation may 
furnish the Trustee with a schedule of dates on 
which it is estimated by the Corporation that such 
moneys in said Fund or Account will be required to 
be expended. The Corporation may from time to 
time amend the schedule so furnished. Upon 
receipt of such schedule or amended schedule, 
the Corporation shall direct the Trustee or 
Depositary, in writing, to invest and reinvest in 
lnvestment Securities the moneys in said Fund or 
Account so that the maturity date or date of 
redemption at the option of the holder of such 
obligations shall coincide as nearly as practicable 
with the times at which moneys are needed by the 
Corporation to be so expended, except that (i) with 
respect to the Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund such 
lnvestment Securities shall include only such 
investments as are permitted pursuant to any 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing a Series of 



Bonds as to which any Bonds remain Outstanding 
at the time of such investment; (ii) the average 
maturities of investments purchased with amounts 
in the Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund may be limited 
pursuant to the provisions of a Supplemental 
Indenture; and (iii) investments purchased with 
amounts in the Principal Account must mature or 
be redeemable at the option of the holder no later 
than the day before the lnterest Payment Date on 
which amounts used to purchase such 
investments are needed to pay principal of the 
Bonds, and investments purchased with amounts 
in the lnterest Account must mature or be 
redeemable at the option of the holder no later 
than the day before the lnterest Payment Date on 
which amounts used to purchase such 
investments are needed to pay interest on the 
Bonds. The obligations purchased shall be held 
by the Trustee and shall be deemed at all times to 
be part of such Fund or Account, and the Trustee 
shall keep the Corporation advised as to the 
details of all such investments. 

(C) Except as otherwise provided in 
this lndenture, obligations purchased as an 
investment of moneys in any Fund or Account held 
by the Trustee under the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be deemed at all times to be a part 
of such Fund or Account, but the income or 
interest earned and gains realized in excess of 
losses suffered by a Fund or Account, other than 
the Capital Reserve Fund, due to the investment 
thereof shall be deposited upon receipt as Pledged 
Receipts into the Revenue Fund. 

(D) The Trustee shall advise the 
Corporation in writing, on or before the tenth day of 
each calendar month, of the details of all 
investments held for the credit of each Fund and 
Account in its custody under the provisions of this 
lndenture as of the end of the preceding month. 

Section 512 - Use of Funds in Event of - - - - - - - - - 
Default. If an Event of Default described in 
Section 1002(1) or (2) occurs and is continuing, 
the Trustee may use moneys from any Fund or 
Account created hereunder to make payments 
required hereunder. 

ARTICLE VI 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 601 - Privileae of Redemption 
Redemption Price. Bonds subject to redemption 
prior to maturity pursuant to a Supplemental 
lndenture shall be redeemable, upon notice as 
provided in this Article, at such times, at such 
Redemption Prices and upon such terms as may 
be specified in such Bonds, in this lndenture and 
in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing such 
Series. Nothing in this lndenture or in any 
Supplemental lndenture shall require the 
redemption of Bonds in amounts less than 
Authorized Denominations. If amounts are 
available for the redemption of Bonds but such 
amounts are less than an Authorized 
Denomination of the Bonds to be redeemed, the 
Trustee shall so notify the Corporation and, at the 
written direction of the Corporation, shall deposit 
such Fund or Account as such written direction 
shall indicate. 

Section 602 - Redemption at the Election 
or Direction of& Corporation. In the case of any - 
redemption of Bonds other than as provided in 
Section 603, the Corporation shall give written 
notice at least 45 days before the redemption date 
to the Trustee of its election or direction so to 
redeem, of the redemption date, of the Series, of 
the principal amounts of the Bonds of each 
maturity of such Series to be redeemed (which 
redemption date, Series, maturities and principal 
amounts thereof to be redeemed shall be 
determined by the Corporation in its sole 
discretion, subject to any limitations with respect 
thereto contained in this lndenture and any 
Supplemental Indenture) and of any moneys to be 
applied to the payment of the Redemption Price. 
Upon the giving of such notice, the Corporation, if 
it holds the amounts to be applied to the payment 
of the Redemption Price, shall pay to the Trustee 
for deposit in the Redemption Account an amount 
in cash which, in addition to other moneys, if any, 
available therefor held herein, will be sufficient to 
redeem on the redemption dateatthe Redemption 
Pricethereof, all of the Bonds to be redeemed. 

Section 603 -Redemption OtherwiseTnan 
gt Corporaton's Election or D~rectlon. Whenever 
by the terms of this lndenture the Trustee is 
required to redeem Bonds otherwise than at the 
election or direction of the Corporation, and 
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subject to and in accordance with the terms of this 
Article, the Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
Series of Bonds of which the Bonds to be 
redeemed are part, and, to the extent applicable, 
Article V, the Trustee shall select the redemption 
date of the Bonds to be redeemed and give notice 
of the redemption in the manner prescribed by 
Section 605. 

Section 604 - Selection of Bonds to be 
Redeemed b~ Cot. In the event of redemption of 
less than all the Outstanding Bonds of like Series, 
Class, and maturity, the Trustee shall select the 
Bonds to be redeemed, from all Bonds or portions 
thereof not previously called for redemption, by lot 
in any manner which the Trustee in its sole 
discretion shall deem fair and appropriate. 

Section 605 - Notice of Redemption. -- 
When the Trustee shall receive notice from the 
Corporation of its election or direction to redeem 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602, and when 
redemption of Bonds is required by this lndenture 
pursuant to Section 603, unless otherwise required 
for a Series of Bonds by the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the same, the Trustee shall 
give notice in the name of the Corporation. 
regardless of whether the Trustee has sufficient 
money availableto pay the applicable Redemption 
Price with accrued interest on the Bonds to be 
redeemed, of the redemption of such Bonds, which 
notice shall specify the Series, Class, and 
maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed, the 
redemption date and the place or places where 
amounts due upon such redemption will be 
payable and, if less than all of the Bonds of any 
like Series, Class, and maturity are to be 
redeemed, the letters and numbers or other 
distinguishing marks of such Bonds so to be 
redeemed and, in the case of Bonds to be 
redeemed in part only, such notice shall also 
specify the respective portions of the principal 
amount thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall 
further state that on such date there shall become 
due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed 
the Redemption Price thereof, or the Redemption 
Price of the specified portions of the principal 
thereof in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in 
part only, together with interest accrued to the 
redemption date, and that from and after such 
redemption date interest thereon shall cease to 
accrue and be payable; provided, however, that it 
the Trustee does not have available money in an 

amount sufficient to pay such amounts on such 
date, then such notice of redemption shall be null 
and of no effect. The Trustee shall mail a copy of 
such notice, postage prepaid, at least 10 days but 
not more than 30 days before the redemptiondate. 
to the registered owners of any Bonds or portions 
of Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last 
addresses, if any, appearing upon the registry 
books, but such mailing shall not be a condition 
precedent to such redemption and failure so to 
mail any such notice shall not affect the validity of 
the proceedings for the redemption of Bonds. 

Section 606 Pavment of Redeemed -- 
Bonds. Notice having been given in the manner 
provided in Section 605, the Bonds or portions 
thereof so called for redemption shall become due 
and payable on the redemption date so designated 
at the Redemption Price, plus interest accrued and 
unpaid to the redemption date, and, upon 
presentation and surrender thereof at the office 
specified in such notice, such Bonds, or portions 
thereof, shall be paid atthe Redemption Price plus 
interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption 
date. If there shall be drawn for redemption less 
than all of a Bond, the Corporation shall execute 
and the Trustee shall authenticate and the Paying 
Agent deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, 
without charge to the owner thereof, for the 
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the 
registered Bond so surrendered at the option of 
the owner thereof, Bonds of like Series and 
maturity in any of the authorized denominations. 
If, on the redemption date, moneys for the 
redemption of all the Bonds or portions thereof of 
any like Series and maturity to be redeemed. 
together with interestto the redemption date, shall 
be held by any Paying Agent so as to be available 
therefor on said date and if notice of redemption 
shall have been mailed as aforesaid, then, from 
and after the redemption date interest on the 
Bonds or portions thereof of such Series and 
maturities so called for redemption shall cease to 
accrue and become payable. If said moneys shall 
not be so available on the redemption date, such 
Bonds or portions thereof shall continue to bear 
interest until paid at the same rate as they would 
have borne had they not been called for 
redemption. 
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ARTICLE VII 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS 

The Corporation covenants and agrees 
with the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds as 
follows: 

Section 701 - Payment of Bonds. The - - - 
Corporation shall duly and punctually pay orcause 
to be paid the principal or Redemption Price, if 
any, of every Bond and the interest thereon, at the 
dates and places and in the manner stated in the 
Bonds according to the true intent and meaning 
thereof and shall duly and punctually pay or cause 
to be paid all Sinking Fund Payments, if any, 
becoming payable with respect to any Series of 
Bonds. 

Section 702 - Extension of Pavment of - - - 
Bonds. The Corporation shall not directly or 
indirectly extend or assent to the extension of the 
maturity of any of the Bonds or the time of 
payment of any claims for interest by the purchase 
or funding of such Bonds or claims for interest or 
by any other arrangement and in case the maturity 
of any of the Bonds or the time for payment of any 
such claims for interest shall be extended, such 
Bonds or claimsfor interest shall not be entitled, in 
case of any default hereunder, to the benefit of this 
lndenture or to any payment out of the Funds or 
Accounts established pursuant to this lndenture, 
including the investments, if any, thereof, or out of 
any assets orrevenues pledged hereunder (except 
moneys held in trust for the payment of particular 
Bonds or claims for interest pursuant to this 
Indenture) prior to benefits accorded to or the 
payment of the principal of all Bonds Outstanding 
the maturity of which has not been extended and 
of such portion of the accrued interest on the 
Bonds as shall not be represented by such 
extended claims for interest. Nothing herein shall 
be deemed to limit the right of the Corporation to 
issue Refunding Bonds and such issuance shall 
not be deemed to constitute an extension of 
maturity of Bonds. 

Section 703 - Office for Servicinq Bonds. 
The Corporation shall at all times maintain an 
office or agency where Bonds may be presented 
for transfer or exchange, and where notices, 
presentations and demands upon the Corporation 
in respect of the Bonds or of this lndenture may be 
served. The Corporation hereby appoints the 
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Secton 705 - Power to Issue Bonds and - -. - - - - - 
PleoqeReven~es, F~nosand Other Property The 
Corporation is duly authorized Lnoer all applicable 
laws to authorize and issue the ~onds ' fo r  the 
purposes herein authorized and to execute and 
deliver this lndenture and to pledge the Trust 
Estate purported to be pledged hereby in the 
manner and to the extent herein provided. The 
Trust Estate so pledged is and will be free and 
clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance 
thereon or with respect thereto prior to, of equal 
rank with, or subordinate to, the pledge created 
hereby, other than any pledge or lien granted as 
security for Parity Obligations in conformity with 
the terms and provisions of this lndenture, and all 
corporate or other action on the part of the 
Corporation to that end has been and will be duly 
and validly taken. The Bonds and the provisions of 
this lndenture are and will be the valid and legally 
enforceable obligations of the Corporation in 
accordance with their terms and the terms of this 
Indenture. The Corporation shall at all times, to 
the extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and 
protect the pledge of the Pledged Loans, Pledged 
Loan Notes, Pledged Receipts, and other assets 
and revenues constituting the Trust Estate, 
including rights therein pledged under this 
lndenture and all the rights of the Bondholders 

Trustee as its agent to maintain such office or 
agency for the transfer or exchange of Bonds and 
for the service of such notices, presentations and 
demands upon the Corporation and may appoint 
one or more co-registrars for such purposes. The 
Corporation hereby appoints the Trustee as 
Paying Agent and hereby appoints the Paying 
Agent as its agent to maintain such offices or 
agencies for the payment of Bonds. 

Section 704 - Further Assurance. At any 
and all times the Corporation shall, so far as it mav 
be authorized by law, pass, make, do, execute. 
acknowledge and deliver, all and every such 
further resolutions, acts, deeds, conveyances. 
assignments, transfers and assurances as may be 
necessary for the better assuring, conveying. 
granting, pledging, assigning and confirming all 
and singularthe rights, assets, revenues and other 
moneys, securities, funds and property hereby 
pledged or assigned, or intended so to be, or 
which the Corporation may become bound to 
pledge or assign. 



under this lndenture against all claims and 
demands of all persons whomsoever. 

Section 706 - Accounts and R ~ D o ~ ~ s .  (A) 
The Corporation shall annually, within 120 days 
after the close of each fiscal year of the 
Corporation, file with the Trustee, and with such 
officials of the State, if any, as may be required by 
the Act, financial statements of the Corporation for 
such fiscal year setting forth in reasonable detail: 
(a) a statement of its revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net assets; (b) its balance sheet or 
statement of net assets showing its assets and 
liabilities at the end of such fiscal year; and (c) its 
statement of cash flows for such fiscal year. The 
financial statements shall be accompanied by an 
Accountant's Certificate stating to the general 
effect that the financial statements examined 
present fairly the financial position of the 
Corporation at the end of the fiscal year, the 
results of its operations and the changes in 
financial position for the period examined, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

(B) A copy of each Accountant's 
Certificate shall be mailed promptly thereafter by 
the Corporation to each Bondholder who shall 
have filed his name and address with the 
Corporation for such purpose. 

Section 707 - Pledaed Loans Fund. (A) 
The Corporation shall from time to time, with all 
practical.dispatch and in a sound and economical 
manner consistent in all respects with the Act and 
its regulations and other applicable provisions of 
law from time to time in effect, the provisions of 
this Indenture and sound banking practices and 
principles, (i) do all such acts and things as shall 
be necessary to receive and collect Pledged 
Receipts (including diligent enforcement of the 
prompt collection of any delinquencies) sufficient 
to pay the Program Expenses and the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on the 
Bonds and apply such amounts in a manner 
consistent with such purpose, and (ii) diligently 
enforce, and take all steps, actions and 
proceedings reasonably necessary in the judgment 
of the Corporation to enforce, all terms, covenants 
and conditions of the Pledged Loans, including, 
without limitation, any action or proceeding 
necessitated by any State legislation purporting to 
waive or relax any of the terms and provisions 

thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Corporation may modify the terms of any Pledged 
Loan or Pledged Loan Note or any group of 
Pledged Loansor Pledged Loan Notesor takeany 
other action it chooses which may have the effect 
of modifying the terms of any Pledged Loans or 
Pledged Loan Notes, provided thatthe Corporation 
(i) obtains the Insurer's written consent to such 
modification or other action, and (ii) files with the 
Trustee Rating Confirmation reflecting such 
modification or other action. 

(B) The Corporation hereby 
represents and warrants that it has the experience 
to administer and service the Pledged Loans in 
accordance with the requirements of the Act and 
covenants that it shall at all times take all action to 
ensure that the administering and servicing of the 
Pledged Loans complies with the requirements of 
the Act. 

Section 708 Issuance of Additional -- 
Obliqations. (A) The Corporation shall not 

~ - 

hereafter create or permit the creation of or issue 
any obligations or create any indebtedness which 
will be secured by a lien on the Trust Estate except 
as provided in Sections 206, 207, 208 and 209. 

(B) The Corporation shall not issue 
any Series of Bonds under this lndenture unless: 

(1) the principal amount of the 
Bonds then to be issued, togetherwith the 
principal amount of the bonds, notes and 
other obligations of the Corporation 
theretofore issued (less any Bonds to be 
refunded thereby and deemed not 
Outstanding) will not in the opinion of 
Bond Counsel exceed in aggregate 
principal amount any limitation thereon 
imposed by law; and 

(2) upon the issuance and 
delivery of such Bonds, the amount 
credited to the Capital Reserve Fund shall 
not be less than the Capital Reserve Fund 
Requirement. 

Section 709 -The Capital Reserve Fund. 
(A) The Corporation shall at all times maintain the 
Capital Reserve Fund created and established by 
Section 501 and do and perform or cause to be 
done and performed each and every act and thing 
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with respect to the Capital Reserve Fund provided 
to be done or performed by or on behalf of the 
Corporation or the Trustee or the Paying Agents 
underthe terms and provisions of Article V hereof. 

(B) In order to better secure the 
Bonds and to make them more marketable and to 
maintain in the Capital Reserve Fund in an amount 
equal to thecapital Reserve Fund Requirement, in 
the event that the Capital Reserve Fund falls 
below the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement, the 
Corporation shall, in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act, cause the Chairman of the 
Board of Directors of the Corporation annually, on 
or before January 15 of each year, to certify in 
writing to the Governor of the State and the 
Chairmen of the House and Senate Finance 
Committees the amount, if any, required to restore 
the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve 
Fund Requirement. A copy of such Certificate 
shall be promptly delivered to the Trustee. All 
moneys received by the Corporation from the 
State in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
pursuant to any such certification shall be paid to 
the Trustee for deposit and credit to the Capital 
Reserve Fund. In addition, if 15 days prior to the 
end of each calendar quarter during which the 
Bonds are Outstanding, the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is not equal to the Capital Reserve 
Requirement or there is not sufficient money 
otherwise available in all Funds and Accounts 
established hereunder to pay Principal 
Installments and interest coming due on the next 
Interest Payment Date, the Chairman of the Board 
shall certify in writing to the Governor the amount. 
if any, required to restore the Capital Reserve 
Fund to the Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund Requirement or 
to pay such Principal Installment and interest 
coming due, as the case may be. 

(C) Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this lndenture, the Trustee shall not 
permit amounts to be withdrawn from the Capital 
Reserve Fund other than pursuant to Section 506. 

Section 71 0 -Compliance withconditions 
Precedent. Upon the date of issuance of any of 
the Bonds, all conditions, acts and things required 
by law or by this lndenture to exist, to have 
happened or to have been performed precedent to 
or in the issuance of such Bonds shall exist, have 
happened and have been performed, or will have 
happened or been performed, and such Bonds, 

together with all other indebtedness of the 
Corporation shall be within every debt and other 
limit prescribed by law. 

Section 71 1 - General. The Corporation 
shall do and perform or cause to be done and 
performed all acts and things required to be done 
or performed by or on behalf of the Corporation 
under the provisions of the Act and this lndenture 
in accordance with the terms of such provisions. 

Section 712 1 Waiver of Laws. The -- - 
Corporation shall not at any time insist w o n  or 
plead in any manner whatsoever, or claim br take 
the benefit or advantage of any stay or extension 
law now or at any time hereafter in force which 
may affect the covenants and agreements 
contained in this lndenture or in the Bonds, and all 
benefit or advantage of any such law is hereby 
expressly waived by the Corporation. 

Section 713 - Pledae and Aqreement of 
the State. As authorized by the Act, the following -- 
pledge and agreement of the State of Alaska is 
made: 

The State pledges to, and agrees with, 
registered owners of the Bonds that the State will 
not limit or alter the rights and powers vested in 
the Corporation under Alaska Statutes, Sections 
14.42.100 through 14.42.990, to fulfill the terms of 
contracts made by the Corporation with the 
Bondholders or in any way impair the rights and 
remedies of the Bondholders until the Bonds, 
together with the interest on them with interest on 
unpaid installments of interest, and all costs and 
expenses in connection with an action or 
proceeding by oron behalf of the bondholders, are 
fully met and discharged. 

Section 714 - Tax Covenants. (A) The 
Corporation shall not knowingly take or cause any 
action to be taken which would cause interest on 
any Bonds to become taxable for federal income 
tax purposes. The Corporation shall at all times do 
and perform all acts and things necessary or 
desirable, including, but not limited to, complying 
with the rebate provisions of Section 148 of the 
Code, as applicable, and complying with the 
provisions of any letter of instructions from Bond 
Counsel, in order to assure that interest paid on 
Bonds shall, for purposes of federal income 
taxation, be excludable from the gross income of 
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the recipients thereof and exempt from taxation. 
The Corporation shall not permit at any time or 
times any proceeds of any Bonds or any amounts 
held hereunder to be used, directly or indirectly, in 
a manner which would result in the exclusion of 
any Bond from the treatment afforded by 
subsection (a) of Section 103 of the Code. 

(B) This Section shall not apply to any 
Bonds the interest on which is intended by the 
Corporation not to be excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 
of the Code; provided, that no such Bonds shall be 
issued unless a Bond Counsel's opinion is filed 
with the Trustee stating that the issuance of such 
Bonds will not adversely affect the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes of 
the interest on any previously issued Bond. 

Section 715 I Continuinq Disclosure; -- 
Bankruptcy. (A) The Corporation hereby 
covenants and agrees that it will comply with and 
carry out all the provisions of each Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this lndenture, failure of the 
Corporation to comply with any Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate shall not be considered an 
Event of Default, and any Bondholder may take 
such actions only as may be provided in such 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

(6) The Corporation hereby covenants 
and agrees that itwill notify the Rating Agencies of 
any change in the Act which would permit it or 
require it to declare bankruptcy under the 
Bankruptcy Code. 

ARTICLE Vlll 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 

Section 801 - Supplemental Indentures - - - 
Effective Upon filina With the Trustee. For any 
one or more of the following purposes and at any 
time or from time to time foliowing written notice to 
the Rating Agencies, a Supplemental lndenture 
may be entered into by and between the 
Corporation and the Trustee: 

(1) To close this lndenture 
against, or provide limitations and 
restrictions in addition to the limitations 
and restrictions contained in this lndenture 

on, the authentication and delivery of 
Bonds or the issuance of other evidences 
of indebtedness; 

(2) To add to the covenants 
and agreements of the Corporation in this 
lndenture other covenants and 
agreements to be observed by the 
Corporation which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; 

(3) To add to the limitations 
and restrictions in this lndenture other 
limitations and restrictions to be observed 
by the Corporation which are not contrary 
to or inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; 

(4) To surrender any right, 
power or privilege reserved to or 
conferred upon the Corporation by the 
terms of this lndenture, but only if the 
surrender of such right, power or privilege 
is not contrary to or inconsistent with the 
covenants and agreements of the 
Corporation contained in this lndenture; 

(5) To authorize Bonds of a 
Seriesand, in connection therewith, (A) to 
specify and determine the matters and 
things referred to in, or otherwise take the 
actions described in, Sections 206, 302. 
306(A), 307,401 (A)(2), 401(B), 510,511, 
601, 602, 603, 605, and 11 02 and also 
any other matters and things relative to 
such Bonds which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect, (B) to amend, modify 
or rescind any such authorization. 
specification or determination at any time 
prior to the first authentication and 
delivery of such Bonds or (C) to add such 
provisions to this lndenture and, if 
necessary, amend the provisions of this 
lndenture as may be necessary to permit 
and provide for the issuance of such 
Bonds as bearer Bonds; 

(6) To confirm, as further 
assurance, any pledge under, and the 
subjection to any lien or pledge created or 
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to be created by, this lndenture, of the 
Trust Estate; 

(7) To modify any of the 
provisions of this lndenture in any respect 
whatsoever, provided that (i) such 
modification shall be, and be expressed to 
be, effective only after all Bonds of any 
Series Outstanding at the date of the 
adoption of such Supplemental lndenture 
shall cease to be Outstanding, and (ii) 
such Supplemental lndenture shall be 
specifically referred to in the text of all 
Bonds of any Series authenticated and 
delivered after the date of the adoption of 
such Supplemental lndenture and of 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in 
place thereof; and 

(8) To make such additions, 
deletions, or modifications as may be 
necessary to assure compliance with 
Section 148(6)(3) of the Code or Section 
148(f) of the Code or the Higher 
Education Act or to obtain a satisfactory 
rating on a Series or Class of Bonds from 
a Rating Agency, provided, that no such 
additions, deletions or modifications 
intended to obtain a satisfactory rating 
shall cause reduction in any ratings 
assigned by a Rating Agency to Bonds 
then Outstanding. 

Section 802 - Supplemental Indentures - - - 
Effective Upon Consent of Trustee. (A) For any 
one or more of the following purposes and at any 
time or from time to time following written notice to 
the Rating Agencies, a Supplemental lndenture 
may be adopted, which, upon (i) the filing with the 
Trustee of a copy thereof certified by an 
Authorized Officer, and (ii) the filing with the 
Trustee and the Corooration of an instrument in 
writing made by the'~rustee consenting thereto. 
shall be fully effective in accordance with its terms: 

(1) To cure any ambiguity. 
supply any omission, or cure or correct 
any defect or inconsistent provision in this 
Indenture; or 

(2) To insert such provisions 
clarifying matters or questions arising 
under this lndenture as are necessary or 

desirable and are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; or 

(3) To provide for additional 
duties of the Trustee in connection with 
the Pledged Loans; or 

(4) Tomake any change that 
is accompanied by a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such change or any change 
approved by a Credit Enhancement 
Agency if the change will only affect 
Bonds secured by Credit Enhancement 
issued by such Credit Enhancement 
Agency. 

(B) Any such Supplemental lndenture 
may also contain one or more of the purposes 
specified in Section 801, and in that event, the 
consent of the Trustee required by this Section 
shall be applicableonly to those provisions of such 
Supplemental lndenture as shall contain one or 
more of the purposes set forth in subsection (A) of 
this Section. 

Section 803 - Supolemental Indentures - - - 
Effective With Consent of Bondholders. At any 
time or from time to time, a Supplemental 
lndenture may be adopted subject to consent by 
Bondholders in accordance withand subjectto the 
provisions of Article IX, which Supplemental 
Indenture, upon the filing with the Trustee of a 
copy thereof certified by an Authorized Officer and 
upon compliance with the provisions of Article IX, 
shall become fully effective in accordance with its 
terms as provided in said Article. 

Section 804 -General Provisions. (A) This 
Indenture shall not be modified or amended in any 
respect except as provided in and in accordance 
with and subject to the provisions of this Article 
and Article IX. Nothing in this Article or Article IX 
contained shall affect or limit the right or obligation 
of the Corporation to adopt, make, do, execute, 
acknowledge or deliver any resolution, act or other 
instrument pursuant to the provisions of Section 
704 or the right or obligation of the Corporation to 
execute and deliver to any Fiduciary any 
instrument which elsewhere in this lndenture it is 
provided shall be delivered to said Fiduciary. 
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(B) Any Supplemental lndenture 
referred to and permitted or authorized by Sections 
801 and 802 may be adopted by the Corporation 
without the consent of any of the Bondholders, but 
shall become effective only on the conditions, to 
the extent and at the time provided in said 
Sections, respectively. The copy of every 
Supplemental lndenture filed with theTrustee shall 
be accompanied by a Counsel's Opinion stating 
that such Supplemental lndenture has been duly 
and lawfully adopted in accordance with the 
provisions of this lndenture, is authorized or 
permitted by this lndenture, and is valid and 
binding upon the Corporation and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms (subject, as to 
enforcement of remedies, to applicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, 
moratorium, or other laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally from time to time in effect). 

(C) The Trustee is hereby authorized 
to accept the delivery of a certified copy of any 
Supplemental lndenture referred to permitted or 
authorized by Sections 801. 802 or 803 and to 
makeall furtheragreements and stipulations which 
may be therein contained, and the Trustee, in 
taking such action, shall be fully protected in 
relying on an opinion of counsel (which may be a 
Counsel's Opinion) that such Supplemental 
lndenture is authorized or permitted by the 
provisions of this lndenture. 

(D) No Supplemental lndenture shall 
change or modify any of the rights or obligations of 
any Fiduciary without its written assent thereto. 

ARTICLE IX 
AMENDMENTS 

Section 901 - Mailing of Notice of -- 
Amendment. Any provision in this Article for the 
mailing of a notice or other paper to Bondholders 
shall be fully complied with if it is mailed postage 
prepaid only (i) to each registered owner of Bonds 
then Outstanding at such registered owner's 
address, if any, appearing upon the registry books 
of the Corporation, (ii) to each holder of any 
coupon Bond who shall have filed with the Trustee 
within two years preceding such mailing an 
address for notices, and (iii) to the Trustee. 

Section 902 - Powers of Amendment. Any 
modification or amendment of this Indenture or of 

the rights andobligationsofthe Corporation andof 
the holders of the Bonds and coupons (if any) 
hereunder, in any particular, may be made by a 
Supplemental Indenture, with the written consent 
given as provided in Section 903, (i) of the holders 
of at least two-thirds in principal amount of the 
Bonds of the highest Class Outstanding at the time 
such consent is given, (ii) in case less than all of 
the several Series or Classes of Bonds then 
Outstanding are affected by the modification or 
amendment, of the holders of at least two-thirds in 
principal amount of the Bonds of each Series or 
Class so affected and Outstanding at the time 
such consent is given, and (iii) in case the 
modification or amendment changes the terms of 
any Sinking Fund Payment, of the holders of at 
leasttwo-thirds in principal amountof the Bonds of 
the particular Series. Class, and maturity entitled 
to such Sinking Fund Payment andoutstanding at 
the time such consent is given; except that if such 
modification or amendment will, by its terms, not 
take effect so long as any Bonds of any specified 
like Series, Class, and maturity remain 
Outstanding, the consent of the holders of such 
Bonds shall not be required and such Bonds shall 
not be deemed to be Outstanding for the purpose 
of any calculation of Outstanding Bonds underthis 
Section. No such modificationor amendmentshall 
permit a change in the terms of redemption or 
maturity of the principal of any Outstanding Bond 
or of any installment of interest thereon or a 
reduction in the principal amount or the 
Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of interest 
thereon without the consent of the holder of such 
Bond, or shall reduce the percentages or 
otherwise affect the classes of Bonds the consent 
of the holders of which is required to effect any 
such modification or amendment, or shall change 
or modify any of the rights or obligations of any 
Fiduciary without its written assent thereto. For 
the purposes of this Section, a Series or Class 
shall be deemed to be affected by a modification 
or amendment of this lndenture if the same 
adversely affects or diminishes the rights of the 
holders of Bonds of such Series or Class. In 
determining whether in accordance with the 
foregoing powers of amendment Bonds of any 
particular Series, Class, or maturity would be 
affected by any modification or amendment hereof 
the Trustee shall request a Counsel's Opinion, on 
which it shall rely, and any such Counsel'sOpinion 
shall be binding and conclusive on the Corporation 
and all holders of Bonds. 
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Section 903 - Consent of Bondholders. 
(A) The Corporation may at any time adopt a 
Supplemental lndenture making a modification or 
amendment permitted by the provisions of Section 
902, to take effect when and as provided in this 
Section. A copy of such Supplemental lndenture 
(or brief summary thereof or reference thereto), 
together with a request to Bondholders for their 
consent thereto, shall be mailed by the 
Corporation to Bondholders. Such Supplemental 
lndenture shall not be effective unless and until 
there shall have been filed with theTrustee (a) the 
written consents of holders of the percentages of 
Outstanding Bonds specified in Section 902 and 
(b) a Counsel's Opinion stating that such 
Supplemental lndenture has been duly and 
lawfully adopted and filed by the Corporation in 
accordance with the provisions of this lndenture, is 
authorized or permitted hereby and is valid and 
binding upon the Corporation and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms, and (ii) a notice shall 
have been mailed as hereinafter provided in this 
Section. 

(B) The consent of a Bondholder to 
any modification or amendment shall be effective 
only if accompanied by proof of the holding, at the 
date of such consent, of the Bonds with respect to 
which such consent is given, which proof shall be 
such as is permitted by Section 11 14. A certificate 
or certificates by the Trustee filed with the Trustee 
that it has examined such proof and that such 
proof is sufficient in accordance with Section 11 14 
shall be conclusive that the consents have been 
given by the holders of the Bonds described in 
such certificate or certificates of the Trustee. Any 
such consent shall be binding upon the holder of 
the Bonds giving such consent and upon any 
subsequent holder of such Bonds and of any 
Bonds issued in exchange therefor (regardless of 
whether such subsequent holder thereof has 
notice thereof) unless such consent is revoked in 
writing by the holder of such Bonds giving such 
consent or a subsequent holder thereof by filing 
with the Trustee, prior to the time when the written 
statement of theTrustee hereinafter provided for in 
this Section is filed, such revocation and, if such 
Bonds are transferable by delivery, proof that such 
Bonds are held by the signer of such revocation in 
the manner permitted by Section 11 14. The fact 
that a consent has not been revoked may likewise 
be proved by a certificate of the Trustee filed with 
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the Trustee to the effect that no revocation thereof 
is on file with the Trustee. 

(C) Atany timeafterthe holdersof the 
required percentages of Bonds shall have filed 
their consents to the Supplemental Indenture, the 
Trustee shall make and file with the Corporation 
and the Trustee a written statement that the 
holders of such required percentages of Bonds 
have filed such consents. Such written statement 
shall be conclusive that such consents have been 
so filed. At any time thereafter notice, stating in 
substance that the Supplemental lndenture 
adopted by the Corporation on a stated date, a 
copy of which is on file with the Trustee, has been 
consented to by the holders of the required 
percentages of Bonds and will be effective as 
provided in this Section, may be given to 
Bondholders by the Corporation by mailing such 
notice to Bondholders at least once not more than 
ninety days after the holders of the required 
percentages of Bonds shall have filed their 
consents to the Supplemental lndenture and the 
written statement of the Trustee hereinabove 
provided for is filed. The Corporation shall file with 
the Trustee proof of the publication of such notice 
and, if the same shall have been mailed to 
Bondholders, of the mailing thereof. A record. 
consisting of the papers required or permitted by 
this Section to be filed with the Trustee, shall be 
proof of the matters therein stated. Such 
Supplemental lndenture making such amendment 
or modification shall be deemed conclusively 
binding upon the Corporation, the Fiduciaries and 
the holders of all Bonds at the expiration of forty 
days after the filing with the Trustee of the proof of 
the first publication of such last mentioned notice, 
except in the event of a final decree of a court of 
competent jurisdiction setting aside such 
Supplemental lndenture in a legal action or 
equitable proceeding for purpose commenced 
within such forty day period: except that any 
Fiduciary and the Corporation during such forty 
day period and any such further period during 
which any such action or proceeding may be 
pending shall be entitled in their absolute 
discretion to take such action, or to refrain from 
taking such action, with respect to such 
Supplemental lndenture as they may deem 
expedient. 

Section 904 - Modifications~Unanimous 
Consent. The terms and provisions of this 



lndenture and the rights and obligations of the 
corporation and of the holders of the Bonds may 
be modified or amended in any respect upon the 
adoption and filing by the Corporation of a 
Supplemental lndenture and the consent of the 
holders of all the Bonds then Outstanding, such 
consent to be given as provided in Section 903 
except that no notice to Bondholders either by 
mailing or publication shall be required; but no 
such modification or amendment shall change or 
modify any of the rights or obligations of any 
Fiduciary unless there shall have been filed with 
theTrustee such Fiduciary's written assent thereto 
in addition to the consent of the Bondholders. 

Section 905 - Exclusion of Bonds. Bonds 
owned or held by or for the account of the 
Corporation shall not be deemed Outstanding for 
the purpose of consent or other action or any 
calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in 
this Article, and the Corporation shall not be 
entitled with respect to such Bonds to give any 
consent or take any other action provided for in 
this Article. At the time of any consent or other 
action taken under this Article, the Corporation 
shall furnish the Trustee a Certificate of an 
Authorized Officer of the Corporation, upon which 
theTrustee may rely, describing all Bonds so to be 
excluded. 

Section 906 - Notat~on on Bonds. Bonds 
authenticated and delivered after the effective date 
of any action taken as in Article Vlll or this Article 
provided may, and, if the Corporation so 
determines, shall bear a notation by endorsement 
or otherwise in form approved by the Corporation 
and theTrustee as to such action, and in that case 
upon demand of the holder of any Bond 
Outstanding at such effective date and 
presentation of his Bond for the purpose at the 
principal office of the Trustee or upon any transfer 
or exchange of any Bond Outstanding at such 
effective date, suitable notation shall be made on 
such Bond or upon any Bond issued upon any 
such transfer or exchange by theTrustee asto any 
such action. If the Corporation or the Trustee shall 
so determine, new Bonds so modified as in the 
opinion of the Trustee and the Corporation to 
conform to such action shall be prepared. 
authenticated and delivered, and upon demand of 
the holder of any Bond then Outstanding shall be 
exchanged, without cost to such Bondholder, for 
Bonds of the same Series and maturity then 

Outstanding, upon surrender of such Bonds with 
all unpaid coupons, if any, appertaining thereto. 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 1001 -Trusteeto Exercise- 
of Statutory Trustee. The Trustee shall be and - 
hereby is vested with all of the rights, powers and 
duties of a trustee permitted to be appointed by the 
Corporation pursuant to Section 14.42.230 of the 
Act. 

Section 1002 I Events of Default. Each of -- 
the following events is hereby declared an "Event 
of Default", that is to say if: 

(1) the Corporation shall 
default in the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of any Bond of 
the highest Class Outstanding when and 
asthe same shall become due, whether at 
maturity or upon call for redemption or 
otherwise; 

(2) payment  o f  any 
installment of interest on any of the Bonds 
of the highest Class Outstanding shall not 
be made when the same shall become 
due; 

(3) the Corporation shall fail 
or refuse to comply with the provisions of 
this lndenture, or shall default in the 
performance or 0bse~ance of any of the 
covenants, agreements or conditions on 
its part contained herein or in any 
Supplemental lndenture or the Bonds, and 
such failure, refusal or default shall 
continue for a period of forty-five days 
after written notice thereof by the Trustee 
or the holders of not less than twenty-five 
per centum (25%) in principal amount of 
the Bonds of the highest Class 
Outstanding; 

(4) the Corporation shall 
commence a voluntary case or other 
proceeding seeking liquidation, 
reorganization or other relief with respect 
to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency or other similar law now or 
hereafter in effect or seeking the 
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appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
liquidator, custodian or other similar 
official of it or any substantial part of its 
property, or shall consent to any such 
relief or to the appointment of or taking 
possession by any such official in an 
involuntary case or other proceeding 
commenced against it, or shall make a 
general assignment for the benefit of 
creditors, or shall fail generally to pay its 
debts as they become due, or shall take 
any corporate action to authorize any of 
the foregoing; 

(5) an involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall be commenced 
against the Corporation seeking 
liquidation, reorganization or other relief 
with respect to itself or its debts under any 
bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law 
now or hereafter in effect or seeking the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver. 
liquidator, custodian or other similar 
official of it or any substantial part of its 
properly, and such involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall remain 
undismissed or unstayed for a period of 
60 days; or an order for relief shall be 
entered against the Corporation under the 
Federal bankruptcy laws as now or 
hereafter in effect; 

(6) any event of default shall 
have occurred and remain uncured under 
any Parity Obligation Instrument if there 
shall then be issued and outstanding 
thereunder Parity Obligations and if such 
Parity Obligations shall be of a Class at 
least equal to the highest Class of any 
Outstanding Bonds; and 

(7) any event designated an 
Event of Default by a Supplemental 
Indenture shall have occurred and remain 
uncured. 

The Trustee shall be deemed to have 
actual knowledge of an Event of Default described 
in (4) through (7) above only upon receipt by a 
Corporate Trust Officer of the Trustee of a written 
notice thereof. 
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Section 1003 Remedies. (A) Upon the -- 
happening and continuance of any Event of 
Default specified in paragraph (1). (2) or (3) of 
Section 1002 as to which the Trustee has 
knowledge, the Trustee shall proceed, or upon the 
happening and continuance of any Event of 
Default specified in paragraph (4), (5 ) ,  (6) or (7) of 
Section 1002 as to which the Trustee has 
knowledge, the Trustee may proceed, and upon 
the written request of the holders of not less than 
twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal amount 
of the Outstanding Bonds of the highest Class. 
shall proceed, in its own name, subject to the 
provisions of Section 11 03, to protect and enforce 
its rightsand the rights of the Bondholders by such 
of the following remedies as the Trustee, being 
advised by counsel, shall deem most effectual to 
protect and enforce such rights: 

(1) by mandamus or other 
suit, action or proceeding at law or in 
equity, to enforce all of the Bondholders' 
rights, including the right of theTrustee on 
behalf of the Bondholders to receive and 
collect all Pledged Receipts and to require 
the Corporation to carry out any other 
covenant or agreement with Bondholders 
and to perform its duties under the Act; 

(2) by bringing suit upon the 
Bonds; 

(3) by action or suit in equity, 
to require the Corporation to account as if 
it were the trustee of an express trust for 
the owners of the Bonds and then take 
such action with respect to the Pledged 
Loans and related documents as the 
Trustee shall deem necessary or 
appropriate and in the best interest of the 
Bondholders, subject to the terms of the 
Pledged Loans and related documents, 
including the sale of part or all of the 
Pledged Loans. 

(4) by action or suit in equity. 
enjoin any acts or things which may be 
unlawful or in violation of the rights of the 
holders of the Bonds; 

(5) by declaring all Bonds 
due and payable, and if all defaults shall 
be made good, then, with the written 



consent of the holders of not less than 
twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal 
amount of the Outstanding Bonds of the 
highest Class Outstanding, by annulling 
such declaration and its consequences; or 

(6) by pursuing any rights or 
privileges it may have with respect to 
security for the Bonds under any Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

(B) In the enforcement of any rights 
and remedies under this indenture, the Trustee 
shall be entitled to sue for, enforce payment on 
and receive any and all amounts then or during 
any default becoming, and at any time remaining, 
due from thecorporation for principal, Redemption 
Price. Program Expenses, interest or otherwise, 
under any provision of this indenture or a 
Supplemental Indenture or of the Bonds, and 
unpaid, with interest on overdue payments at the 
rate or rates of interest specified in such Bonds, 
together with any and all costs and expenses of 
collection and of all proceedings hereunder and 
under such Bonds, without prejudice to any other 
right or remedy of the Trustee or of the 
Bondholders, and to recover and enforce a 
judgment or decree against the Corporation for 
any portion of such amounts remaining unpaid. 
with interest, costs and expenses, and to collect 
from any moneys available for such purpose, in 
any manner provided by law, the moneys 
adjudged or decreed to be payable. 

Section 1004 - Priority of Payments After -- 
Default. (A) In the event that upon the happening 
and continuance of any Event of Default, the funds 
held by the Trustee and Paying Agents shall be 
insufficient for the payment of principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest then due 
on the Bonds, such funds and any other moneys 
received or collected by the Trustee acting 
pursuant to the Act and this Article or with respect 
to Parity Obligations or Parity Obligation 
Instruments, after making provision for the 
paymentof any expenses necessaryin theopinion 
of the Trustee to protect the interests of the 
holders of the Bonds and for the payment of the 
charges and expenses and liabilities incurred and 
advances made by the Trustee or any Paying 
Agents in the performance of their respective 
duties under this lndenture, shall be applied as 
follows: 

(1) Unless the principal of all 
of the Bonds shall have come or have 
been declared due and payable, the 
Trustee shall make the following 
payments within the highest Class of 
Bondsoutstanding and, only aftermaking 
all such payments within such Class, shall 
then make such payments within the next 
lower Class and, thereafter, shall make 
such payments within each succeeding 
lower Class: 

FIRST: To the payment to person 
entitled thereto of all installments of 
interest then due in the order of the 
maturity of such installments, and, if the 
amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full any installment, then to the 
payment thereof ratably, according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the 
persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference except with 
respect to Classes as described above; 
and 

SECOND: To the payment to the 
persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 
principal or Redemption Price of any 
Bonds which shall have become due, 
whether at maturity or by call for 
redemption, in the order of their due dates 
and, if the amounts available shall not be 
sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds due 
on any date, then to the payment thereof 
ratably, according to the amounts of 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, due 
on such date, to the persons entitled 
thereto, without any discrimination or 
preference except with respect to Classes 
as described above. 

(2) If the principal of all of the 
Bonds shall have become or have been 
declared due and payable, the Trustee 
shall make the following payments within 
the highest Class of Bonds Outstanding 
and, only after making all such payments, 
shall then make such payments within the 
next lower Class and, thereafter, shall 
make such payments within each 
succeeding lower Class: to the payment of 
the principal and interest then due and 
unpaid upon the Bonds of a Class without 
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preference or priority of principal over 
interest or of interest over principal, or of 
any installment of interest over any other 
installment of interest, or of any Bond of 
such Class over any other Bond of such 
Class, ratably, according to the amounts 
due respectively for principal and interest, 
to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or preference except as to 
any difference in the respective rates of 
interest specified in the Bonds and 
coupons (if any). 

(B) Whenever moneys are to be 
applied by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions 
of this Section, such moneys shall be applied by 
the Trustee at such times, and from time to time, 
as the Trustee in its sole discretion shall 
determine, having due regard to the amount of 
such moneys available for application and the 
likelihood of additional money becoming available 
for such application in the future; the deposit of 
such moneys with the Paying Agents, or otherwise 
setting aside such moneys in trust for the proper 
purpose, shall constitute proper application by the 
Trustee; and the Trustee shall incur no liability 
whatsoever to the Corporation, to any Bondholder 
or to any other person for any delay in applying 
any such moneys, so long as the Trustee acts with 
reasonable diligence, having due regard for the 
circumstances, and ultimately applies the same in 
accordance with such provisions of this lndenture 
as may be applicable at the time of application by 
the Trustee. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise 
such d scretlon in app ylng s ~ c h  moneys. ~t shall ftx 
rhe dale (whlch snall oe an Interest Payment Dare 
unless the Trustee shall deem another date more 
suitable) upon which such application is to be 
made and upon such date interest on the amounts 
of principal to be paid on such date shall cease to 
accrue. The Trustee shall give such notice as it 
may deem appropriate for the fixing of any such 
date. The Trustee shall not be required to make 
payment to the holderof any unpaid coupon or any 
Bond unless such coupon or Bond shall be 
presented to the Trustee for appropriate 
endorsement or cancellation. 

Section 1005 - Termination of - - - 
Proceedinqs. In case of any proceedings taken by 
the Trustee on account of any Event of Default 
shall have been discontinued or abandoned for 
any reason, then in every such case the 

Corporation, the Trustee and the Bondholders 
shall be restored to their former positions and 
rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, 
remedies, powers and duties of the Trustee shall 
continue as though no such proceeding had been 
taken. 

Section 1006 Bondholders' Direction of -- 
Proceedinqs. Anything in this Indenture to the 
contraly notwithstanding, the holders of the 
majority in principal amount of the Bonds of the 
highestclassthen Outstanding shall havethe right 
by an instrument or concurrent instruments in 
writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to 
direct the method of conducting all remedial 
proceedings to be taken by the Trustee hereunder, 
provided that such direction shall not be otherwise 
than in accordance with law or the provisions of 
this indenture, and that the Trustee shall have the 
right to decline to follow any such direction which 
in the opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly 
prejudicial to Bondholders not parties to such 
direction or would adversely affect the Trustee. 
The Trustee may rely on an Opinion of Counsel 
that such direction would adversely affect 
Bondholders. 

Section 1007 Limitation on Rights of -- 
Bondholders.. (A) No holder of any Bond shall 
have any right to institute any suit, action, 
mandamus or other proceeding in equity or at law 
hereunder, or for the protection or enforcement of 
any right under this Indenture or any right under 
law unless such holder shall have given to the 
Trustee written notice of the Event of Default or 
breach of duty on account of which such suit, 
action or proceeding is to be taken, and unless the 
holders of not less than twenty-five per centum 
(25%) in principal amount of the Bonds of the 
highest Class then Outstanding shall have made 
written request of the Trustee after the right to 
exercise such powers or right of action, as the 
case may be, shall have occurred, and shall have 
afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity 
either to proceed to exercise the powers herein 
granted or granted under the law or to institute 
such action, suit or proceeding in its name and 
unless, also, there shall have been offered to the 
Trustee reasonable security and indemnity against 
the costs, expenses and liabilities to be insured 
therein or thereby, and the Trustee shall have 
refused or neglected to comply with such request 
within a reasonable time; and such notification, 
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request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared 
in every such case, at the option of the Trustee, to 
be conditions precedent to the execution of the 
powers under this lndenture or for any other 
remedy hereunder or under law. It is understood 
and intended that no one or more holders of the 
Bonds hereby secured shall have any right in any 
manner whatever by their action to affect, disturb 
or prejudice the security of this lndenture, or to 
enforce any right hereunder or under law with 
respect to the Bonds of this lndenture, except in 
the manner herein provided, and that all 
proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, 
had and maintained in the manner herein provided 
and forthe benefit of all holders of the Outstanding 
Bonds. Nothing in this Article contained shall 
affect or impair the right of any Bondholder to 
enforce the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on such 
Bondholder's Bonds, or the obligation of the 
Corporation to pay the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on each Bond issued 
hereunder to the holder thereof at the time and 
place in said Bond expressed. 

(8) Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Section, or any other 
provision of this lndenture, each holder of any 
Bond by such holder's acceptance thereof shall be 
deemed to have agreed that any court in its 
discretion may require, in any suit for the 
enforcement of any right or remedy under this 
lndentureorany Supplemental Indenture, or inany 
suit against the Trustee for any action taken or 
omitted by it as Trustee, the filing by any party 
litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the 
reasonable costs of such suit, and that such court 
may in its discretion assess reasonable costs. 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, against any 
party litigant in any such suit, having due regard to 
the merits and good faith of the claims ordefenses 
made by such party litigant; but the provisions of 
this paragraph shall not apply to any suit instituted 
by the Trustee, to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder, or group of Bondholders, holding at 
least twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal 
amount of the Bonds of the highest Class 
Outstanding, or to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder for the enforcement of the payment of 
the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on 
any Bond on or after the respective due date 
thereof expressed in such Bond. 

Section 1008 r Possession of Bonds by -- 
Trustee Not Reauired. All rights of action under 
this lndenture or under any of the Bonds, 
enforceable by the Trustee, may be enforced by it 
without the possession of any of the Bonds or the 
production thereof on the trial or other proceeding 
relative thereto, and any such suit, action or 
proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be 
brought in its name for the benefit of all the holders 
of such Bonds, subject to the provisions of this 
Indenture. 

Section 1009 1 Remedies Not Exclusive. -- 
No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Trustee or to the holders of the Bonds is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or 
remedies, and each and every such remedy shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other 
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 1010 - No Waiver of Default. No - - - - - - - 
delay or omission of theTrustee orof any holder of 
the Bonds to exercise any right or power accruing 
upon any default shall impair any such right or 
power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any 
such default or an acquiescence therein; and 
every power and remedy given by this lndenture to 
the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds, 
respectively, may be exercised from time to time 
and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

Section 101 1 : Notice Bondholders. -- - 
TheTrustee shall give to the Bondholders notice of 
each Event of ~ e f a u l t  hereunder known to the 
Trustee within ninety days after knowledge of the 
occurrence thereof, unless such Event of Default 
shall have been remedied or cured before the 
giving of such notice. Each such notice shall be 
given by the Trustee by mailing written notice 
thereof to all registered holders of Bonds, as the 
names and addresses of such holders appear 
upon the books for registration and transfer of 
Bonds as kept by the Trustee purpose and to such 
other persons as is required by law. 

ARTICLE XI 
CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES 

Section 1101 - Trustee. US. Bank -- 
National Association, a trust comDanv or bank 
having the powers of a trust company doing 
business and having a corporate trust office in 
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Seattle, Washington, is hereby appointed as 
Trustee. The Trustee shall signify its acceptance 
of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by 
this lndenture by executing the certificate of 
authentication endorsed upon the Bonds, and, by 
executing such certificate upon any Bond, the 
Trustee shall be deemed to have accepted such 
duties and obligations not only with respect to the 
Bond so authenticated, but with respect to all the 
Bonds thereafter to be issued; but only, however, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Indenture. 

Section 1102 - Appointment 
Acceptance of Duties of ~ i v i n a  Aqents. (A) The 
Corporation shall appoint one or more Paying 
Agents for the Bonds of any Series in the 
Supplemental lndentureauthorizingsuch Bondsor 
shall appoint such Paying Agent or Paying Agents 
by resolution of the Corporation adopted prior to 
the authentication and delivery of such Bonds, and 
may at any time or from time to time appoint one 
or more other Paying Agents in the manner and 
subject to the conditions set forth in Section 11 13 
for the appointment of a successor Paying Agent. 

(8) Each Paying Agent shall signify its 
acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed 
upon it by this lndenture by written instrument of 
acceptance executed and delivered to the 
Corporation and the Trustee. 

(C) The principal or corporate trust 
offices of the Paying Agents are hereby 
designated as the respective agencies of the 
Corporation for the payment of the interest on and 
principal or Redemption Price of the Bonds. 

Section 1103 - Responsibility of -- 
Fiduciaries. (A) The recitais of fact herein and in 
the Bonds contained shall be taken as the 
statements of the Corporation and no Fiduciary 
assumes any responsibility for the correctness of 
the same. No Fiduciary makes any 
representations as to the validity or sufficiency of 
this lndenture or of any Bonds or coupons issued 
thereunder or in respect of the securityafforded by 
this lndenture ortheTrust Estate, and no Fiduciary 
shall incur any responsibility in respect thereof. 
The Trustee shall, however, be responsible for its 
representation contained in its certificate on the 
Bonds. No Fiduciary shall be under any 
responsibility or duty with respect to any other 

Fiduciary. No Fiduciary shall be under any 
obligation or duty to perform any act which would 
involve it in expense or liability or to institute or 
defend any suit in respect hereof, or to advance 
any of its own moneys, unless indemnified to its 
satisfaction. No Fiduciary shall be liable in 
connection with the performance of its duties 
hereunder except for its own negligence or willful 
misconduct. Neither the Trustee nor any Paying 
Agent shall be underany responsibilityor dutywith 
respect to the application of any moneys paid to 
any one of the others or the use or application by 
the Cor~oration of the Bonds or the ~roceeds 
thereof. 

(B) Except during the continuance of 
an Event of Default, the Trustee undertakes to 
perform such duties and only such duties as are 
specifically set forth in this lndenture, and no 
implied covenants or obligations shall be read into 
this lndenture against the Trustee, and, in the 
absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may 
conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements 
and the correctness of the opinion expressed 
therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to 
theTrustee and conforming to the requirements of 
this lndenture. 

(C) In case an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall 
exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it 
by this lndenture and use the same degree of care 
and skill in their exercise as a prudent person 
would exercise or use under the circumstances in 
the conduct of his own affairs. 

(D) No provision of this lndenture 
shall be construed to relieve the Trustee from 
liability for its own negligent action, its own 
negligent failure to act, or its own willful 
misconduct, except that (1) the Trustee shall not 
be liable for any error of judgment made in good 
failh by a responsible officer, unless i t  shall be 
proved that the Trustee was negligent in 
ascertaining the pertinent facts, (2) the Trustee 
shall not be liable with respect to any action taken 
or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in 
accordance with the direction of the holders of a 
majority in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Bonds relating to the time, method and place of 
conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or 
power conferred upon the Trustee, under this 
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Indenture, and (3) no provision of this lndenture 
shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own 
funds orothetwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in 
the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall 
have reasonable grounds for believing that 
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity 
against such risk or liability is not reasonably 
assured to it. Except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein, the Trustee shall determine 
whether any conditions or requirements set forth 
herein for any purpose have been met, and such 
determination by the Trustee shall be conclusive. 

(E) Regardless of whether it istherein 
expressly so provided, every provision of this 
Indenture, any Supplemental Indenture. Parity 
Obligation Instrument, Credit Enhancementor any 
related document relating to the conduct or 
affecting the liability of or affording protection to 
the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of 
this Article. 

(F) The Trustee shall be under no 
obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by this lndenture at the request or 
directionof any of the Bondholders pursuanttothis 
Indenture, unless such Bondholders shall have 
offered to the Trustee security or indemnity to its 
satisfaction against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities which might be incurred by it in 
compliance with such request or direction. 

(G) The Trustee shall not be bound to 
make any investigation into the facts or matters 
stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, 
instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, 
direction, consent, order, bond, debenture, coupon 
or other paper or document. 

(H) The Trustee may execute any of 
the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any 
duties hereunder either directly or by or through 
agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be 
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on 
the part of any agent or attorney appointed with 
due care by it hereunder. 

(I) The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility for or liability in connection with 
assuring that all of the procedures or conditions to 
closing set forth in the Purchase Agreement have 
been met on the Closing Date to the parties are 

actually delivered, except its own responsibility to 
receive the proceeds of the sale, deliver the 
Bonds, and deliver and receive other certificates 
and documents expressly required to be delivered 
by it and its counsel. The Trustee may assume 
that parties to the Purchase Agreement have 
waived their rights to receive documents or to 
require the performance of procedures if the 
parties to whom such documents are to be 
delivered or for whom such procedures are to be 
performed do not require delivery or performance 
on or prior to the Closing Date. 

(J) The permissive right of the 
Trustee to do things enumerated in this lndenture 
shall not be construed as a duty. 

(K) In accepting the trusts hereby 
created, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for the 
Bondholders and not in its individual capacity and 
all persons, including, without limitation, the 
Bondholders and the Corporation having any claim 
against the Trustee arising from this lndenture 
shall look only to the funds and accounts held by 
the Trustee or its agent hereunder for payment 
except as otherwise provided herein. Under no 
circumstances shall the Trustee be liable in its 
individual capacityforthe obligations evidenced by 
the Bonds. 

(L) The Trustee shall not be 
responsible for the validity or effectiveness of any 
collateral given to or held by it. The Trustee shall 
not be responsible for the recording or filing of any 
document relating to this lndenture or of financing 
statements (or continuation statements in 
connection therewith) or of any supplemental 
instruments or documents or further assurance as 
may be required by law in order to perfect the 
security interests in any collateral given to or held 
by it. 

(M) If, as a result of the occurrence of 
an Eventof Default, the Corporation ortheTrustee 
employs attorneys or incurs other fees and 
expenses for the collection of payments due 
hereunder or for the enforcement of performance 
or 0bse~ance of any obligation or agreement on 
the part of the Corporation, the Corporation will, on 
demand, reimburse theTrusteeforthe reasonable 
fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable 
fees and expenses so incurred; provided, 
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however, that amounts in the Trust Estate shall 
first be applied as provided in Section 1004. 

(N) In no event shall the Trustee be 
responsible for and it makes no representations or 
warranty, express or implied, with respect to, 
compliance with the Act, the making of loans, the 
servicing of loans, or the sufficiency of the 
promissory notes or other instruments or 
documentation related thereto. 

(0) The Trustee's rights to 
indemnification and payment of itsfees, expenses, 
losses and liabilities shall survive its resignation or 
removal and final payment of the Bonds. 

(P) The Trustee makes no 
representation as to the correctness or 
completeness of any information contained in any 
offering document or other offering material 
pertaining to, and prepared in furtherance of the 
sale of, any Series of Bonds. 

Section 1104 I Evidence on Which -- 
Fiduciaries u r n .  Each Fiduciary may rely and 
shall be protected in acting upon any notice, 
resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, 
report, opinion, bond or other paper or document 
believed by it to be genuine, and to have been 
signed or presented by the proper party or parties. 
Each Fiduciary may consult with counsel, who may 
or may not be of counsel to the Corporation, and 
the opinion of such shall be full and complete 
authorization and protection in respect of any 
action taken or suffered or omitted by it hereunder 
in good faith and in reliance thereon. Whenever 
any Fiduciary shall deem it necessary or desirable 
that a matter be proved or established prior to 
taking or suffering or omitting any action 
hereunder, including payment of moneys out of 
any Fund or Account, such matter (unless other 
evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically 
prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively 
proved and established by a Certificate signed by 
an AuthorizedOfficer, andsuch Certificateshall be 
full warrant for any action taken or suffered in good 
faith under the provisions of this lndenture upon 
the faith thereof, but in its discretion the Fiduciary 
may in lieu thereof accept other evidence of such 
fact or matter or may require such further or 
additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable. 
Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, 
any request, order, notice or other direction 

required or permitted to be furnished pursuant to 
any provision hereof by the Corporation to any 
Fiduciaryshall be sufficient executed if executed in 
the name of the Corporation by an Authorized 
Officer. 

Section 1105 I Compensation, The -- 
Corporation shall pav to the Trustee and to each 
pa;ing Agent from time to time reasonable 
compensation for all services rendered under this 
Indenture, and also all reasonable fees, expenses, 
charges, counsel fees and other disbursements, 
including those of their attorneys, agents and 
employees, incurred in and about the performance 
of their powers and duties under this lndenture. 
and theTrustee and each Paying Agent shall have 
a lien therefor on any and all funds at any time 
held by it under this lndenture. The Corporation 
further agrees to indemnify and save the Trustee 
and each Paying Agent harmless against any 
liabilities, losses, expenses, and advances which 
it may incur in the exercise and performance of its 
powersandduties hereunder, which arenot due to 
its negligence or willful misconduct. 

Section 1106 Permitted Acts and -- 
Functions. The Trustee and any Paying Agent 
may become the owner of any Bonds and 
coupons, with the same rights it should have if it 
were not such Trustee or Paying Agent. The 
Trustee and any Paying Agent may act as 
Depositary for, and permit any of its officers or 
directors to act as a member of, or in any other 
capacity with respect to, any committee formed to 
protect the rights of Bondholders or to effect or aid 
in any reorganization growing out of the 
enforcement of the Bonds or this lndenture, 
regardless of whether any such committee shall 
represent the holders of a majority in principal 
amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

Section 1107 1 Resignation of Trustee. -- 
The Trustee may at any time resign and be 
discharged of the duties and obligationscreated by 
this lndenture by giving not less than ninety days 
written notice to the Corporation and to the 
registered owners of the Bonds, specifying the 
date when such resignation shall take effect. If 
any Bonds are Outstanding in bearer form, the 
Trustee shall also publish such notice once in an 
Authorized Newspaper. Such resignation shall 
take effect upon the day specified in such notice 
unless previously a successor shall have been 
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appointed, as provided in Section 1109, in which 
event such resignation shall take effect 
immediately on the appointment of such 
successor. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, 
no registration of the Trustee shall be effective 
until a successor has been appointed. 

Section 1108: Removal of Trustee. The -- 
Trustee shall be removed by the Corporation if at 
any time so requested by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the 
Trustee and the Corporation, and signed by the 
holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding or their attorneys-in-fact 
duly authorized, excluding any Bonds held by or 
for the account of the Corporation. The 
Corporation may remove the Trustee at any time, 
except during the existence of an Event of Default, 
for such cause as shall be determined in the sole 
discretion of the Corporation by filing with the 
Trustee an instrument signed by an Authorized 
Officer of the Corporation. 

Section 11 09 - A~pointment of Successor 
Trustee. (A) In case at any time the Trustee shall 
resign or shall be removed or shall become 
incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a 
bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or 
conservator of the Trustee, or of its property, shall 
be appointed, or if any public officer shall take 
charge or control of the Trustee, or of its property 
or affairs, the Corporation covenants and agrees 
that it will thereupon appoint a successor Trustee. 
The Corporation shall provide written notice of 
such appointment to the registered owners of the 
Bonds and, if any Bonds are Outstanding in bearer 
form, shall also publish notice of such appointment 
in an Authorized Newspaper, such notice to be 
given and publication to be made within twenty 
days after such appointment. 

(8) If in a proper case no appointment 
of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to 
the foregoing provisions of this Section within forty- 
five days after the Trustee shall have given to the 
Corporation written notice, as provided in Section 
1107, or afteravacancy in the office of the Trustee 
shall have occurred by reason of its inability to act, 
the Trustee orthe holder of any Bond may apply to 
any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a 
successor Trustee. Said court may thereupon, 
after such notice, if any, as such court may deem 
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Trustee. 

(C) Any Trustee appointed under the 
provisions of this Section in succession to the 
Trustee shall be a trust company or bank in good 
standing having the powers of a trust company 
within or outside the State and subject to 
examination by federal or state authority, having a 
capital and surplus aggregating at least Seventy- 
Five Million Dollars ($75,000.000) and acceptable 
to each Credit Enhancement if there be such a 
trust company or bank willing and able to accept 
the office on reasonable and customary terms and 
authorized by lawto perform all theduties imposed 
upon it by this lndenture. 

Section 11 10 : Transfer of Rights and -- - 
Properiv to Successor T-. Any successor 
Trustee appointed under this lndenture, shall 
execute, acknowledge and deliver to its 
predecessor Trustee, and also to the Corporation, 
an instrument accepting such appointment, and 
thereupon such successor Trustee, without any 
furtheract, deedorconveyance, shall becomefully 
vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights, 
powers, duties and obligations of such 
predecessor Trustee, with like effect as if originally 
named as Trustee; but the Trustee ceasing to act 
shall nevertheless, on the request of the 
Corporation, or of the successorTrustee, execute. 
acknowledge and deliver such instruments of 
conveyance and further assurance and do such 
other things as may reasonable be required for 
more fully and certainly vesting and confirming in 
such successor Trustee all the right, title and 
interest of the predecessor Trustee in and to any 
property held by it under this lndenture, and shall 
pay over, assign and deliver to the successor 
Trustee any money or other property subjectto the 
trusts and conditions herein set forth. Should any 
deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the 
Corporation be required by such successor 
Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in and 
confirming to such successor Trustee any such 
estates, rights, powers and duties, any and all 
such deeds,. conveyances and instruments in 
writing shall, on request, and so far as may be 
authorized by law, be executed, acknowledged 
and delivered by the Corporation. Any such 
successorTrustee shall promptly notify the Paying 
Agents of its appointment as Trustee. The 



Corporation shall pay the expenses of effecting a 
transfer under this Section. 

Section 11 11 - Merqer or Consolidation. -- 
Any company into which any Fiduciary may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be 
consolidated or any company resulting from any 
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it 
shall be a party or any company to which any 
Fiduciary may sell ortransfer all or substantially all 
of its corporate trust business, provided such 
company shall be a trust company or bank which 
is qualified to be a successor to such Fiduciary 
under Section 11 10 or Section 11 13 and shall be 
authorized by lawto perform all theduties imposed 
upon it by this lndenture, shall be the successor to 
such Fiduciary without the execution or filing of 
any paper or the performance of any further act, 
anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding. 

Section 11 12 -Ado~tionofAuthentication. 
In case any of the Bonds contemplated to be 
issued under this lndenture shall have been 
authenticated but not delivered, any successor 
Trustee may adopt the certificate of authentication 
of any predecessorTrusteesoauthenticatingsuch 
Bonds and deliver such Bonds so authenticated, 
and in case any of the said Bonds shall not have 
been authenticated, any successor Trustee may 
authenticate such Bonds in the name of the 
successor Trustee, and in all such cases such 
certificate shall have the full force which it is 
anywhere in said Bonds or in this lndenture 
provided that the certificate of the Trustee shall 
have. 

Section 11 13 : Resiqnation Removal of -- 
the Pavina Aaents and Appointment of - 
Successors. (A) Any Paying Agent may at any 
time resign and be discharged of the duties and 
obligations created by this lndenture by giving at 
least sixty days' written notice to the Corporation 
and Trustee. Any Paying Agent may be removed 
at any time by an instrument filed with such Paying 
Agent and the Trustee and signed by an 
Authorized Officer of the Corporation. Any 
successor Paying Agent shall be appointed by the 
Corporation and shall be a trust company or bank 
having the powers of a trust company, having a 
capital and surplus aggregating at lease Three 
Million Dollars ($3,000.000), and willing and able 
to accept the office of Paying Agent on reasonable 
and customary terms and authorized by law to 

perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 
Indenture. 

(B) In the event of the resignation or 
removal of any Paying Agent, such Paying Agency 
shall pay over, assign and deliver any moneys 
held by it to its successor, or if there be no 
successor then appointed, to the Trustee until 
such successor be appointed. 

Section 11 14 1 Evidence of Siqnatures of -- 
Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds. (A) Any 
request, consent or other instrument which this 
lndenture may require or permit to be signed and 
executed by the Bondholders may be in one or 
more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be 
signed or executed by such Bondholders in person 
or by their attorneys appointed in writing. Proof of 
(i) the execution of any such instrument, or of an 
instrument appointing any such attorney, or (ii) the 
holding by any person of the Bonds or coupons 
appertaining thereto shall be sufficient for any 
purpose of this lndenture (except as otherwise 
herein expressly provided) if made in the following 
manner, but the Trustee may nevertheless in its 
discretion require further or other proof in cases 
where it deems the same desirable: 

(1) The fact and date of the 
execution by any Bondholder or his 
attorney of such instrument may be 
proved by the certificate, which need not 
be acknowledged or verified, of an officer 
of a bank or trust company satisfactory to 
the Trustee or of any notary public or 
other officer authorized to take 
acknowledgments of deeds to be 
recorded in the state in which she 
purports to act, that the person signing 
such request or other instrument 
acknowledged to him the execution 
thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of 
such execution, duly sworn to before such 
notary public or other officer. The 
authority of the person or persons 
executing any such instrument on behalf 
of a corporate Bondholder may be 
established without further proof if such 
instrument is signed by a person 
purporting to be the president or a vice 
president of such corporation with a 
corporate seal affixed and attested by a 
person purporting to be its secretary or an 
assistant secretary; 
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(2) The amount of Bonds 
transferable by delivery held by any 
person executing such request or other 
instrument as a Bondholder, and the 
numbers and other identification thereof, 
and the date of his holding such Bonds. 
may be proved by a certificate, which 
need not be acknowledged or verified. 
satisfactory to the Trustee, executed by 
an officer of a trust company, bank, 
financial institution or other depository or 
member of the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, Inc. wherever 
situated, showing that at the date therein 
mentioned such person exhibited to such 
officer or had on deposit with such 
depository the Bonds described in such 
certificate. Continued ownership after the 
date stated in such certificate may be 
proved by the presentation of such 
certificate if the certificate contains a 
statement by such officer that the 
depository held that Bonds therein 
referred to on the date of the certificate 
and that they will not be surrendered 
without the surrender of the certificate to 
the depository, except with the consent of 
the Trustee, and a certificate of the 
Trustee, which need not be acknowledged 
or verified, that such consent has not 
been given. 

(B) Except in the case of Bonds 
transferable by delivery only, the ownership of 
Bonds and the amount, numbers and other 
identification, and date of holding the same shall 
be proved by the registry books. Any request, 
consent or vote of the owner of any Bond shall 
bind all future owners of such Bond in respect of 
anything done or suffered to be done by the 
Corporation or any Fiduciary in accordance 
therewith. 

Section 1115 - Preservation 
lns~ection of Documents. All documents received 
by any Fiduciary under the provisions of this 
lndenture or any ~u~~lementa l lndenture  shall be 
retained in its possession until six (6) years after 
the final payment of principal of the Bonds 
becomes due and payable and shall be subject at 
all reasonable times to the inspection of the 
Corporation, any other Fiduciary and any 
Bondholder and their agents and their 

representatives, any of whom may make copies 
thereof. 

Sectton 11 16:Admtn1slral1onof Ed~calton -- 
Loan Proqram Tne Corporal on agrees tnat the 
Trustee shall have no responsibilitywhatsoeverfor 
monitoring, orany other activity, with respect to the 
Corporation's administration of loan programs or 
the servicing of loans. 

Section 11 17 - Power to Ap~oint  Co- -- 
Trustee. (A) At any time after an Event of Default, 
if necessary to meet the legal requirements of any 
applicable jurisdiction, the Trustee shall have 
power to appoint one or more co-trustees under 
this lndenture, with such powers as may be 
provided in the instrument of appointment, and to 
vest in such person or persons any properly, title, 
right or power deemed necessary or desirable, 
subject to the remaining provisions of this Section. 

(8) Each co-trustee shall, to the 
extent permitted by applicable law, be appointed 
subject to the following terms: 

(i) The Bonds shall be 
authenticated and delivered solely by the 
Trustee, and all rights, powers, duties and 
obligations hereunder in respect of the 
custody of Investment Securities, cash 
and other personal property held by, or 
required to be deposited or pledged with, 
the Trustee hereunder shall be exercised 
solely by the Trustee. 

(ii) The rights, powers duties and 
obligations hereby conferred or imposed 
upon the Trustee in respect of any 
property covered by such appointment 
shall be conferred or imposed upon and 
exercised or performed by the Trustee or 
by the Trustee and co-trustee jointly, as 
shall be provided in the instrument 
appointing such co-trustee, except to the 
extent that, under any law of any 
jurisdiction in which any particular act or 
acts are to be performed, the Trustee 
shall be incompetent or unqualified to 
perform such act or acts, in which event 
such rights, powers, duties and 
obligations shall be exercised by such co- 
trustee. 
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(iii) The Trustee may at any time, 
by an instrument in writing executed by it, 
accept the resignation of or remove any 
co-trustee appointed under this Section. 

(iv) No power given to any co- 
trustee shall be separately exercised 
hereunder by such co-trustee except with 
the consent in writing of the Trustee, 
anything contained in this Section to the 
contrary notwithstanding. 

(C) Should any written instrument 
from thecorporation be required by any co-trustee 
so appointed for more fully confirming to such co- 
trustee such rights, powers, duties and obligations, 
any and all such instruments shall, on request, be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the 
Corporation forthwith. 

(D) The rights, powers and duties of 
thecorporation with respect toany co-trusteeshall 
be the same as its rights, powers and duties with 
respect to the Trustee. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1201 Defeasance. (A) If the -- 
Corporation shall pay or cause to be paid to the 
holdersof the Bonds, the principaland interest and 
Redemption Price, if any, to become due thereon, 
at the times and in the manner stipulated therein 
and in this lndenture, and also shall pay or cause 
to be paid all othersums payable hereunderby the 
Corporation, including any amounts payable to the 
United States, then the pledge of any revenues 
and assets hereby pledged and all other rights 
granted hereby shall, at the election of the 
Corporation (evidenced by a certificate of an 
Authorized Officer filed with the Trustee, signifying 
the intention of the Corporation to discharge all 
such indebtedness and this lndenture and any 
Supplemental Indenture), and notwithstanding that 
any Bonds shall not have been surrendered for 
payment, be discharged and satisfied. In such 
event, the Trustee shall, upon the written request 
of the Corporation, execute and deliver to the 
Corporation all such instruments as may be 
desirable to evidence such discharge and 
satisfaction and the Fiduciaries shall pay over or 
deliver to the Corporation all moneys or securities 
held by them pursuant to this lndenture which are 
not required for the payment or redemption of 
Bonds not theretofore surrendered for such 
payment or redemption. 

(8) If funds shall have been set aside 
and shall be held in trust by Fiduciaries for the 
payment of principal, interest and Redemption 
Price (through deposit by the Corporation of funds 
for such payment or redemption or otherwise) at 
the maturity or upon the date upon which such 
Bonds have been duly called for redemption 
thereof, such Bondsshall be deemed to have been 
paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in subsection (A) of this Section. All 
Outstanding Bonds shall, prior to the maturity or 
redemption date thereof, be deemed to have been 
paid within the meaning and with the effect 
expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (i) in 
case any of said Bonds are to be redeemed on 
any date prior to their maturity, the Corporation 
shall have given to the Trustee in form satisfactory 
to it irrevocable instructions to publish as provided 
in Article VI notice of redemption on said date of 
such Bonds, (ii) there shall have been deposited 
with the Trustee either funds in an amount which 
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shall be sufficient, or lnvestment Securities which 
are not subject to redemption prior to the dates on 
which amounts will be needed to make payments 
on the Bonds defeased and the principal of and 
the interest on which when due will provide 
moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, 
deposited with the Trustee at the same time, shall 
be sufficient in the opinion of an Accountant 
delivered to the Trustee, to pay when due the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, and interest 
due and to become due on said Bonds on any 
date prior to the redemption date or maturity date 
thereof, as the case may be, (iii) in the event said 
Bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption 
within the next succeeding sixty days, the 
Corporation shall have given the Trustee in form 
satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to mail a 
notice to the holders of such Bonds that the 
deposit required by (ii) above has been made with 
the Trustee and that said Bonds are deemed to 
have been paid in accordance with this Section 
and stating such maturity or redemption date upon 
which moneys are to be available for the payment 
of the principal or Redemption Price, if any, of said 
Bonds and (iv) a Counsel's Opinion stating that all 
conditions precedent to the satisfaction and 
discharge of this lndenture have been complied 
with, the defeasance complies with the terms of 
this lndenture, and the defeasance will not 
adversely affect the tax status of the Bonds. 
Neither lnvestment Securities or moneys 
deposited with theTrustee pursuant to this Section 
nor principal or interest payments on any such 
lnvestment Securities shall be withdrawn or used 
for any purpose other than, and shall be held in 
trust for, the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on said 
Bonds; provided that any cash received from such 
principal or interest payments on such lnvestment 
Securities deposited with the Trustee, if not then 
needed for such purpose, shall, to the extent 
practicable, be reinvested in lnvestment Securities 
maturing at times and in amounts sufficient to pay 
when due the principal or Redemption Price, if 
any, and interest to become due on said Bonds on 
and prior to such redemption date or maturity date 
thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned 
from such reinvestments shall be paid over to the 
Corporation, as received by the Trustee, free and 
clear of any trust, lien or pledge. 

(C) If, through the deposit of moneys 
by the Corporation or otherwise, the Fiduciaries 

shall hold, pursuant to this lndenture, moneys 
sufficient to pay the principal and interest to 
maturity on all Outstanding Bonds or to pay, in the 
case of Bonds in respect of which the Corporation 
shall have taken all action necessary to redeem 
prior to maturity, the Redemption Price and 
interest to such redemption date, then at the 
written request of the Corporation all moneys held 
by any Paying Agent shall be paid over to the 
Trustee and, together with other moneys held by it 
hereunder, shall be held by the Trustee for the 
payment or redemption of Outstanding Bonds. 

(D) Anything in this lndenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, any moneys held by a 
Fiduciary in trust for the payment and discharge of 
any of the Bonds which remain unclaimed for one 
year after the date when all of the Bonds have 
become due and payable, either at their stated 
maturity dates or by call for earlier redemption, if 
such moneys were held by the Fiduciary at such 
date, or for one year after the date of deposit of 
such moneys if deposited with the Fiduciary after 
the said date when all of the Bonds became due 
and payable, shall be repaid by the Fiduciary to 
the Corporation, as its absolute property and free 
from trust, and the Fiduciary shall thereupon be 
released and discharged. 

Section 1202 - Monevs Held for Particular 
Bonds. The amounts held by any Fiduciaryfor the 
payment of the interest, principal or Redemption 
Price due on any date with respect to particular 
Bonds shall, on and after such date and pending 
such payment, be set aside on its books and held 
in trust by it for the holders of the Bonds entitled 
thereto. If any such amount remains unclaimed for 
a period of one year after such date, the Trustee 
shall pay over such amount, together with all 
investment earnings thereon and all investment 
earnings on any investment earnings, to the 
Corporation. 

Section 1203 : No Recourse Under -- 
Indenture or on Bonds. All covenants, stipulations, 
promises, agreements and obligations of the 
Corporation contained in this lndenture shall be 
deemedto bethe covenants, stipulation, promises. 
agreements and obligations of the Corporation and 
not of any member, officer or employee of the 
Corporation in his individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the 
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Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this 
Indenture against any member, officer or US.  BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
employee of the Corporation or any natural person 
executing the Bonds. 

R,, 
'-Y 

Section 1204- N o t i c e s t o ~ A q e n c i e s  GREG SKUTNIK 
and to Credit Enhancement Aqency. The Trustee Assistant Vice President 
shall give prompt notice to the Rating Agencies 
and any Credit Enhancement Agency of the EXHIBIT A 
resignation of the Trustee or the appointment of 
anv successor Trustee, of anv amendment to or 
modification of this indenture 'or the execution of CUSTODlANlDEPOSlTARY/SERVICING 
any Supplemental Indenture or when there are no AGREEMENT 
longer any Bonds remaining Outstanding. All 
notices to a Rating Agency or a Credit 
Enhancement Agency hereunder shall be sent by 
first class mail to the address provided to the 
Trustee by such Rating Agency or Credit 
Enhancement Agency. 

Section 1205: Conflict. All resolutions or -- - 
parts of resolutions or other proceedings of this 
Corporation in conflict herewith be and the same 
are repealed insofar as such conflict exists. 

Section 1206 1 Governinq Law. This -- 
Indenture and the Bonds shall be construed in 
accordance with, andgoverned by, the laws of the 
State of Alaska. 

Section 1207 : Effective Date. This -- 
Indenture shall take effect immediately upon its 
execution 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION has caused 
this lndenture to be executed by its Executive 
Officer and US. Bank National Association has 
caused this lndenture to be executed by its 
Assistant Vice President, all as of the day and year 
first above written. 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

BY 
DIANE BARRANS 
Executive Officer 
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FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE 

THIS FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL 
INDENTURE, made and entered into as of 
March 1 ,  2005, by and between the ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION, a public 
corporation and government instrumentality 
created and existing under the laws of the State 
of Alaska (herein called the "Corporation"), and 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a 
national banking association organized and 
existing under the laws of the United States, as 
Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  

WHEREAS, the Corporation and US. 
Bank National Association entered into an 
lndenture dated as of March 1, 2005 (the 
"lndenture") to secure issues of the 
Corporation's Student Loan Revenue Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the 
Indenture, the Corporation and the Trustee may 
enter into a supplemental indenture from time to 
time to authorize the issuance of a Series of the 
Corporation's State Projects Revenue Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of this First 
Supplemental lndenture to authorize the 
issuance of the Corporation's State Projects 
Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A, in the 
aggregate principal amount of $88,305.000 (the 
"Series A Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation is 
authorized to issue its Series A Bonds for the 
purpose, among other things, of funding State 
Projects; and 

WHEREAS, all conditions, things, and 
acts required by the Constitution and statutes of 
the State of Alaska to exist, happen, and be 
performed precedent to and in connection with 
the issuance of the Series A Bonds exist, have 
happened, and have been performed in due 
time, form, and manner as required by law, and 
the Corporation is now duly authorized and 
empowered, pursuant to each and every 
requirement of law, to issue the Series A Bonds 

for the purpose, in the manner, and upon the 
terms herein and in the lndenture provided; and 

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the 
authentication and delivery of the Series A 
Bonds, to establish and declare the terms and 
conditions upon which the Series A Bonds are to 
be issued and secured, and to secure the 
payment of the principal thereof and of the 
interest thereon, the Corporation has authorized 
the execution and delivery of this Supplemental 
Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the SeriesA Bondsand the 
Trustee's certificate of authentication are to be in 
substantially the following forms with such 
insertions or variations as to any redemption or 
amortization provisions and interest rate 
provisions, and with such other necessary or 
appropriate variations, omissions, and 
insertions, as the Corporation's Chair or 
Executive Officer may approve and as may be 
permitted or required by the lndenture or this 
First Supplemental Indenture: 

[FORM OF BOND] 

Financial Security Assurance Inc. 
("Financial Security"), New York, New York, has 
delivered its municipal bond insurance policy 
with respect to the scheduled payments due of 
principal of and interest on this Bond to [Paying 
Agent. City, State], or its successor, as paying 
agent for the Bonds (the "Paying Agent"). Said 
Policy is on file and available for inspection at 
the principal office of the Paying Agent and a 
copy thereof may be obtained from Financial 
Security or the Paying Agent. 

Maturity Date: 1, - No. R-- 
Interest Rate: - - - - - - % C U S I P  
No.: 
Principal Amount: $ 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

STATE PROJECTS REVENUE BONDS 

2005 Series A 

Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(hereinafter called the "Corporation"), a public 
corporation and government instrumentality of 



the State of Alaska (herein called the "State") 
created and existing under and by virtue of the 
laws of the State, acknowledges itself indebted, 
and for value received hereby promises to pay. 
butsolely from the revenues and assets pledged 
therefor pursuant to the hereinafter defined 
Indenture, toCEDE&Co.. or registeredassigns. 
the principal amount specified above on the 
maturity date specified above, upon the 
presentation and surrender hereof, and to pay 
interest on said principal sum, but solely from 
the aforementioned pledged revenues and 
assets, to the registered owner of this Bond 
from March 30, 2005, or from the most recent 
lnterest Payment Date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, until the 
Corporation's obligation with respect to the 
payment of said principal sum shall be 
discharged, at the rate per annum specified 
above, payable July 1, 2005, and semi-annually 
thereafter on the first day of July and on the first 
day of January (the "lnterest Payment Dates"). 
The principal of this Bond is payable when due 
upon presentation and surrender hereof at the 
corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National 
Association in St. Paul, Minnesota, as Trustee. 
or as otherwise directed by the Trustee. lnterest 
on this Bond shall be paid by mailing a check on 
the lnterest Payment Date for such interest 
payable to or upon the written order of the 
person entitled thereto (such person being the 
holder of record on the Record Date, as defined 
below, applicable to such lnterest Payment 
Date) at such person's address as it appears on 
the bond register of the Corporation; provided, 
however, that the registered owner of this Bond 
may request payment of interestat thecorporate 
trust office of U.S. Bank National Association in 
St. Paul, Minnesota, on any lnterest Payment 
Date if such registered owner notifies the 
Trustee in writing not later than 30 days before 
such lnterest Payment Date of such registered 
owner's election to so receive such payment of 
interest; and provided, further, that the 
registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in 
principal amount of the Series A Bonds shall be 
paid interest by wire transfer to an account in the 
United States if such registered owner makes a 
written request to the Trustee at least 30 days 
before the lnterest Payment Date on which such 
wire transfer payments are to begin, specifying 
the account address; provided, however, that 
while this Bond is held in a Book Entry System. 

principal of and interest on this Bond shall be 
paid as provided in the hereinafter described 
First Supplemental Indenture. lnterest on this 
Bond will be calculated on the basis of a 
360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day 
months. Payment shall be made in lawful money 
of the United States of America. 

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the 
Corporation designated "Alaska Student Loan 
Corporation. State Projects Revenue Bonds, 
2005 Series A (herein called the "Bonds"), 
authorized to be issued under and pursuant to 
Sections 100 -- 390 of Chapter 42 of Title 14 of 
the Alaska Statutes, as amended (herein called 
the "Act"), and an lndenture by and between the 
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association, 
as Trustee, (said Trustee thereto under the 
lndenture and the First Supplemental lndenture 
herein called rhe"Tr~stee' \ dated as ol March 1 
2005, and the First ~ u p p ~ k m e n t a ~  lndenture b; 
and between the Corporation and the T ~ S t e e  
dated as of March 1, 2005 (herein called the 
"lndenture" and the "First Supplemental 
Indenture", respectively) which together set forth 
the terms upon which the Bonds are issued and 
describe the security therefor. Unless otherwise 
defined herein, capitalized words used herein 
shall have the meaning assigned to them in the 
lndenture or First Supplemental Indenture. 

The Record Date in respect of any 
lnterest Payment Date on this Bond shall be the 
15th day of the month immediately preceding 
such lnterest Payment Date, regardless of 
whether such day is a Business Day. 

The Bonds are issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of $88,305.000 under the 
lndenture and First Supplemental lndenture in 
denominations of $5,000 and any integral 
multiple thereof, in fully registered form only. 
Copies of the lndenture and First Supplemental 
lndenture are on file at the office of the 
Corporation in Juneau. Alaska, and at the 
corporate trust office of the Trustee, and 
reference to the lndenture and the First 
Supplemental lndenture and any and all 
supplements, modifications, and amendments to 
either of them and to the Act is made for a 
description of the pledges and covenants 
securing the Bonds, the nature, extent, and 
manner of enforcement of such pledges, the 



rights and remedies of the registered owners of 
the Bonds with respect thereto, and the terms 
and conditions upon which the Bonds have been 
issued and may be issued thereunder. To the 
extent and in the manner permitted by the terms 
of the lndenture, the provisions of the lndenture 
or any indenture amendatory thereof or 
supplemental thereto (including the First 
Supplemental Indenture) may be modified or 
amended by the Corporation. The holder of this 
Bond shall have no right to enforce the 
provisions of the lndenture or the First 
Supplemental Indenture, to institute action to 
enforce the provisions of the lndenture or the 
First Supplemental Indenture, or to institute. 
appear in, ordefendany suit or other proceeding 
with respect thereto, except as provided in the 
lndenture and the First Supplemental Indenture. 
In certain events, on the conditions, in the 
manner, and with the effect set forth in the 
lndenture and the First Supplemental Indenture, 
all or part of the principal of the Bonds, with 
accrued interest thereon, may become or may 
be declared due and payable before the maturity 
thereof. 

The Bonds are not transferable when 
held in the Book Entry System except out of the 
Book Entry System under the conditions 
described in the First Supplemental Indenture. 
This Bond is transferable, as provided in the 
Indenture, only upon the bond register of the 
Corporation kept by the Trustee, upon surrender 
of this Bond together with a written instrument of 
transfersatisfactory to theTrustee duly executed 
by the registered owner or the registered 
owner's attorney duly authorized in writing, and 
thereupon a new Bond or Bonds in the same 
aggregate principal amount, interest rate, and 
maturity shall be issued to the transferee in 
exchange therefor as provided in the lndenture 
and upon the payment of charges, if any, as 
therein prescribed. The Corporation and the 
Trustee may treat and consider the person in 
whose name this Bond is registered as the 
absolute owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment of, or on account of, the 
principal hereof and interest due hereon and for 
all other purposes whatsoever. 

supplemental indentures (including, but not 
limited to, the First Supplemental Indenture) 
adopted under the lndenture. The Bonds do not 
constitute a debt, liability, or other obligation of 
the State or of any political subdivision of the 
State other than the Corporation. Neither the 
faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State 
or of any political subdivision thereof (including 
the Corporation) is pledged to the payment of 
the principal of or interest on the Bonds. The 
Corporation has no taxing power. 

This Bond is not subject to redemption 
prior to its scheduled maturity. 

Neitherthe members of the Corporation 
nor any person executing this Bond shall be 
liable personally hereon or shall be subject to 
any personal liability or accountability by reason 
of its execution. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become 
obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any 
security or benefit under the lndenture or the 
Firstsupplemental Indentureuntilthecertificate 
of Authentication hereon shall have been signed 
by or on behalf of the Trustee. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED. 
AND DECLARED that all acts, conditions, and 
things required by the Constitution and statutes 
of the State and the lndenture and the First 
Supplemental lndenture to exist, to have 
happened, and to have been performed 
precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond 
exist, have happened, and have been performed 
in due time, form, and manner as required by 
law and that the issue of the Bonds, together 
with all other indebtedness of the Corporation, is 
within every debt and other limit prescribed by 
law. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation has caused this Bond 
to be executed in its name by the manual 
signature of its Chair or Executive Officer, 
attested by the manual signature of an 
Authorized Officer, and its corporate seal to be 
affixed, imprinted, engraved, or otherwise 
reproduced hereon. 

This Bond is aspecial, limited obligation 
of the Corporation payable solely from revenues 
andassets pledged under the lndenture and any 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

A T T E S T :  

Authorized Officer 

TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF 
AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond isoneof theBondsdescribed 
in the within-mentioned First Supplemental 
lndenture and is one of the State Projects 
Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A, of the Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation. 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Trustee 

Authorized Signatory 

Date of Authentication: 

and 

WHEREAS, all acts and proceedings 
required by law necessary to make the Series A 
Bonds, when executed and duly issued by the 
Corporation and authenticated and delivered by 
the Trustee, the valid, binding, and legal 
obligations of the Corporation and to constitute 
the lndenture and this First Supplemental 
lndenture a valid and binding agreement for the 
uses and purposes therein and herein set forth, 
in accordance with their terms, have been done 
and taken; and the execution and delivery of the 

lndenture and this First Supplemental lndenture 
have been in all respects duly authorized; 

NOW, THEREFORE. THIS FIRST 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH, 
that in order to secure the payment of the 
principal of, and the interest on, all Series A 
Bonds at any time issued and outstanding under 
this First Supplemental Indenture, according to 
their tenor, and to secure the performance and 
observance of all the covenants therein and 
herein set forth, and to declare the terms and 
conditions upon and subject to which the Series 
A Bonds are to be issued and received, and for 
and in consideration of the premises and of the 
mutual covenants herein contained and of the 
purchase and acceptance of the Series A Bonds 
by the holders thereof, and for other valuable 
consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the Corporation covenants and 
agrees with the Trustee, for the benefit of the 
respective holders from time to time of the 
Series A Bonds, as follows: 

ARTICLE ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 101 - Definitions. In this First 
Supplemental Indenture, unless the context 
otherwise requires, the following words and 
terms shall have the meanings set forth in this 
Section: 

"Beneficial Owner" shall meaneitherthe 
person in whose name a Series A Bond is 
recorded as the beneficial owner of such Series 
A Bond by the respective systems of DTC 
Participants or, if the Series A Bond is not then 
registered in the name of Cede & Co. and held 
in the Book Entry System, the Bondholder of the 
Series A Bond. 

"Book Entry System" shall mean the 
system in which the Series A Bonds 
(represented by one Series A Bond certificate for 
each maturity of the Series A Bonds) are 
delivered into the possession of DTC and are 
issued and fully-registered as to principal and 
interest in the name of Cede &Co., and whereby 
beneficial interests in the Series A Bonds are 
purchased by investors through DTC 
Participants, such interests shown and transfers 
thereof effected only through the records 



maintained by the respective DTC Participants 
from whom each such investor acquired such 
beneficial interest. 

"Bond Insurer" shall mean Financial 
Security Assurance Inc., a New York Stock 
insurance company, or any successor thereto or 
assignee thereof. 

"Capital Reserve Fund Requirement" 
shall mean, at any time, Eligible Capital Reserve 
Assets in a principal amount equal to the least of 
the following amounts: (1) 10% of the stated 
principal amount of the Series A Bonds; (2) 
125% of average annual principal and interest 
payments requiredfor the Series A Bonds; or (3) 
the maximum annual principal and interest 
required for the Series A Bonds. 

"Cede & Co." shall mean Cede & Co., 
the nominee of DTC, and any successor 
nominee of DTC with respect to the Series A 
Bonds. 

"Closing Date"' shall mean March 30, 
2005. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Continuing Disclosure Certificate" shall 
mean the Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
between the Corporation and the Trustee dated 
March 30,2005, as originally executed and as it 
may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with its terms. 

"DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust 
Company, a limited purpose trust company 
organized under the laws of the State of New 
York, and its successors and assigns. 

"DTC Participants" shall mean trust 
companies, banks, brokers, dealers, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations 
that are participants of DTC. 

"Eligible Capital Reserve Assets" shall 
mean (i) cash, (ii) lnvestment Securities. (iii) a 
non-cancelable surety bond issued by an 
insurance company licensed to conduct an 
insurance business in any state of the United 
States (or by a service corporation acting on 

behalf of one or more such insurance 
companies) which insurance company or 
companies, as of the time of issuance of such 
surety bond, is rated in the highest rating 
category by any Rating Agency and if the 
Corporation files with the Trustee a Rating 
Confirmation reflecting such surety bond, and 
(iv) an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a 
financial institution which maintains an office, 
agency or branch in the United States and, as of 
the time of issuance of such letter of credit, is 
rated in one of the two highest long-term rating 
categories by one or more of the Rating 
Agencies, but only if the Corporation files with 
the Trustee a Rating Confirmation reflecting 
such letter of credit. 

"lndenture" shall mean the lndenture 
betweenthe Corporation and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as Trustee, dated as of March 1. 
2005, and securing the Corporation's State 
Projects Revenue Bonds. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean 
each January 1 and each July 1, commencing 
with July 1, 2005. 

"Investment Securities" for all purposes 
other than (i) investments in escrow accounts 
and (ii) investing, and receiving credit for, 
accrued and capitalized interest shall mean: 

(a) Direct obligations of (including 
obligations issued or held in 
book entry form on the books 
of) the Department of the 
Treasury of the United States of 
America; 

(b) Obligations of any of the 
following federal agencies 
which obligations represent the 
full faith and credit of the United 
States of America: 

- Export-Import Bank 
- Farm Credit System Financial 

Assistance Corporation 
- Rural Economic Community 

Development Administration (formerly 
known as Farmers Home 

Administration) 



- G e n e r a l  S e r v i c e s  
Administration 

- U.S. Maritime Administration 
-Small Business Administration 
- Government National 

Mortgage Association (GNMA) 
-US.  Department of Housing & 
Urban Development (PHA's) 
- F e d e r a l  H o u s i n g  

Administration 
- Federal Financing Bank; 

(c) Senior debt obligations rated 
"AAA by Standard & Poor's 
issued by the Federal National 
Mortgage Association or the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation, obligations of the 
R e s o l u t i o n  F u n d i n g  
Corporation (REFCORP), 
senior debt obligations of the 
Federal Home Loan Bank 
System, and senior debt 
obligations of any government 
sponsored agencies approved 
by F inanc ia l  Secur i t y  
Assurance Inc; 

(d) U.S. Dollar denominated 
deposit accounts, federal 
f u n d s ,  a n d  b a n k e r s '  
acceptances with domestic 
commercial banks (including 
any affiliate of the Trustee) 
which have a rating on their 
short term certificates of 
depositon the date of purchase 
of "A-1 " or "A-1 +" by Standard 
& Poor's and maturing no more 
than 360 days after the date of 
purchase (for purposes of this 
definition, the rating of a 
holding company shall not be 
considered the rating of any 
bank held by such holding 
company); 

(e) Commercial paper which is 
rated at the time of purchase 
"A-I+" by Standard & Poor's 
and which matures not more 
than 270 days after the date of 
purchase; 

(f) Investments in a money market 
fund rated "AAAm" or 
"AAAm-G" or better by 
Standard & Poor's, including 
money market funds from 
which the Trustee or its affiliate 
derives a fee for investment 
advisory or other services to 
the fund; 

(g) Pre-refunded municipal 
obligations defined as follows: 

Any bonds or other 
obligations of any state of the 
United States of America or of 
any agency, instrumentality or 
local governmental unit of any 
such state which are not 
callable at the option of the 
obligor prior to maturity or as to 
which irrevocable instructions 
have been given by the obligor 
to call on the date specified in 
the notice, and (A) which are 
rated, based on an irrevocable 
escrow account or fund (the 
"escrow"), in the highest rating 
category of Standard & Poor's; 
or (B)(i) which are fully secured 
as to principal and interest and 
redemption premium, if any, by 
an escrow consisting only of 
cash orobligationsdescribed in 
paragraph (a) above, which 
escrow may be applied only to 
the payment of such principal of 
and interest and redemption 
premium, if any, on such bonds 
or other obligations on the 
maturity date or dates thereof 
or the specified redemption 
date or dates pursuant to such 
irrevocable instructions, as 
appropriate; and (ii) which 
escrow is sufficient, as verified 
by a nationally recognized 
independent certified public 
accountant, to pay principal of 
and interest and redemption 
premium, if any, on the bonds 
or other obligations described 
in this paragraph on the 



maturity date or dates specified 
in the irrevocable instructions 
referred to above, as 
appropriate: 

(h) general obligations of states 
with a rating of at least "A21A 
or higher by Standard & Poor's. 

(i) Repurchase agreementsfor30 
days of less provided the 
following criteria are met: 

(i) theagreement must be 
b e t w e e n  t h e  
Corporat ion,  the 
Trustee, or third party 
acting as agent for the 
Corporation or the 
Trustee, and a dealer 
bank or securities firm, 
which may only 
include: 

1) p r i m a r y  
dealers on the 
F e d e r a l  
R e s e r v e  
r e p o r t i n g  
dea ler  l i s t  
w h i c h  a r e  
rated A or 
b e t t e r  b y  
Standard & 
Poor's and 
Moody's, or 

2) banks rated 
" A  or above 
by Standard & 
Poor's and 
Moody's; 

(ii) the written contract 
must include the 
following: 

1) s e c u r i t i e s  
w h i c h  a r e  
acceptable for 
transfer are 
I n v e s t m e n t  
S e c u r i t i e s  

2) the term of the 
a g r e e m e n t  
may be up to 
30 days; 

3) the collateral 
m u s t  b e  
delivered to 
t h e  
Corporation, 
the Trustee (if 
the Trustee is 
not supplying 
the collateral) 
or third party 
a c t i n g  a s  
agent for the 
Trustee before 
o r 
simultaneousl 
y w i t h  
payment; 

(4) the securities must 
be valued weekly, 
marked-to-market at 
current market price 
plus accrued interest; 
the value of the 
collateral must be 
equal to 104% of the 
amount of cash 
transferred by the 
Corporation or the 
Trustee to the dealer 
bank or security firm 
under the agreement 
plus accrued interest; if 
the value of the 
securities held as 
collateral is, at any 
time, below 104% of 
the value of the cash 
transferred by the 
Corporation or the 
T r u s t e e ,  t h e n  
additional cash or 
acceptable securities 
(as described in (ii)(l) 



of this paragraph) must 
be transferred; if, 
however, the securities 
used as collateral are 
FNMA or FHLMC 
obligations, then the 
value of collateral must 
equal 105%; and 

(iii) the Corporation or the 
Trustee must receive a 
legal opinion stating 
that the form of the 
agreement, which shall 
be attached to such 
o p i n i o n ,  m e e t s  
guidelines under State 
l a w  f o r  l e g a l  
investment of public 
funds;  prov ided,  
however, that the 
opinion described in 
this clause (iii) is 
r e q u i r e d  t o  b e  
delivered only on the 
date of issuance of the 
Bonds and on the date 
the Corporation or 
Trustee enters into a 
repurchase agreement 
that is in a form 
materially different 
from the form for which 
an op in ion  has  
previously been given 
pursuant to this clause 
(iii)." 

0) Investment agreements with a 
domestic or foreign bank or 
corporation (other than a life or 
property casualty insurance 
company) the long-term debt of 
which, or, in the case of a 
guaranteed corporation the 
long-term debt, or, in the case 
of a monoline financial guaranty 
insurance company, claims 
paying ability, of the guarantor 
is rated at least "AA" by 
Standard & Poor's and "Aa" by 
Moody's; provided that, by the 

terms of the investment 
agreement: 

(0 interest payments are 
to be made to the 
Trustee at times and in 
amounts as necessary 
to pay debt service (or, 
if the investment 
agreement is for the 
construction fund, 
construction draws) on 
the Bonds; 

(ii) the invested funds are 
a v a i l a b l e  f o r  
withdrawal without 
penalty or premium, at 
any time upon not 
more than seven days' 
prior notice; the 
Corporation and the 
Trustee hereby agree 
to give or cause to be 
g i ven  no t i ce  i n  
accordance with the 
t e r m s  o f  t h e  
investment agreement 
so as to receive funds 
thereunder with no 
penalty or premium 
paid; 

(iii) t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  
agreement shall state 
t h a t  i s  t h e  
unconditional and 
general obligation of. 
a n d  i s  n o t  
subordinated to any 
other obligation of, the 
provider thereof or, if 
the provider is a bank, 
the agreement or the 
opinion of counsel 
shall state that the 
obligation of the 
provider to make 
payments thereunder 
ranks pari passu with 
the obligations of the 
provider to its other 
depositors and its 



other unsecured and 
u n s u b o r d i n a t e d  
creditors; 

(iv) the Corporation or the 
Trustee receives the 
opinion of domestic 
counsel (which opinion 
shall be addressed to 
the Corporation and 
the Bond Insurer) that 
such investment  
agreement is legal, 
valid, binding and 
enforceable upon the 
provider in accordance 
with its terms and of 
foreign counsel (if 
applicable) in form and 
substance acceptable, 
and addressed to, the 
Bond Insurer; 

(v) t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  
ag reement  sha l l  
provide that if during its 
term: 

1) the provider's 
r a t i n g  b y  
e i t h e r  
Standard & 
P o o r ' s  o r  
Moody's falls 
below "AA-" or 
" A a 3 " ,  
respectively, 
the provider 
shall, at its 
option, within 
10 days of 
r e c e i p t  of 
publication of 
s u c h  
downgrade, 
e i t h e r  ( i )  
collateralize 
the investment 
agreement by 
delivering or 
transferring in 
accordance 
withapplicable 

s t a t e  a n d  
federal laws 
(other than by 
m e a n s  o f  
entries on the 
p r o v i d e r ' s  
books) to the 
Corporation, 
the Trustee or 
a third party 
acting solely 
a s  a g e n t  
therefor (the 
"Holder of the 
Col la tera l " )  
collateral free 
and clear of 
any third-party 
liens or claims 
the market 
value of which 
collateral is 
maintained at 
levels and 
upon such 
conditions as 
w o u l d  b e  
acceptable to 
S & P and 
Moody's to 
maintain an 
" A  rating in 
an " A  rated 
s t r u c t u r e d  
financing (with 
a market value 
approach); or 
(ii) repay the 
principal of 
and accrued 
but unpaid 
interest on the 
investment,  
and 

2) the provider's 
r a t i n g  b y  
e i t h e r  
Standard & 
P o o r ' s  o r  
Moody's is  
withdrawn or 
suspended or 



falls below "A- 
" or "A3" ,  
respectively, 
the provider 
must, at the 
direction of the 
Corporation or 
the Trustee 
(who shal l  
g i v e  s u c h  
direction if so 
directed by the 
Bond Insurer). 
within 10 days 
of receipt of 
such direction, 
r e p a y  t h e  
principal of 
and accrued 
but  unpaid 
interest on the 
investment, in 
either case 
w i t h  n o  
pena l t y  o r  
premium to 
t h e  
Corporation or 
Trustee, and 

(vi) The  i n v e s t m e n t  
agreement shall state 
and an opinion of 
counsel shall be 
rendered, in the event 
collateral is required to 
be pledged by the 
provider under the 
t e r m s  o f  t h e  
investment agreement, 
at the time such 
collateral is delivered, 
that the Holder of the 
Collateral has a 
perfected first priority 
security interest in the 
c o l l a t e r a l ,  a n y  
substituted collateral 
and all proceeds 
thereof (in the case of 
bearer securities, this 
means the Holder of 

the Collateral is in 
possession); 

(vii) t h e  i n v e s t m e n t  
ag reement  mus t  
provide that if during its 
term: 

1) the provider 
shall default in 
its payment 
obl igat ions,  
the provider's 
o b l i g a t i o n s  
u n d e r  t h e  
i n v e s t m e n t  
a g r e e m e n t  
shall, at the 
direction of the 
Corporation or 
the Trustee 
(who shal l  
g i v e  s u c h  
direction if so 
directed by the 
Bond Insurer), 
be accelerated 
and amounts 
invested and 
accrued but 
unpaid interest 
thereon shall 
be repaid to 
t h e  
Corporation or 
Trustee, as 
appropriate. 
and 

2) the provider 
shall become 
insolvent, not 
pay its debts 
a s  t h e y  
become due. 
be declared or 
petition to be 
d e c l a r e d  
bankrupt, etc. 
( "even t  o f  
insolvency"). 
the provider's 
o b l i g a t i o n s  



s h a l l  
automatically 
be accelerated 
and amounts 
invested and 
accrued but 
unpaid interest 
thereon shan 
be repaid to 
t h e  
Corporation or 
Trustee, as 
appropriate. 

If Additional Bonds are issued and Investment 
Securities are defined differently in the 
supplemental indenture or lndenture, then only 
those investments appearing in both or all 
definitions shall be Investment Securities. 

"Letter of Instructions" shall mean a 
letter of instructions from the Corporation to the 
Trustee, accompanied by an opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that compliance with the 
provisions of such Letter of Instructions (or 
amendment or supplement thereto) is necessary 
under Section 148 of the Code and Regulations 
adopted thereunder. 

"Letter of Representations" shall mean 
the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations 
dated July 26, 1995, from the Corporation to 
DTC, which shall be the binding obligation of the 
Corporation. 

"Municipal Bond Insurance Policy" shall 
mean the municipal bond insurance policy 
issued by Bond Insurer guaranteeing the 
scheduled payment of principal of and interest 
on the Series A Bonds when due. 

"Payment Date" shall mean any lnterest 
Payment Date and any other date on which a 
payment of principal of or interest on the Series 
A Bonds is due hereunder or under the 
Indenture. 

"Purchasers" shall mean RBC Dain 
Rauscher Inc. and the other underwriters, if any, 
identified in the Bond Purchase Agreement 
dated March 22,2005, relating to the sale of the 
Series A Bonds. 

"Record Date" shall mean, with respect 
to any lnterest Payment Date for the Series A 
Bonds, the 15th day of the month preceding 
such lnterest Payment Date, regardless of 
whether such day is a Business Day. 

"Regulations" shall mean the regulations 
adopted under the Code. 

"Series A Bonds" shall mean the 
Corporation's $88,305,000 State Projects 
Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A. 

"Standard & Poor's" shall mean 
Standard & Poor's Ratings Group or any 
successor thereto. 

"Supplemental lndenture" shall mean 
this First Supplemental Indenture. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided 
herein, capitalized terms usedherein shall have 
the meanings assigned to them in the lndenture. 

Section 102- Conflict with lndenture. In 
the event of a conflict between the provisions of 
this Supplemental lndenture and the lndenture 
or any other supplemental indenture, the 
provisions of this Supplemental lndenture shall 
govern for so long as any of the Series A Bonds 
remain Outstanding (except as may be 
otherwise provided herein). 

ARTICLE ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION. TERMS AND ISSUANCE 

Section 201 - Authorization. Princi~al - - - 
Amount, Desiqnation, Series; Creation of 
Funds and Accounts. A Series of State Projects -- 
Bonds (denominated the "Series A Bonds") is 
hereby authorized to be issued in the aggregate 
principal amount of $88,305,000. The 
Corporation has ascertained and hereby 
determines and declares thatthe issuanceofthe 
Series A Bonds is authorized by the Act and is 
necessary or convenient to carry out the powers 
and duties expressly provided by the Act and to 
carry out and effectuate the purposes of the 
Corporation in accordance with the Act. In 
addition to the title "State Projects Revenue 
Bond" the Series A Bonds shall bear the 
additional designation "2005 Series A" after said 
title, and each as so designated shall be entitled 



"State Projects Revenue Bond, 2005 Series A 
the Corporation hereby designates the Series A 
Bonds as Class 1 Bonds. The Series A Bonds 
may be issued only in fully registered form. 
There is hereby created in connection with the 
issuance of the Series A Bonds the 2005 Series 
A State Projects Account within the State 
Projects Fund and the 2005 Series A Pledged 
Loans Account within the Pledged Loans Fund, 
each of said accounts to be maintained and 
used in accordance with the lndenture and this 
Supplemental Indenture. 

Section 202 - Purooses. The Series A 
Bonds are being issued for the purpose of 
funding State Projects. 

Section 203 - Date of Series A Bonds. - - - - - - - - 
The Series A Bonds shail be dated March 30, 
2005. 

Section 204 : Maturities and lnterest -- 
Rates; Other Terms. (A) The Series A Bonds 
shall mature on January 1 and July 1 of the 
following years in the principal amounts set forth 
opposite each such date, and the Series A 
Bonds maturing on each such date shali bear 
interest from March 30, 2005, or from the most 
recent lnterest Payment Date to which interest 
has been paid, payabie semi-annually on each 
lnterest Payment Date, commencing July 1, 
2005. at the rate set opposite such date in the 
foilowing table: 

JUIY i, ZOOB 
January 1,2009 

July 1,2009 
January I ,  2010 

July 1,201 0 
Januarv I.  201 1 

July i, 201 I 
January I ,  2012 

JUIY i, 2012 
January 1.2013 

July 1, 2013 
January 1.2014 

July 1,2014 

Principal 
Amount 

$6,305,000 
6.000.000 
6,000,000 
6,000,000 
5,500.000 
5,500,000 
5,500.000 
5,000.000 
5,000.000 
5,000,000 
5,000,000 
4,500,000 
4,500,000 
4,250,000 
4,250,000 
4.000.000 
3.000.000 
3,000,000 

lnterest on the Series A Bonds 
shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

(B) The Series A Bonds will be 
secured by Credit Enhancement in the form of 
the Municipal Bond Insurance Policy and will not 
include any tender or put options. 

Section 205- Denominations. Numbers, 
and Letters. The Series A Bonds maturing in -- 
each year shall initially be issued in global book 
entry form registered in the name of Cede & Co.. 
as nominee for DTC, and, subject to Section 
208, may thereafter be issued in fully registered 
form in denominations of $5.000. or any whole 
multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate 
principal amount of Series A Bonds maturing in 
such year. The Series A Bonds shall be 
numbered separately from 1 consecutively 
upwards in such order as the Trustee in its 
discretion shail determine. 

Section 206 - Pavinq Aqents: Method of 
Pavment. (A) The Trustee is hereby appointed 
the Paying Agent for the Series A Bonds 
pursuant to Section 1102 of the lndenture. 

(B) While the Series A Bonds are 
held in the Book Entry System, payment of 
principal thereof and interest thereon shall be 
made by wire transfer of same day funds or in 
such other manner as permitted by the Letter of 
Representations to the account of Cede & Co. 
on the Payment Date at the address indicated 
for Cede & Co. in the bond register kept by the 
Trustee. 

(C) While the Series A Bonds are 
not held in the Book Entry System, principal of 
and interest on the Series A Bonds shali be paid 
by mailing a check on the Payment Date on 
which such principal or interest is due, payabie 
to or upon the written order of the Bondholders, 
as of each Record Date, of the Series A Bonds 
at their addresses as they appear on the bond 
register; provided, however, that (i) any such 
Bondholder may request such payment in 
person at the principal corporate trust office of 
the Trustee on any Payment Date if such 
Bondholder notifies the Trustee in writing not 
laterthan 30 days before such lnterest Payment 
Date of such Bondholder's election so to receive 



such payment of interest; and (ii) a registered 
owner of $1,000,000or more in principal amount 
of the Series A Bonds shall be paid interest by 
wire transfer to an account in the United States 
if such Bondholder makes a written request to 
the Trustee at least 30 days before the Interest 
Payment Date on which such wire transfer 
payments are to begin specifying the account 
address. 

(D) All payments under (B) or(C) of 
this Section shall be accompanied by CUSlP 
number identification (with appropriate dollar 
amount of payment pertaining to each CUSlP 
number in case there is more than one CUSlP 
number in connection with a payment) for the 
Series A Bonds to which the payment pertains. 
Payment of principal of the Series A Bonds 
under (B) or (C) of this Section shall be made 
when due upon presentation and surrender of 
the Series A Bonds to which such payment 
pertains at the principal corporate trust office of 
the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, or at such 
other location as directed by the Trustee. 

(E) For purposes of Section 503(C), 
paragraph Fourth, of the Indenture, in 
determining the amounts to be paid into the 
Principal Account pursuant to said paragraph, 
principal of the Series A Bonds shall be deemed 
to accrue each month in an amount equal to the 
principal amount of the Series A Bonds 
scheduled to mature on the next maturity date 
as set forth in Section 204(A) divided by the 
number of whole months between the month in 
which such deposit is to be made and the said 
maturity date (inclusive of both such months). 

Section 207 - RedemDtion. The Series 
A Bonds are not subiect to redemption prior to 
their respective scheduled maturities. 

Section 208 - Book Entrv Series A -- 
Bonds. (A) So long as the Series A Bonds are 
held in the Book Entry System the holder of all of 
the Series A Bondsshall be DTC, and the Series 
A Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede 
& Co., as nominee for DTC. The Letter of 
Representations is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

(B) The Series A Bonds shall be 
initially issued in the form of a single fully 

registered certificate in the amount of each 
separate stated maturity of the Series A Bonds. 
Upon initial issuance, the ownership of such 
Series A Bonds shall be registered in the registry 
books of the Corporation kept by the Trustee in 
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 
The Trustee and the Corporation may treat DTC 
(or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive holder 
of the Series A Bonds registered in its name for 
the purposes of payment of the principal or 
redemption price of or interest on the Series A 
Bonds, selecting the Series A Bonds or portions 
thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice 
permitted or required to be given to Bondholders 
under the Indenture or this Supplemental 
Indenture, registering the transfer of Series A 
Bonds, and obtaining any consent or other 
action to be taken by Bondholders and for all 
other purposes whatsoever; and neither the 
Trustee nor the Corporation shall be affected by 
any notice to the contrary. Neither the Trustee 
nor the Corporation shall have any responsibility 
or obligation to any DTC Participant, any person 
claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the 
Series A Bonds under or through DTC or any 
DTC Participant, or any other person not shown 
on the registration books kept by the Trustee as 
beingaBondholder, with respectto theaccuracy 
of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC 
Participant, the payment by DTC or any DTC 
Participant of any amount in respect of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on 
the Series A Bonds: any notice permitted or 
required to be given to Bondholders under this 
Indenture; the selection by DTC or any DTC 
Participant of any person to receive payment in 
the event of a partial redemption of the Series A 
Bonds; or any consent given or other action 
taken by DTC as Bondholder. The Trustee shall 
pay from moneys available hereunder all 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on 
the SeriesA Bonds only to or "upon the order of" 
DTC (as that term is used in the Uniform 
Commercial Code as adopted in the State), and 
all such payments shall be valid and effective to 
fully satisfy and discharge the Corporation's 
obligations with respect to the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on the Series A 
Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 
So long as the Series A Bonds are held in the 
Book Entry System, no person other than DTC 
shall receive an authenticated Series A Bond 
certificate. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee 



of DTC's written notice to the effect that DTC 
has determined to substitute a new nominee in 
place of Cede & Co.. and subject to the 
provisions of the lndenture and this 
Supplemental lndenture with respect to transfers 
of Series A Bonds, the term "Cede & Co." in this 
Supplemental lndenture shall refer to such new 
nominee of DTC. 

facsimile signature of the Chair, Executive 
Officer, or Finance Officer of the Corporation, 
with such signature attested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of an 

Authorized Officer, and the seal of the 
Corporation (or a facsimile thereof) shall be 
affixed, engraved, imprinted, or otherwise 
reproduced thereon. 

Section 209 - Deliverv of Series A Bond -- Section 302 - Delivery. After their 
Certificates. At any time, the Corporation may execution as hereinabove provided, the Series 
notify DTC and the Trustee, whereupon DTC will A Bonds to be delivered to the Purchasers shall 
notify the DTC Participants, of the availability be authenticated by the T ~ s t e e  and, upon 
throuoh DTC of Series A Bond certificates. In satisfaction of the conditions contained in the * 
such event. the Trustee shall issue, transfer, and Indenture, shall be delivered to the Purchasers. 
exchange, at the Corporation's expense, fully 
registered Series A Bond certificates as 
requested in writing by DTC in appropriate 
amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue 
providing its services with respect to the Series 
A Bonds at any time by giving written notice to 
the Corporation and the Trustee and discharging 
its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law. Under such circumstances (if no 
successor securities depositary is appointed by 
the Corporation), the Corporation and the 
Trustee shall be obligated to deliver Series A 
Bond certificates as described in the lndenture 
and this Suoolemental Indenture. orovided that 
the expens& in connection t h e r h t h  shall be 
paid by the Corporation. In the event Series A 
Bond certificates are issued, the provisions of 
the lndenture and this Supplemental lndenture 
shall apply to, among other things, the transfer 
and exchange of such certificates and the 
method of payment of principal of and premium, 
if any, and interest on such certificates. 
Whenever DTC requests the Corporation to do 
so, the Corporation will cooperate with DTC in 
taking appropriate action after written notice (a) 
to make available one or more separate 
certificates evidencing the Series A Bonds to 
any DTC Participant having Series A Bonds 
credited to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for 
another securities depositary to maintain 
custodv of certificates evidencing the Series A - 
Bonds. 

ARTICLE ARTICLE Ill 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

ARTICLE ARTICLE IV 
DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS 

Section 401 - Series A State Proiects 
Account: Capital Reserve Fund. Upon receipt of 
the proceeds of sale of the Series A Bonds, the 
Corooration shall deoosit lil all of said oroceeds 
in the Series A stat; projects ~ c c o u i t ,  and (ii) 
Eligible Capital Reserve Assets in an amount at 
least equal to the Capital Reserve Requirement 
in the Capital Reserve Fund. The Corporation 
may, at any time, satisfy the Capital Reserve 
Requirement by depositing into the Capital 
Reserve Fund, either in addition to other assets 
then in the Capital Reserve Fund or in 
replacement thereof, Eligible Capital Reserve 
Assets. 

Section 402 - p3ESERVEDI. 

Section 403 - Aoplication of Proceeds. 
The Trustee shall apply amounts in the Series A 
State Projects Account at the direction of the 
Corporation (a) to the payment of reasonable 
and necessary costs of issuance of the Series A 
Bonds and (b) to the payment of costs of Series 
A State Projects. 

ARTICLE ARTICLE V 
TAX MATTERS 

Section 501 - Rebate Procedures. (A) 
For purposes of complying with the arbitrage 
rebate reauirements of Section 148 of the Code 
and ~ec t /on  1.148-3 of the Regulations, the 

Section 301 - Execution. The Series A Corporation or its designee shall calculate 
Bonds shall be executed by the manual or rebatable arbitrage in accordance with this 



Section and shall assure payment, or shall direct 
the Trustee to pay (but, with respect to the 
Trustee, only from amounts in Funds and 
Accounts as provided in the lndenture or this 
Supplemental lndenture or, if such amounts are 
insufficient or unavailablefor such purpose, from 
amounts delivered for such purpose to the 
Trustee from the Corporation), such rebatable 
arbitrageto the United States in accordance with 
this Section. The Trustee shall not be 
responsible for calculating rebate amounts, for 
the adequacy or correctness of any rebate 
reports, or for enforcing compliance with rebate 
filing or reprinting requirements. 

(B) The Corporation shall calculate 
and pay, or cause to be paid, the rebatable 
arbitrage described in (A) of this Section in the 
manner, at the times, and otherwise in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in 
Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations. For 
purposes of such Regulations, the computation 
dates shall be June 30, 2005, and June 30 of 
every fifth year thereafter until all of the Series A 
Bonds have been discharged within the meaning 
of said Regulations. 

(C) The Corporation covenants that 
it will engage professionally competent advisors 
recognized in the field of municipal finance and 
arbitrage rebate computation to assist it in 
complying with the arbitrage rebate 
computations required by Section 148 of the 
Code and by this Section. 

(D) To the extent of any conflict 
between this Section 501 and any Letter of 
Instructions respecting the method of calculating 
any amount to be rebated to the United States, 
the Letter of lnstructions shall control. 

Section 502 - Tax Covenants. (A) The 
Corporation shall not directly or indirectly use or 
permit the use of any proceeds of the Series A 
Bonds or any other funds of the Corporation or 
take or omit to take any action that would cause 
the Series A Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" 
within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code 
and Regulations promulgated thereunder. To 
that end, the Corporation will comply with all 
requirements of Section 148(a) of the Code to 
the extent applicable to the Series A Bonds. In 
the event that for purposes of this Section 502 it 

is necessary to restrict or to limit the yield on the 
investment of any moneys held by the Trustee 
under the lndenture, the Corporation shall so 
instruct the Trustee in writing, and the Trustee 
shall take such action as directed. The 
Corporation specifically covenants that the 
Corporation will pay or cause to be paid to the 
United States at the times and in the amounts 
determined under this Supplemental lndenture 
the rebate amounts described herein. The 
Corporation further covenants and agrees that it 
will take all action necessary to assure that 
interest on the Series A Bonds shall be 
excludable from gross income for purposes of 
Federal income taxation. 

(B) Terms used in this Section and 
not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meanings assigned to such terms under the 
Code and Regulations. 

ARTICLE ARTICLE Vl 
RIGHTS OFTHE BOND INSURER 

The provisions of Sections 601 shall 
remain in effect so long as the Municipal Bond 
Insurance Policy shall be in effect. 

Section 601 - Ca~i ta l  Reserve Fund. - - - 
The prior written consent of the Bond Insurer 
shallbe a condition precedent to the deposit of 
any Credit Enhancement provided in lieu of a 
cash deposit into the Capital Reserve Fund. In 
addition, if the Corporation fails to comply with 
the certification requirement of Section 709(b) of 
the lndenture, the Bond lnsurer shall be entitled 
to direct the Trustee to exercise remedies of 
enforcement found in Section 1003(A)(I) of the 
Indenture. 

Section 602 - Votina Right or Privileqe. 
The Bond Insurer shall bedeemed to be thesole 
holder of the Series A Bonds for the purpose of 
exercising any voting right or privilege or giving 
any consent or direction or taking any other 
action that the holders of the Series A Bonds are 
entitled to take pursuant Article IX and Article X 
of the lndenture. 

Section 603 -Acceleration. Payment of 
the Series A Bonds insured by the Bond Insurer 
shall not be accelerated without the consent of 
the Bond Insurer. In the event payment of the 



Series A Bonds is accelerated, the Bond lnsurer 
may elect, in its sole discretion, to pay the 
accelerated principal and interest accrued on 
such principal to the date of acceleration (to the 
extent unpaid by the Corporation) and the 
Trustee shall be required to accept such 
amounts. Upon payment of such accelerated 
principal and interest accrued to the acceleration 
date as provided above, the Bond Insurer's 
obligations under the Municipal Bond Insurance 
Policy with respect to such Series A Bonds shall 
be fully discharged. 

Section 604 - Covenant Default. No 
grace period for a covenant default shall exceed 
30 days, nor be extended for more than 60 days, 
without the prior written consent of the Bond 
Insurer. 

Section 605 - Third Beneficiary. 
The Bond Insurer is deemed a third p a w  . . 
beneficiary to the lndenture so long as the 
Series A Bonds are insured by the Bond Insurer. 

Section 606 - Amendment or - - - 
Modification lndenture. No modification or 
amendment to the lndenture or this First 
Supplemental lndenture may become effective 
except upon obtaining the prior written consent 
of the Bond Insurer. Copies of any modification 
or amendment to the lndenture or this First 
Supplemental lndenture shall be sent to Fitch 
and Standard & Poor's at least 10 days prior to 
the effective date thereof. 

Section 607 - Event of Default. Unless 
the Bond Insurer otherwise directs, upon the 
occurrence and continuance of an Event of 
Default or the occurrence and continuance of an 
event which with notice or lapse of time or both 
would constitute an Event of Default amounts on 
deposit in the Series A State Projects Account 
shall not be disbursed but shall instead be 
applied to the payment of debt service or 
redemption price of the Series A Bonds. 

Section 608 - Riahts of the Bond -- m. The rights granted to the Bond Insurer 
under the lndenture and this First Supplemental 
lndenture to request, consent to, or direct any 
action are rights granted to the Bond lnsurer in 
consideration of its issuance of the Municipal 
Bond lnsurance Policy. Any exercise by the 

Bond lnsurerof such rights is merely an exercise 
of the Bond Insurer's contractual rights and shall 
not be construed or deemed to be taken for the 
benefit or on behalf of the Bondholders nor does 
such action evidence any position of the Bond 
Insurer, positive or negative, as to whether 
Bondholder consent is required in addition to 
consent of the Bond Insurer. 

Sectlon 609 - Defeasance of the Sertes 
A Bonds Tne Sertes A Bonos shall oe defeased -- 
in the manner set forth in Section 1201 of the 
Indenture, provided however, so long as the 
SeriesA Bonds are insured by the Bond Insurer, 
the following additional requirements must also 
be satisfied unless otherwise approved by the 
Bond Insurer: 

(A) The Corporation irrevocably 
sets aside in a special account the following 
investment securities pledged to affect such 
redemption or retirement of the Series A Bonds: 
(1) cash. (2) non-callable direct obligations ofthe 
United States of America ("Treasuries"), (3) 
evidences of ownership of proportionate 
interests in future interest and principal 
payments on Treasuries held by a bank or trust 
company as custodian, under which the owner 
of the investment is the real party in interest and 
has the right to proceed directly and individually 
against the obligor and the underlying 
Treasuries are not available to any person 
claiming through the custodian or to whom the 
custodian may be obligated, (4) pre-refunded 
municipal obligations rated "AAA and "Aaa" by 
Standard &Poor's and Moody's, respectively or 
(5) securities eligible for "AAA defeasance 
under then existing criteria of Standard & Poor's 
or any combination thereof; 

(8) The Corporation secures a 
report of an independent firm of nationally 
recognized certified public accountants or such 
other accountant as shall be acceptable to the 
Bond lnsurer (the "Accountant") verifying the 
sufficiency of the escrow established to pay the 
Series A Bonds in full on the maturity or 
redemption date (the "Verification"); 

(C) The Bond lnsurer accepts the 
form and substance of the escrow deposit 
agreement; 



(D) A defeasance opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel is rendered 
in connection with the redemption or retirement 
of the Series A Bonds; and 

(E) The Trustee shall execute a 
certificate of discharge in connection with the 
redemption or retirement of the Series A Bonds. 

The Bond lnsurer shall be provided with 
final drafts of the items (B) - (E) above not less 
than five Business Days prior to funding the 
defeasance escrow. 

Section 610 - Bond lnsurer Payments. 
Amounts paid by the Bond Insurer under the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy shall not be 
deemed paid for purposes of the lndenture and 
shall remain outstanding and continue to be due 
and owing until paid by the Corporation in 
accordance with the lndenture. The lndenture 
shall not be discharged unless all amounts due 
or to become due to the Bond lnsurer have been 
paid in full or duly provided for. 

Section 61 1 - Corporation and Trustee 
Covenants. The Corporation and the Trustee 
hereby covenant and agree to take such action 
as is necessaryfrom time to time to preserve the 
priority of the pledge of Trust Estate under 
applicable law. 

Section 612 - Claims Upon the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy and Pavments 
by and to the Bond Insurer. If, on the third 
Business Day prior to the related scheduled 

lnsurance Policy and give notice to the Bond 
lnsurer and the Bond Insurer's Fiscal Agent (if 
any) by telephone of the amount of such 
deficiency, and the allocation of such deficiency 
between the amount required to pay interest on 
the Series A Bonds and the amount required to 
pay principal of the SeriesA Bonds, confirmed in 
writing to the Bond lnsurer and the Bond 
Insurer's Fiscal Agent by 12:OO noon, New York 
City time, on such second Business Day by 
filling in the form of Notice of Claim and 
Certificate delivered with the Municipal Bond 
lnsurance Policy. 

The Trustee shall keep a complete and 
accurate record of all funds deposited by the 
Bond lnsurer into the Policy Payments Account 
(defined below) and the allocation of such funds 
to payment of interest on and principal paid in 
respect of any Series A Bond. The Bond lnsurer 
shall have the right to inspect such records at 
reasonable times upon reasonable notice to the 
Trustee. 

Upon payment of a claim under the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy the Trustee 
shall establish a separate special purpose trust 
account for the benefit of Bondholders referred 
to herein as the "Policy Payments Account" and 
over which the Trustee shall have exclusive 
control and sole right of withdrawal. TheTrustee 
shall receive any amount paid under the 
lnsurance Policy in trust on behalf of 
Bondholders and shall deposit any such amount 
in the Policy Payments Account and distribute 

interest payment date or principal payment date such amount on~ly for purposes of making the 
("Pavment Date") there is not on de~ositwith the oavments for which a claim was made. Such 
~ r u d e e ,  after miking all transfers and deposits 
required under the indenture, moneys sufficient 
to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 
A Bonds due on such Payment Date, the 
Trustee shall give notice to the Bond lnsurerand 
to its designated agent (if any) (the "Insurer's 
Fiscal Agent") by telephone or telecopy of the 
amount of such deficiency by 12:OO noon, New 
York City time, on such Business Day. If, on the 
second Business Day prior to the related 
Payment Date, there continues to be a 
deficiency in the amount available to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Series A Bonds 
due on such Payment Date, the Trustee shall 
make a claim under the Municipal Bond 

~~ 

am'ounts shall be disbursed by the Trustee to 
Bondholders in the same manner as principal 
and interest payments are to be made with 
respect to the Series A Bonds under the 
sections hereof regarding payment of Series A 
Bonds. It shall not be necessary for such 
payments to be made by checks or wire 
transfers separate from the check or wire 
transfer used to pay debt service with other 
funds available to make such payments. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
otherwise set forth in the lndenture, and to the 
extent permitted by law, in the event amounts 
paid under the lnsurance Policy are applied to 
claims for payment of principal of or interest on 



the Series A Bonds, interest on such principal of 
and interest on such Series A Bonds shall 
accrue and be payable from the date of such 
payment at the greater of (i) the per annum rate 
of interest, publicly announced from time to time 
by JPMorgan Chase Bank or its successor at its 
principal office in the City of New York, as its 
prime or base lending rate plus 3% and (ii) the 
then applicable rate of interest on the Series A 
Bonds provided that in no event shall such rate 
exceed the maximum rate permissible under 
applicable usury or similar laws limiting interest 
rates. 

Funds held in the Policy Payments 
Account shall not be invested by theTrusteeand 
may not be applied to satisfy any costs, 
expenses or liabilities of the Trustee. Any funds 
remaining in the Policy Payments Account 
following a Bond payment dateshall promptly be 
remitted to the Bond Insurer. 

Section 613 - Bond lnsurer Pavments. 
The Bond Insurer shall, to the extent it makes 
any payment of principal of or interest on the 
Series A Bonds, become subrogated to the 
rights of the recipients of such payments in 
accordance with the terms ofthe Municipal Bond 
lnsurance Policy. The obligations to the Bond 
lnsurer shall survive discharge or termination of 
the lndenture. 

Section 614 - Reimbursement 
Insurer. To the extent permitted by law, the 
Corporation shall pay or reimburse the Bond 
lnsurer any and all charges, fees, costs and 
expenses which the Bond lnsurer may 
reasonably pay or incur in connection with (i) the 
administration, enforcement, defense or 
preservation of any rights or security in the 
Indenture; (ii) the pursuit of any remedies under 
the lndenture or otherwise afforded by law or 
equity, (iii) any amendment, waiver or other 
action with respect to, or related to, the 
lndenture whether or not executed orcompleted, 
(iv) the violation by the Corporation of any law, 
rule or regulation, or any judgment, order or 
decree applicable to it, or (v) any litigation or 
other dispute in connection with the lndenture or 
the transactions contemplated thereby, other 
than amounts resulting from the failure of the 
Bond lnsurer to honor its obligations under the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy. The Bond 

lnsurer reserves the righttocharge areasonable 
fee as a condition to executing any amendment, 
waiver or consent proposed in respect of the 
Indenture. 

Section 615 -Application of Fund Upon 
Default. Afler pavrnent of reasonable exDenses 
o f ~ r u s t e e :  t6e application of funds realized 
upon default shall be applied to payment of 
expenses of the Corporation or rebate only afler 
the payment of debt service due, and past due, 
on the Series A Bonds, together with 
replenishment of the Capital Reserve Fund. 

Section 616 - Payments E~J the Bond 
Insurer. The Bond Insurer shall be entitled to 
pay principal or interest on the Series A Bonds 
that shall become Due for Payment but shall be 
unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the 
Corporation (as such terms are defined in the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy) and any 
amounts due on the Series A Bonds as a result 
of acceleration of the maturity thereof in 
accordance with the lndenture, whether or not 
the Bond lnsurer has received a notice of 
nonpayment (as such terms are defined in the 
Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy) or a claim 
upon the Municipal Bond lnsurance Policy. 

Section 617 - Address of Bond Insurer. - - - - - - - 
The notice address of the Bond lnsurer is: 
Financial Security Assurance Inc., 350 Park 
Avenue, New York, New York 10022-6022, 
Attention: Managing Director- Surveillance, Re: 
Policy No. , Telephone: (212) 826-0100; 
Telecopier: (212) 339-3556. In each case in 
which notice or other communication refers to an 
Event of Default, then a copy of such notice or 
other communication shall also be sent to the 
attention of the General Counsel and shall be 
marked to indicate "URGENT MATERIAL 
ENCLOSED." 

Section 618-Submissionoflnformation 
to Bond Insurer. The Bond Insurer shall be 
provided with the following information: 

(i) Annual audited financial 
statements within 150 days 
after the end of the 
Corporation's fiscal year 
(together with a certification of 
the Corporation that it is not 



aware of any default or Event of 
Default under the lndenture), 
and the Corporation's annual 
budget within 30 days after the 
approval thereof together with 
such other information, data or 
reports as the Bond lnsurer 
shall reasonably request from 
time to time; 

Notice of any draw upon the 
Capital Reserve Fund within 
two Business Days after 
knowledge thereof otherthan (i) 
withdrawals of amounts in 
excess of the Capital Reserve 
R e q u i r e m e n t  a n d  ( i i )  
withdrawals in connection with 
a refunding of Series A Bonds; 

Notice of any default known to 
the Trustee or the Corporation 
within five Business Days after 
knowledge thereof; 

Prior notice of the advance 
refunding or redemption of any 
of the Series A Bonds. 
including the principal amount, 
maturities and CUSIP numbers 
thereof; 

Notice of the resignation or 
removal of the Trustee and 
Bond Registrar and the 
a p p o i n t m e n t  o f ,  a n d  
acceptance of duties by, any 
successor thereto; 

Notice of the commencement 
of any proceeding by or against 
the Corporation commenced 
under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code or any other 
app l i cab le  bankruptcy ,  
insolvency, receivership, 
rehabilitation or similar law (an 
"lnsolvency Proceeding"); 

Notice of the making of any 
claim in connection with any 
lnsolvency Proceeding seeking 
the avoidance as a preferential 

transfer of any payment of 
principal of, or interest on, the 
Series A Bonds; and 

(viii) A full original transcript of all 
proceedings relating to the 
execution of any amendment or 
supplement to the lndenture, 
other than a Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing a new 
Series of Bonds. 

Section 619 - Trustee's Consideration. 
In determining whether any amendment, 
consent or other action to be taken, or any 
failure to act, under the lndenture would 
adversely affect the security for the Series A 
Bonds or the rights of the Bondholders, the 
Trustee shall consider the effect of any such 
amendment, consent, action or inaction as if 
there were no Municipal Bond Insurance Policy. 

Section 620 -Written Consent. (i) The 
Corporation shall secure the written consent of 
the Bond lnsurer prior to the following events: 

(a) issuance of Additional 
Bonds; 

(b) release of Excess 
Coverage; or 

(c) sale of any Pledged 
Loan at a price lower 
than the principal 
amount thereof. 

The Corporation shall also provide the 
Trustee with Rating Confirmation prior to the 
occurrence of the events described above. 

(ii) No contract shall be entered 
into nor any action taken by 
which the rights of the Bond 
lnsurer or security for or 
sources of payment of the 
Series A Bonds may be 
impaired or prejudiced in any 
material respect except upon 
obtaining the prior written 
consent of the Bond Insurer. 

Section 621 Shadow Ratinq. For 
purposes of the Series A Bonds, the rating 



provided tothe Bond Insurer (as described in the 
last sentence of the definition of Rating 
Confirmation) shall mean an " A  rating by S&P 
and Fitch, or such other rating as shall be 
agreed to by the Corporation and the Bond 
Insurer. 

ARTICLE ARTICLE VII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 701 - IRESERVEDl. 

Section 702 , & Recourse Aclainst -- 
Members or Other Persons. No recourse shall 
be had for the payment of the principal of or 
interest on the Series A Bonds or for any claim 
based thereon or on this Supplemental 
lndenture against any member of the 
Corporation or any person executing the Series 
A Bonds and neither the members of the 
Corporation nor any person executing the Series 
A Bonds shall be liable personally on the Series 
A Bonds or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the execution 
thereof. 

Section 703 - IRESERVEDI. 

Section 704 - ReDorts; Future Issues: 
Continuinq Disclosure. (A) As long as Fitch or 
Standard & Poor's Ratings Group is a Rating 
Agency with respect to the Series A Bonds, the 
Corporation covenants to provide Fitch or 
Standard & Poor's Ratings Group, respectively, 
with reasonably requested and required reports 
concerning the Corporation's finances and 
operations in a timely manner, provided that the 
request for any such report is in writing and is 
specific. 

(B) As long as Standard & Poor's 
Ratings Group is a Rating Agency with respect 
to the Series A Bonds, the Corporation 
covenants to provide Standard & Poor's Ratings 
Group, prior to all future bond issues under the 
Indenture, with all reasonably required 
information necessary for Standard & Poor's 
Ratings Group to review and affirm their rating 
on the Series A Bonds. 

(C) The Corporation hereby 
covenants and agrees that it will comply with 
and carry out all of the provisions of the 

Cont inu ing Disc losure  Cer t i f i ca te .  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Supplemental lndenture or of the lndenture. 
failure of the Corporation to comply with the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be 
considered an Event of Default; however, the 
Trustee shall, at the request of any Purchaser or 
the holders of at least 25% aggregate principal 
amount of Outstanding Series A Bonds and 
upon receipt of indemnity satisfactory to it and 
payment of its fees and expenses, including 
attorneys fees, or any Bondholder may take 
such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking mandate or 
specific performance by court order, to cause 
the Corporation to comply with its obligations 
under this Section 704(C). 

Section 705 - IRESERVEDI. 

Section 706 - Effective Q&. This First 
Supplemental Indenture shall be effective as of 
the date first above written. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION has caused 
this Supplemental lndenture to be executed by 
its Executive Officer, and US. BANK NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION has caused this Supplemental 
lndenture to be executed by an authorized 
representative, all as of the day and year first 
above written. 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

BY 
DIANE BARRANS 
Executive Officer 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Trustee 

BY 
GREG SKUTNIK 
Assistant Vice President 



APPENDIX IV 

March 30, 2005 

Members of the Board of Directors of 
the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

Juneau. Alaska 9981 1 

Dear Members: 

We have examined the Constitution and laws of the State of Alaska and a record of 
proceedings relating to the issuance of $88,305,000 aggregate principal amount of State Projects 
Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A (herein called the "Bonds") of the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 
(herein called the "Corporation"), a public corporation and government instrumentality of the State 
of Alaska created by and existing under Alaska Statutes 14.42.100-14.42.990, as amended (herein 
called the "Act"). 

The Bonds bear interest at the rates per annum and mature on the following dates in each of 
the following years in  the respective amounts set forth opposite such year: 

Maturity Date 
January 1,2006 

July 1,2006 
January 1,2007 

July 1 ,  2007 
January 1,2008 

July 1,2008 
January 1,2009 

July 1, 2009 
January 1,2010 

July 1, 2010 
January 1,201 1 

July 1,2011 
January 1 ,  2012 

July 1,2012 
January 1,2013 

July 1,  2013 
January 1,2014 

July 1, 2014 

Principal 
Amount 

$6,305,000 
6,000,000 
6,000,000 
6,000,000 
5,500,000 
5,500,000 
5,500,000 
5,000,000 
5,000,000 
5,000,000 
5,000,000 
4,500,000 
4,500,000 
4,250,000 
4,250,000 
4,000,000 
3,000,000 
3,000,000 

IV-1 

Interest Rate 
5.00% 
5.00 
5.00 
5.00 
5 .oo 
5.00 
5.00 
5.50 
5.00 
5.50 
5.00 
5.00 
5.25 
5.25 
5.25 
5.25 
5.25 
5.25 



Members of the Board of Directors of 
the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

March 30,2005 
Page 2 

The Bonds are being issued in fully registered form only. Interest on the Bonds is payable 
on July 1,2005, and semiannually thereafter on January 1 and July 1 in each year. The Bonds are 
not subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities. 

In connection with the issuanceof the Bonds, wehave reviewed the Indenture (as hereinafter 
defined) and the tax certificate of the Corporation dated the date hereof (the "Tax Certificate"), 
certificates of the Corporation, the Trustee and others, and such other documents, opinions and 
matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth herein. 

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings 
and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such 
opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hereof. We 
have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions or events are 
taken or do occur. We disclaim any obligation to update this letter. We have assumed the 
genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us (whether as originals or as copies) by 
any parties other than the Corporation and the due and legal execution and delivery thereof by any 
parties other than the Corporation. We have not undertaken to verify independently, and have 
assumed, accuracy of the factual matters represented, warranted or certified in the documents, 
referred to in the preceding paragraph. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with the 
covenants and agreements contained in the Indenture (as hereinafter defined) and the Tax 
Certificate, including (without limitation) covenants and agreements compliance with which is 
necessary to assure that future actions, omissions or events will not cause interest on the Bonds to 
be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. We call attention to the fact that the 
rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Indenture, and the Tax Certificate may be subject to 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other 
laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles and to the 
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. We express no opinion with respect to any 
indemnification, contribution, choice of law, choice of forum or waiver provisions contained in the 
foregoing documents. Finally, we express no opinion as to the Official Statement or other offering 
material relating to the Bonds. 

The Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to the Act and pursuant to the Indenture, 
dated as of March 1, 2005 (the "Master Indenture"), between the Corporation and US.  Bank 
National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as supplemented by the First Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2005 (the "First Supplemental"), between the Corporation and the 
Trustee. On February 24, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Corporation adopted a resolution 
authorizing, among other things, the execution and delivery of the Indenture and the 2005 Bonds 
(the "Resolution"). 



Members of the Board of Directors of 
the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

March 30, 2005 
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The Master Indenture and the First Supplemental are collectively referred to herein as the 
"Indenture." Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings ascribed 
to them in the Indenture. 

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. Under the Constitution and laws of the State, the Corporation has been duly 
created and organized and validly exists as a public corporation and government 
instrumentality in good standing under the laws of the State of Alaska, performing an 
essential public function with full corporate power and authority, among other things, to 
issue and sell the Bonds and to perform its obligations under the terms and conditions of the 
Indenture. 

2.  The Indenture has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered and 
constitutes a legal, valid, and binding instrument enforceable against the Corporation in 
accordance with its terms. 

3. The Bonds are legal, valid, and binding special, limited obligations of the 
Corporation for the payment of which, in accordance with their terms, theTrust Estate (as 
defined in the Indenture) has been legally and validly pledged, and the Bonds are entitled to 
the equal benefit, protection, and security of the provisions, covenants, and agreements of 
the Indenture. 

4. Interest on theBondsisexcludedfrom the gross incomeoftheowners thereof 
for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code under existing statutes 
and court decisions. Such interest is not treated as a specific preference item to be included 
in calculating the federal alternative minimum taxes imposedon individualsandcorporations 
by the Code, but such interest is included in calculating the "adjusted current earnings" of 
certain corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax. The opinion 
set forth above in this paragraph is subject to the condition that the Corporation comply with 
certain arbitrage and rebate requirements set forth in Section 148 of the Code that must be 
satisfiedsubsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue 
to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Corporation has 
covenanted to comply with each such requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such 
requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes to be retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We express no 
opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

5 .  The Bonds, the interest on them, the income from them, and the transfer of 
them, and all assets, income, and receipts pledged to secure the payment of the Bonds, or 
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interest on them, are exempt from taxation by or under the authority of the State, except for 
inheritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers by or in contemplation of death. 

Sincerely yours, 

WOHLFORTH, JOHNSON, BRECHT, 
CARTLEDGE & BROOKING, P.C. 

Cynthia L. Cartledge 



APPENDIX V 

FORM O F  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE -- 

There follows a summary of certain provisions ofthe Continuing Disclosure Certificate. This summary 
is not comprehensive and reference should be made to the full text of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, which 
in all events govcnls matters relating to the terms and provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Cenificate. 

The Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by the 
Alaska Student Loan Corporation (the "Issuer") and U.S. Bank National Association (the "Dissemination Agent") 
in connection with the issuance of $88,305,000 aggregate principal :mmount of the Issuer's State Projects Revenue 
Bonds, 2005 Series A (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Indenture datcd as of March I .  
2005, by and between the Issuer and US. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee") and the First 
Supplemental Indenture, dated March 1, 2005, by and between the Corporation and the Trustee (the "First 
Supplemental Indenture," ;md together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"). 

Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenlure, which apply to any capitalized term 
used i n  the Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise delined, the lbllowing capitalired terms will have the following 
meanings: 

"Accounting Principles" means the accounting principles applied from time to lime in the preparation of 
the Issuer's annual financial statements, which initially are generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated . . 
from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standuds Board of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (or its successor). 

"Annual Report" means any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in, 
Sections 3 and 4 of the Disclosure Certificate. 

"Commission" means the United States Securities and Exchange Con~mission. 

"Disclosure Representative" means the Executive Olficer of the Issuer or his or her designee. 

"Listed Evenls" means any of the events listed under the caption "Reponing of Significant Events" 01-the 
Disclosure Certilicatc. 

"National Repository" means any Nationally RecognizedMunicipal Securities Information Repository for 
purposes of the Rule as designated by the Commission. 

"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply with 
the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

"Repository" means each National Repository and each Slate Repository, i f  any, as designated by the 
Commission and shall also mean Ambac Assurance. 

"Rule" means Rule 15~2-l2(b)(5) adopted by theCommission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as the same may be amended from time lo lime. 



"State Repository" means any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a state 
repository for the purpose of the Rule and as designated by the Commission. As of the date of the Disclosure 
Certificate, there is no State Repository. 

"Tax-exempt" means that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, whether or not such interest is includable as an item oftax preference or otherwise includable directly or 
indirectly for purposes of calculating any other tax liability, including any alternative minimum tax. 

Provision of Annual Reports 

(a) The lssuer will. on or before 215 days after the end of each fiscal year for the 
Corporation, (the "Filing Date"), connnencing i n  2006 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, provide to each 
Repository an Annual Report. The Annual Report may be submitted as asingledocument or as separate documents 
comprising a packye, and may cross-reference other information as provided in the Disclosure Certificate. 

(b) If thelssuer is unable to provide to the Repository an Annual Report by the date required 
in subsection (a) above, the lssuer will send a written noticeof f;tilureto file an Annual Report to cach Repository. 

(c) Each year, prior to the date ibr providing the Annual Report, the lssuer will determine 
the name and address of each Repository. 

(d) Any filing required under the terms of this Disclosure Certificate may be made solely 
by transmitting such tiling to the Texas Municipal Advisory Council (the "MAC") as provided at 
hun://www.disclosureusa.orq unless the United States Securities and Exchange Commission has withdrawn the 
interpretive advice in its letter to the MAC dated September 7, 2004. 

C o n l e n t o f A n n u a l m .  TheIssuer's Annual Report will contain or incorporate by reference the annual 
audited linancial statements of the Issuer prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles 
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Svandards Board (or its successor) and linancial information and 
operating data generally of the typc included in the final official statement for the Bonds under the following 
headings: 

(a) Characteristics of Pledged Loans; 
(b) Loan Delinquencies and Defaults; 
(c) Borrower Benelits; and 
(d) Progmn Expenses. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including 
official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which have been submitted to each of the 
Repositories, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB") or the Commission. If the document 
incorporated by reference is ;I final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The lssuer will clearly 
identify each such other document so incorporated by reference. 

Renortinr Similicant Events and Fiscal Year 

(a) The Issuer will give notice of the occurrence of any of the following events in the manner and to 
the extent required by (d) and (e) of this Section: 

1. Delinquency in payment when due of any principal of or interest on the Bonds. 

2. Occurrence of any non-payment Event of Default under and as defined in the Indenture. 



3. Aniendn~enl to the Indenture modifying thc rights of the Holders ofthe Bonds. 

4. Providing notice of redemption of any Bonds. 

5 .  Defeasance of the Bonds or any portion thereof. 

6. Any change in any rating on the Bonds. 

7. Adverse lax opinions or evcnts allkcling the Tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 

8. Any unscheduled draw on the Capilal Rcserve Fund reflecting linancial difliculties of the 
Corporation. 

9. Any unscheduled draw on the Financial Security Assuranccinsurmcepolicy reflecting financial 
difficulties of the Corporation. 

10. Any substitution in the providerofthemunicipal bondinsurancepolicy,orany liquidity provider' 
or any failure by the insurer or liquidity provider to perform pursuant lo the tcrms of the insurance policy or relevant 
documents. 

I I. The release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds (including property 
leavxl, mortgaged or pledged as such security). 

(b) Theissuer will givenotice ofany failureon its part to provideorcause to be provided an Annual 
Report on or prior to the Filing Date. 

(c) The Issuer will give noticc of any changes i n  the Fiscal Year of the Issuer in the Annual Report. 

(d) Whenever the lssuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event. the Issuer will as 
soon as possible determine if such event would constitute material information for Beneficial Owncrs of the Bonds. 

(e) If the Issuer determines that knowledge o l  the occurrence of a Listed Event would be material, 
the lssuer will promptly file a notice of such occurrence with the Repositories. 

Termination of Reoortinr Obli(ra1ion. Thc Issuer's obligations under the Disclosure Certilicate will 
terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment i n  lull of all of the Bonds. 

1 1 1 ~ ~ ~ 1 1 1 i n : i l i ~ ~ 1 1 ~ .  'l'h< I h m x  11i:i). i r o~ l i t i~ i i e to~~~i i c ,  appoint ordnyze ; ~ d i ~ s ~ n ~ ~ n ; t ! t ~ ~ n ~ ~ c ~ i t  ~o:i\si\t 
i t  i ~ ~ c . ~ r r y ~ n ~  out itsohli?:dion, under t h i \  Di\clt~\urdCcrt~~ic;ttc. ;IIIJ mxy rl~~ch;u;c;tn) such ;t<all. \r 1111 ur nirltwt . - . 
appointing a successor disseniinalion agent. 

B. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of the Disclosure Certificate 
any Bondholder or Beneiicial Owner of a Bond may compcl compliance by specific performance. A delhult under 
the Disclosure Certilicate will not be deemed an Event of DePault under thc Indenture, and the sole remedy under 
the Disclosure Certificate in thc event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with the Disclosure Certificate will be 
an action to compel specific performance. 

4 Tlw Issuer bas 1101 oixtincd or piovidtd and docs not crpecl to obtain or provide. ;my liquidily providci lor the Bonds. 

v-3 



APPENDIX VI 
SCHEDULE A 

(To Blankct Issuer Letter of Representations) 

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE 

I. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York. NY, will act as securities depository for the 
securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as li~lly-registered securities registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an autliorized represenvative 
of DTC. One fully-registered Security ccnificate will be issued for [each issue 00 the Securities. [each) in the 
aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal 
amount of [any] issue exceeds $500 million, one ceniticate will he issued with respect to each $500 million of 
principal amount and an additional ccrtilicatc will he issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such 
issue.] 

2. DTC, the world's largestdepository, isa limited-purpose trust company organized undertheNew 
York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning ofthe New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant lothe provisionsof Section l7Aof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-US. equity, corporate and 
municipal debt issues, and money market instrument from over 85 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct 
Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Pmicipants of sales 
and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and 
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities 
certificates. Direct Parlicipants include both US. and non-US. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
com~anies, clearinp comorations, and certain other or~anizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 

- - ~~~~~ ~ ~~~~ ~ ~ - 
MBS Clearing Corporation, and ~rnerging~arkets~learing~orpomtion (NSCC. GSCC,MBSCC, an-d EMCC, also 
subsidiaries ol'DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.. the American Stock Exchange LLC, and 
the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as 
both US.  and non-US. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear 
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect 
Participants"). DTC has Standard 6: Poor's lligl~cst rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are 
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at 
www.dtcc.com. 

1. Purchases ol'Securities under the DTC system must he made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser 
of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participanu' records. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive written conlirn~alion from DTC of their purchase. Benelicial Owners are, 
l~owever, expected to receive written conlirn~ations providing details of the vansaction, as well as periodic 
statements of theirholdings, from theDirector1ndirecl Participant through which the Benelicial Owner entered into 
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the 
booksof~irect  andlndirect ~anicipantsacting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive 
cenilicates representing their ownership interests i n  Securities, except in theevent that useofthe hook-entry system 
for the Securities is discontinued 

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered i n  the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such othcr name as may be requested by an 
authorized represenlative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede 
& Co. or such other nomineedo not clTect any chartgein beneliciill ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 



Benelicial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records rellect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 
accounls such Securities are credited, wliicli may or may not be the Benelicial Owners. The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account ol'their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

5. Conveyance of notices and other comnn~nications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, ;md by Direct Participants and Indirect Participanu to Benelicial Owners will 
be governed by amngements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. [Beneficial Owners ofSecurities may wish to take cenain steps to augment transmission to then1 
of notices of signilicant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed 
amendments to the security documents. For example, Benelicial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that 
the noniinee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners, 
in the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wisli to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that 
copies of the notices be provided directly to them.] 

[6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of thc Securities within an issue are 
being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Panicipant in such 
issue to be redeemed.] 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect 
to the Securities unless authorized by a Direct Participant i n  accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy 
assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Securities are 
credited on the record date (identilied in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

8. Redemption proceeds,distributions, anddividend paymentson tlieSecurities will be made tocede 
& Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to 
credit Direct Participants' accounts, upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from Issuer 
or Agent on payable date i n  accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by 
Panicipants to Benelicial Owners will he governed by standing instructions and customaly practices, as is the ca5e 
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC [nor its nominee], Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from timelo time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and 
dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other noniinee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 

. . 
~i ;ec t  and indirect participants. 

[9. A Benelicial Ownershall give notice toelect to have its Securities purcbascdortcndered, through 
its Participant, to [TenderIRemarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct 
Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in the Securitics, on DTC's records, to [Tcnder/Rern;uketing1 Agent. 

. - 
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketingl Agent's DTC account.] 

10. DTC may discontinue providing its servicesas securities depository with respect to the Securities 
at any time by giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumst;~nces, in the event that a successor 
securities depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to he printed and delivered. 

I I .  Issuer may decide to discontinueuseof thesystemofbook-entry-only transfers through DTC (or 
a successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

12. Tlie information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that Issuer believes to he reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 



APPENDIX VII 

FORM OF MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY 



by an endorsement hereto, the followmg terms shall have 1 b b p t f o  the ex$i e w e s 4  m o w  
he mean n s s ecified 1 all oumo s of this Policv. "Business Dav" means anv dav other than (a) a 

banmg ~sttul ions in the.~tate of Neil YO& or the lns~rcr's 
law or execLlwe order lo remaln closed. 'Due lor Payment' 

a Bond payable on the stale0 malur ly dale lhereot or the date 
een duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer 1 vjhb s a p  s h a i i w  , 

1 an e rib r d te on wh oavment 1s due bv reason of call for redemotion (other than bv mandatow 
mptlon), acie~erauon or othe;aavancernont of matur~ty 'unless Flnanclaf &.nty shail 

such pr nclpal d ~ e  upon such acceleratlon together w~th any accrued 
and (b) when relerrhg to interest on a Bonq, payable on the stated date 

e n w r e s t .  "~on~a~menP'means,  in respect of a Bond, the faiiuri of the issuer to have 
su lclent funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment in fuli of 
pal and interest that is Due lor Payment on such Bond. "Nonpayment' shall also include, in 

of a Bond, any payment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment made to an Owner by or on 
of the Issuer which has been recovered from such Owner pursuant to the 






